
TOWN OF FLORENCE 
REGULAR MEETING  

AGENDA 
 

PURSUANT TO A.R.S. § 38-431.02, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN TO THE MEMBERS 
OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL AND TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC THAT THE 
FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL WILL HOLD A MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC ON 
MONDAY, MARCH, 17, 2014, AT 5:30 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, 
LOCATED AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL: Mayor Rankin___; Vice-Mayor Smith___;   

Councilmembers:  Tom Celaya___; Bill Hawkins___;  
Ruben Montaño___; Tara Walter___; Vallarie Woolridge___;  

 
3. ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
For the purpose of discussion of the public body with the Town Attorney in 
accordance with A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(4) for discussion and consideration of the 
Town’s position with regard to pending litigation, and pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-
431.03(A)(3) to receive legal advice regarding agenda item 8(c). 
 
4. ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
5. INVOCATION 

 
6. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
7. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  

Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  
Individual Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those 
commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter 
be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council shall not 
discuss or take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless 
the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 

8.  PUBLIC HEARINGS AND PRESENTATION 
 

a. Public Hearing on a Minor General Plan Amendment to amend the Town of 
Florence Town’s 2020 General Plan Future Land Use Map to change the 
land use designation on approximately 39.8 acres from Employment/Light 
Industrial (E/LI) to Medium Density Residential 1 (MDR1); and for 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of Resolution No. 1425-14: A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE MAGIC RANCH 80 MINOR GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT 
(PZC-08-14-GPA). 
 

mariah
Highlight



b. Public Hearing on a Minor General Plan Amendment to amend the Town of 
Florence Town’s 2020 General Plan Future Land Use Map to change the 
land use designation on approximately 11.2 acres from Community 
Commercial (CC) to Medium Density Residential 1 (MDR1); and for 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of Resolution No. 1426-14: A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE RESERVE AT LOOKOUT MOUNTAIN MINOR GENERAL 
PLAN AMENDMENT (PZC-01-14-GPA). 

 
c. Public Hearing on PZC-06-14-CUP:  A Conditional Use Permit request by 

Duke Rodriguez, of Ultra Health, LLC, on behalf of River Bottom, LLC, to 
allow for a proposed Medical Marijuana Dispensary on a Highway Business 
Commercial (B-2) zoned property located at 2501 N. Pinal Parkway Avenue, 
Florence, Arizona; and for Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of Resolution 
No. 1427-14: A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO 
ALLOW A PROPOSED MEDICAL MARIJUANA DISPENSARY ON 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2501 NORTH PINAL PARKWAY AVENUE, 
FLORENCE, ARIZONA, (PZC-06-14-CUP).    

 
d. Presentation of Rene Klix’s promotion to the position of Sergeant effective 

March 15, 2014. 
 

9. CONSENT: All items indicated by an (*) will be handled by a single vote as part 
of the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public 
objects at the time the agenda item is called.   

 
a. *Approve a Professional Service Agreement with Southwest Ground-water 

Consultants, Inc. (SWG) for the siting and design of a new production well 
in north Florence. 

 
b. *Approval of the resignation of John L. Anderson from the Planning and 

Zoning Commission.  
 

c. *Ratification of the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce’s application 
for a Special Event License for an After-Hours Mixer on April 3, 2014 from 
4:30 pm to 6:30 pm. 
 

d. *Approval of the January 6, January 21, January 28, February 3, and 
February 18, 2014 Town Council Minutes. 

 
e. *Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 

i. November 20, 2013 Historic District Advisory Commission minutes. 
ii. November 7, November 21, and December 5, 2013 Planning and 

Zoning Commission minutes. 
 
 
 
 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



10.  NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Resolution No. 1428-14: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL TO THE ISSUANCE OF ONE OR 
MORE SERIES OF THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, INC. TAX-EXEMPT AND/OR TAXABLE EDUCATION 
REVENUE BONDS (LEGACY TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS PROJECT), SERIES 
2014A, IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED 
$75,000,000 TO FINANCE THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, 
IMPROVEMENT AND EQUIPPING OF EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES FOR 
ATHLOS TRADITIONAL ACADEMY AND ITS AFFILIATES, LEGACY 
TRADITIONAL SCHOOL – AVONDALE, LEGACY TRADITIONAL SCHOOL – 
LAVEEN AND LEGACY TRADITIONAL SCHOOL – NORTHWEST TUCSON. 

b. Resolution No. 1429-14:  Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
PERTAINING TO THE FLORENCE POLICE DEPARTMENT’S SUBMISSION 
OF A PROJECT FOR CONSIDERATION IN ARIZONA’S FY 2015 HIGHWAY 
SAFETY PLAN. 

c. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to authorize the Town Manager to 
negotiate and enter into a contract or contracts with Haydon Building 
Corp., not to exceed a cumulative total of $500,000, for design-build 
construction services to complete the proposed Padilla Park at the Silver 
King Plaza project. 

11. MANAGER’S REPORT 

12. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
13. CALL TO THE COUNCIL 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the 
purpose of obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the 
agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
POSTED MARCH 14, 2014, BY LISA GARCIA, TOWN CLERK, AT 775 NORTH MAIN 
STREET, 1000 SOUTH WILLOW STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, AND AT 
WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF 
DISABILITY REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A 
DISABILITY MAY REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY 
CONTACTING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-
7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS 
POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATION.***  

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
 

8a. 

MEETING DATE:  March 17, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                      Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1425-14:  Magic Ranch 80 
          Minor General Plan Amendment 
                    (PZC-08-14-GPA) 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1425-14:  Magic Ranch 80 PZC-08-14-GPA         Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 6   

 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1425-14 for the Magic Ranch 80 Minor General Plan 
Amendment.  

REQUEST: 

An application by United Engineering Group on behalf of Palms-Magic 
Ranch 80, LLC, for a Minor General Plan Amendment to the Town’s 2020 
General Plan Future Land Use Map to change the land use designation on 
approximately 39.8 acres from Employment/Light Industrial (E/LI) to 
Medium Density Residential 1 (MDR1). This change would facilitate a 
subsequent zoning amendment on the site, which is generally located 
south of the southwest corner of Arizona Farms Road and Quail Run 
Lane, should the subject property be annexed into the Town of Florence 
per pending Annexation 2013-01.   

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
This application pertains to 39.8 acres of a planned 80 acre residential project known as 
Magic Ranch 80. The subject site is located along Mitchell Trail, ¼ mile south of Arizona 
Farms Road, in Pinal County, Arizona. The project is owned by Palms – Magic Ranch 
80, LLC, an entity of the McRae Group of Companies. 
 
The intent of this General Plan Amendment is to amend the land use designation on the 
39.80 acre site from E/LI to MDR1.  This designation is appropriate for the property 
today and in the future considering its surrounding designations and the fact that the 
property has an approved residential pre-plat with Pinal County.  
 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1425-14:  Magic Ranch 80 PZC-08-14-GPA         Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 
Page 2 of 6   

The project is currently zoned Planned Area Development in Pinal County and is part of 
the Magic Ranch PAD previously approved within the County. Upon annexation, the site 
would receive comparable zoning. In addition, there may be a zoning amendment and 
new Pre-Plat submitted for this site.  
  
ANALYSIS: 
 
When the Planning and Zoning and Town Council are considering an amendment to the 
General Plan, the applicant must justify the need for Minor Amendment to the General 
Plan through a series of questions: 
 
1. Why is the current land use/circulation classification not suitable? 

 
The site has an approved Preliminary Plat for approximately 160 residential lots 
within Pinal County.  Amending the General Plan from E/LI to MDR1 and 
subsequently applying for a Preliminary Plat within the Town will align the 2020 
General Plan with current zoning and development plans.  Additionally, this parcel 
is part of the Magic Ranch Master Plan and is designated as residential.   

 
The surrounding properties in the immediate area consist of a variety of types and 
uses, more specifically the Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR), finished lots within the 
Magic Ranch Master Plan, raw desert to the west, a mini-storage facility to the north, 
undeveloped desert consisting of 5-40 acre parcels to the west and similar 
undeveloped desert to the south.  Other surrounding property owners in the area 
include the Magic Ranch subdivision and  country club, large lot residential lots, 
Johnson Utilities WWTP and a refuse transfer station. 

 
This proposal does not suggest any changes to the overall circulation system of the 
Florence General Plan. 

 
The land use designations on surrounding properties are as follows: 
 
North:   Employment/Light Industrial (E/LI) 
 
South:  Medium Density Residential 1 (MDR1) 
 
East: Employment/Light Industrial (E/LI) 
 
West: Medium Density Residential 1 (MDR1) 

 
2. Does the proposal conform with land use goals? 

 
a. Support the goals and policies of the General Plan; and 

 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1425-14:  Magic Ranch 80 PZC-08-14-GPA         Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 
Page 3 of 6   

The proposed Minor GPA would support the overall policies and goals of the 
General Plan by incorporating medium density residential uses in proximity to 
similar land uses or where there is a need for such uses.  The proposed land 
uses are compatible with the existing terrain and surrounding land 
development characteristics.  

 
b. Conform to the proposed range of land uses, densities, and             

intensity of uses, hierarchy of transportation systems; and  
 
The proposed Medium Density Residential 1 land use will support a variety of 
different housing products that may ultimately be utilized on the property. The 
amendment will not conflict with the hierarchy of roadways previously 
proposed in the 2020 General Plan.  Mitchell Trail will be the property’s point 
of access on its eastern boundary is not identified within the transportation 
system; however, it is intended to be a Major Collector with an 80’ right-of-
way. 
 

c. Avoid creation of isolated uses that will cause incompatible community 
form and a burden on services and circulation systems? 

 
The proposed Medium Density Residential 1 land use is consistent with the 
surrounding designations.  No incompatible or isolated land uses will be 
created, nor will any additional burden on services and circulation systems be 
created.  As mentioned, the amendment only applies to 39.80 acres of the 
subject planned subdivision and the land use will be consistent with the 
surrounding designations to the west and south of the site. 

 
3. What unique physical characteristics of the site present opportunities or 

constraints for the development under the existing classification? 
 
With the site being currently designated as E/LI, this poses a significant constraint as 
the site is part of a larger 80 Project that was purchased while still in Pinal County 
and approved for 320 Single Family residential lots. As it was the intent of the 
purchase to maintain these lots and to sell to a future homebuilder, the E/LI 
designation in not desirable or practical.  MDR1 is a category similar to the County 
designation prior to annexation as well as to the Town’s land use designations to the 
south.    

 
4. What is the ability and capacity of the water and sewer system to 

accommodate development that may occur as a result of the General Plan 
Amendment without system extensions or improvements? 
 
Water and sewer services will be provided by Johnson Utilities, LLC (JUC).   
Johnson Utilities has a regional Waste Water Treatment Plant located across the 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1425-14:  Magic Ranch 80 PZC-08-14-GPA         Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 
Page 4 of 6   

UPRR, approximately ¼ mile south of the project and has sufficient capacity to serve 
the site.  Additionally, JUC has regional water lines in Mitchell Trail that the project 
will be able to tie into.    

 
5. What is the ability of existing police and fire department personnel to provide 

adequate emergency services according to acceptable response standards set 
by the community? 
 
Upon annexation police and fire protection for the project will be served by the Town 
of Florence.  The new Anthem at Merrill Ranch Fire Station, currently under 
construction, is located approximately 4.5 miles south of this site.  The property 
owners and the Town are currently negotiating dedication a four acre fire station site 
within the project.  
 
The main police station is located in downtown Florence, approximately 12 miles 
southeast.  A police substation will be included with the construction of Fire Station 
No. 2.    
 
Ongoing conversations between the Town of Florence and the applicant will 
continue so that both the emergency and fire response needs can be satisfied as the 
property moves forward with development. 

 
6. What is the ability of the proposed public and private open space, recreation, 

schools, and library facilities to meet the projected demand of future 
development without reducing services below community standards? 
 
This land use and the specific development proposed for this property will slightly 
increase the population densities and thus the need for public services such as 
schools and/or parks will increase also; however, this is off-set by the loss of more 
intense non-residential development so there will be no impact to Community 
Service Standards. The addition of the proposed Fire Station and the additional 
open space that will be utilized along the UPRR will benefit the area. 

 
7. What is the proposed fiscal impact of future development based on evaluation 

of projected revenues and the additional cost of providing public facilities and 
services to accommodate projected increases or decrease in population and 
development that could occur as a result of the General Plan amendment? 

 
The proposed fiscal impact for the project is expected to be beneficial to the Town 
once development commences. The added rooftops/residents will bring added taxes 
and economic benefit to surrounding businesses.  

  
As previously stated, the added demand on public facilities will be minimal as wet 
utilities will be provided by JUC and the addition of the proposed fire station site. 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1425-14:  Magic Ranch 80 PZC-08-14-GPA         Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 
Page 5 of 6   

 
8. How will the proposed amendment affect the ability of the community to 

sustain the physical and cultural resources, including air quality, water 
quality, energy, natural and human-made resources necessary to meet the 
demands of present and future residents? 

 
This amendment and the proposed subdivision will be subject to and comply with all 
Town, County, State and Federal regulations as they may apply.  

 
The properties water and sewer systems will be regulated by the Arizona 
Department of Environmental Quality.  Being under this regulator, water resources 
within the area will be held to the highest of standards.   
 

9. What changes, if any, in Federal or State Laws or policies substantiate the 
proposed amendment? 

 
There are no changes in Federal or State Laws or policies necessitated by this 
proposed Minor General Plan Amendment. This application is being submitted in 
conformance with the procedures of the Town of Florence Minor General Plan 
amendment procedures.   

 
FINDINGS: 
 

 The Medium Density Residential (MDR1) designation has been identified for 
suitable areas within the Town’s Planning Area 

 
 The property in question has been identified as a potential medium density 

residential  development and will have a viable circulation network 
 

 The properties in the area should be affected in a positive way by this General 
Plan Amendment as the amendment may encourage more diverse housing types 
and additional market base for employment and in retail goods and services 

 
 The proposed Minor General Plan Amendment is in compliance with the goals, 

objectives and strategies of the Town’s 2020 General Plan 
 

 A public notification effort has occurred for this Minor General Plan Amendment 
and staff notes that there have been few comments made on the proposed 
amendment 

 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
The Town has reached out to all Town citizens and other property owners though a 
public participation process that includes: 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1425-14:  Magic Ranch 80 PZC-08-14-GPA         Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 
Page 6 of 6   

 
 A notice for the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearings was mailed to 

all property owners within three hundred (300) feet of the site 
 

 Property Posting (Sign) - Notice of Public Hearing for a Minor General Plan 
Amendment was posted on the site 

 
 Advertisements in the local Town paper 

 
 One public hearing for the Planning and Zoning Commission 

  
 Town Council public hearing 

 
As of this writing, staff has talked to one nearby resident that expressed concerns with 
this application. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None directly applicable to this request.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
In accordance with the findings presented on this request, on February 12, 2014 the 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of this Minor General Plan 
Amendment, as shown in Exhibit A, subject to the following conditions: 

1. Any conditions deemed necessary by the Town Council. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

Resolution No. 1425-14 
Magic Ranch 80 Minor General Plan Amendment Book 
Exhibit A 
Application 

 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 1425-14 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING THE MAGIC RANCH 80 MINOR GENERAL 
PLAN AMENDMENT (PZC-08-14-GPA). 

 
 

WHEREAS, a Minor General Plan Amendment (Minor GPA) is requested for 
property located south of the southwest corner of Arizona Farms Road and Quail Run 
Lane; and 

 
WHEREAS, a significant public participation process, including the holding of a 

public hearing of the Town of Florence Planning and Zoning Commission, has been 
followed for the Minor GPA; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, has considered all public comments made at the public hearing; and 

 
WHEREAS, said proposal has been considered by the Council, and the Minor 

GPA has been found to: be appropriate; be consistent with the goals, objectives and 
strategies of the Town’s General Plan; have a positive impact on the overall balance 
and mixture of land uses in the Town’s General Plan; be consistent with good planning 
principles; be beneficial for the Town’s orderly growth; and be favorable to the general 
welfare, health and safety of the public. Thus, a determination has been made that the 
Minor GPA should be approved.  
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 
The Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona, hereby approve the subject 
Minor General Plan Amendment as presented in Exhibit A. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, this 17th day of March, 2014. 
 

 
  ___________________________ 
  Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
                          

______________________                             _____________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk             James E.  Mannato, Town Attorney 
 



Amended Planned Unit 

Development  

Narrative 

FOR 

Marabella 
Submitted to 

City of Casa Grande, Arizona 

January 2012 

 

 

APPLICANT/PROPERTY OWNER(S) 
LANGLEY RIGGINS 600, LLC 
2738 E. Guadalupe Road 

Gilbert, AZ 85234 
(480) 633‐0999 

 
RMG MARABELLA SOUTH, LLC 
8800 N. Gainey Center Drive 

Suite 255 
Scottsdale, AZ 85258 

 (480) 609‐1200 
 
 

AGENT/ENGINEER 
UNITED ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC 

3205 W. Ray Road 
Suite 1 

Chandler, AZ  85226 
(480) 705‐5372 

UNITED ENGINEERING GROUP 

December	31,	2013	

 

Minor General Plan 
Amendment  

Narrative 
 

Florence, Arizona 

3 2 0 5   W .   R A Y   R D . ,   S U I T E   1   |   C H A N D L E R ,   A Z     8 5 2 2 6   |   4 8 0 ‐ 7 0 5 ‐ 5 3 7 2  

P 
 
 

Magic Ranch 80 
8800 N. Gainey Center Drive 

Suite 255 
Scottsdale, AZ 85258 

 
 



Minor General Plan  2  Magic Ranch 80 

Amendment  United Engineering Group 

 

Project Data Sheet 
 

Project Location:  The Southwest Quarter of the Northwest  Section 2, Township 4 
South, Ranch 8 East of the Gila and Salt River Base and 
Meridian, Pinal County, Arizona 

 
Parcel Number(s):  200‐58‐007 
 
Project Request:  Minor General Plan Amendment from Employment/Light 

Industrial (E/LI) to Medium Density Residential (MDR1) 
 
Gross Acreage:  39.84 acres  
 
Existing Use:        None, Raw Desert  
 
Proposed Use:        Single Family Residential Subdivision 
 
Existing General Plan:      Employment/Light Industrial (LI) Designation 
 
Proposed General Plan:     Medium Density Residential (MDR1) Designation 
 
Existing Zoning:       None, Property is located within County 
 
Proposed Zoning:  Planned Unit Development (PUD)  
 
Flood Zone:  Zone X 
 

   



Minor General Plan  3  Magic Ranch 80 

Amendment  United Engineering Group 

 

 

APPLICATION FOR 

MINOR GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT 

FOR 

Magic Ranch 80 
Submitted to 

Town of Florence, Arizona 

December 31, 2013 

 

PROPERTY OWNER 
Palms – Magic Ranch 80, LLC 
8800 N. Gainey Center Drive 

Suite 255 
Scottsdale, AZ 85258 

 (480) 609‐1200 
 

APPLICANT/DEVELOPER 
McRae Group of Companies 
8800 N Gainey Center Dr. 

Suite 255 
Scottsdale, AZ  85258 

(480) 609‐1200 
 

AGENT/ENGINEER 
UNITED ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC 

3205 W. Ray Road 
Suite 1 

Chandler, AZ  85226 
(480) 705‐5372 

 
UEG Project No. 15918   



Minor General Plan  4  Magic Ranch 80 

Amendment  United Engineering Group 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1.  INTRODUCTION ..................................................................................................................................... 5 

2.  PROJECT JUSTIFICATION ....................................................................................................................... 7 

3.  CONCLUSION ....................................................................................................................................... 10 

 

 

FIGURES 

Figure 1 ‐ Florence General Plan ................................................................................................................... 5 

 

 

EXHIBITS 

A. Vicinity Map 

B. Assessor Parcel Map 

C. General Plan Amendment Exhibit 

D. Surrounding Owners 

 

 



Minor Gen

Amendmen

 

1. INTRO

1

 

 

neral Plan 

nt 

ODUCTION 

.1 Purpose o

The  purpo

residential

Mitchell Tr

Vicinity M

Magic Ran

parcel  num

Assessor P

application

 

The  Proje

Density Re

General Pl

MDR1.  (Se

designatio

surroundin

Plat with P

 

This  appli

informatio

property. T

f Request 

ose  of  this  re

l project kno

rail, ¼ mile so

Map)   The pro

nch 80, LLC (O

mbers makin

Parcel Map) T

n is only requ

ct  is  current

esidential 1  (

an Amendme

ee  Figure  1 

on  is  approp

ng designatio

Pinal County. 

ication,  alon

on and docum

The Minor Ge

United E

equest  is  to 

ow as Magic 

outh of E. Ariz

oject has rece

Owners), an e

ng  up  this  pr

Though the en

uesting a Mino

tly  designate

MRD1) per  t

ent to amend

&  Exhibit  C 

priate  for  th

ns and the fa

 

g  with  the 

ments  it need

eneral Plan Am

Figure

5

Engineering Gr

allow  for  the

Ranch 80  (th

zona Farms R

ently changed

entity of the M

roject  are  20

ntire Project 

or General Pla

ed  as  Employ

the Florence 

d the 39.84 a

–  Existing  &

e  property 

act that the pr

attached  ex

ds to approve

mendment A

e 1 ‐ Florence Ge

roup 

e  developme

he Project). T

Road, Pinal Co

d hands and 

McRae Group

00‐58‐007  & 

is comprised 

an Amendme

yment/Light 

2020 Genera

cre portion o

&  Proposed 

today  and 

roperty carrie

xhibits,  will 

e a Minor Ge

Application ca

eneral Plan

ent  of  an  app

The Project  is

ounty, Arizon

is currently o

p of Compan

200‐58‐011.

of approxima

ent to northe

Industrial  (E

al Plan.    It  is

of the site de

Florence  Ge

in  the  futur

es an approve

provide  the

eneral Plan A

n be found in

Magic Ran

proximate  80

s  located alo

a. (See Exhib

owned by Pa

ies (MGC). Th

  (See  Exhibi

ately 80 acre

rn 38.85 acre

E/LI)  and  Me

  the  intent o

signated as E

eneral  Plan).

re  considerin

ed Residentia

e  Town  with

mendment o

n Appendix A

nch 80 

0  acre 

ong N. 

bit A – 

alms – 

he tax 

it  B  – 

s, this 

es.  

edium 

of  this 

E/LI to 

  This 

ng  its 

al Pre‐

h  the 

on the 

A. 



Minor General Plan  6  Magic Ranch 80 

Amendment  United Engineering Group 

 

 

1.2 Property Description 

The Project  is  located along N. Mitchell Trail, ¼ mile south of E. Arizona Farms Road, Pinal 

County.   Refer to Exhibit A – Vicinity Map.  As mentioned, the property is currently within 

the  jurisdiction  of  Pinal  County  and  is  part  of  the  Florence  Magic  Ranch  Annexation 

expected  to  be  complete  by mid  2014.    The APN’s  consist  of  200‐58‐007 &  200‐58‐011. 

Refer  to Exhibit B – Assessor Parcel Map.   A  legal description  for  the 39.84 acre portion 

being amended can be found in Appendix B. 

 

1.3 Proposed Minor General Plan Amendment 

The  proposed Minor  GPA  will  change  the  land  use  designation  from  Employment/Light 

Industrial (E/LI) to Medium Density Residential (MDR1).   (Refer to Exhibit C – Existing and 

Proposed General Plan Land Use Designation).  The Project is currently zoned CR‐2 PAD & 

CR‐3 Pad and  is are part of  the Magic Ranch PAD previously approved within  the County 

which  carries no  Town  zoning.   Concurrent with  the Annexation  and GPA,  a  PUD will be 

requested on the subject property.  

The MDR1  land use  designation proposed with  this  application  is  consistent with nearby 

land uses located in the vicinity of the property and is necessary to support the needs of this 

developing area.   As mentioned The Project currently has a Preliminary Plat approved  for 

320 single family residential lots through November 2014. 

1.4 Relationship to Surrounding Properties 

The surrounding properties  in  the  immediate consist of a variety of  types and uses, more 

specifically  the Union Pacific Railroad  (UPRR),  finished  lots within the Magic Ranch Master 

Plan,  raw  desert  to  the  west,  a Mini  Storage  facility  to  the  north,  undeveloped  desert 

consisting of 5‐40 acre parcels  to  the west, and  similar undeveloped desert  to  the  south.  

Other  surrounding  property  owners  in  the  area  include  the Magic  Ranch  Subdivision  & 

Country  Club,  large  lot  residential  lots,  &  Johnson  Utilities  WWTP  and  refuse  transfer 

station. (See Exhibit D – Surrounding Owners Map)  

The surrounding General Plan land use designations are as follows: 

  North:  Employment/Light Industrial (E/LI) 

  South:  Medium Density Residential (MDR1) 

  East:  Employment/Light Industrial (E/LI) 

  West:  Medium Density Residential (MDR1) 

 

(Refer to Exhibit C – Existing and Proposed General Plan Land Use Designation) 

   

As the Site is currently within the County and in the process of being annexed into the Town 

of Florence, there is no surrounding Town zoning at this time.  

 



Minor General Plan  7  Magic Ranch 80 

Amendment  United Engineering Group 

 

 

2. PROJECT JUSTIFICATION 

2.1 Why is the current land use/circulation classification not suitable? 

As previously mentioned the overall site has an approve Preliminary Plat for 320 residential 

lots within Pinal County. Upon completion  the Annexation this Plat will no  longer be valid 

and great value will have been lost to the property.  Amending the General Plan from E/LI to 

MDR1 and subsequently applying for a Tentative Plat within the Town will secure the value 

of the property as intended at purchase.  Additionally, this parcel is part of the Magic Ranch 

Master Plan and is designated as residential.   

 

2.1 Does the proposal conform with  land use goals? Will the proposed change  in  land use or 
circulation do the following: 

 
a) Support the goals and policies of the General Plan; 

 
The  proposed  Minor  GPA  would  support  the  overall  policies  and  goals  of  the 

General  Plan  by  incorporating medium  density  residential  uses  in  proximity  to 

similar  land uses or where there  is a need for such uses.   The proposed  land uses 

are  compatible  with  the  existing  terrain  as  evident  by  existing  homes  directly 

adjacent to the UPRR with identical land characteristics.  

This proposal does not suggest any changes to the overall circulation system of the 

Florence General Plan. 

This project will also conform  to  the Park,  trails and open  space goals as well as 

provide the town with a potential 4 acre Fire Station site. 

b) Conform  to  the  proposed  range  of  land  uses,  densities,  and  intensity  of  uses, 

hierarchy of transportation system; 

The  proposed  Medium  Density  Residential  land  use  will  include  a  variety  of 

different housing products  that may ultimately be utilized on  the property.     The 

amendment will not conflict with the hierarchy of roadways previously proposed in 

the General Plan.   N Mitchell Trail,  the properties point of access on  its eastern 

boundary is not identified within the transportation system, however, it is intended 

to be a Major Collector with 80’ of right‐of‐way. 

 

 

 



Minor General Plan  8  Magic Ranch 80 

Amendment  United Engineering Group 

 

c) Avoid creation of isolated uses that will cause incompatible community form and 

a burden on services and circulation systems? 

The  proposed  Medium  Density  Residential  land  use  is  consistent  with  the 

surrounding designations.   No  incompatible or  isolated  land uses will be created, 

nor will any additional burden on services and circulation systems be created.   As 

mentioned,  the  amendment  is  only  39.85  acres  and will  be  consistent with  the 

surrounding designations.  

2.2 What unique physical characteristics of the site present opportunities or constraints for 
the development under the existing classification?  
 
With the site being currently designated as E/LI, this poses a significant constraint as the site 

is part of a  larger 80 Project that was purchased while still  in the County and approved for 

320 Single Family Residential Lots. As it was the intent of the purchase to maintain these lots 

and  to  sell  to  a  future  homebuilder,  the  E/LI  designation  in  not  desirable  therefore we 

request  to  amend  the General Plan  to Medium Density Residential.   MDR1  is  a  category 

similar to the County designation prior to annexation as well as to the Town designation to 

the south.    

 

2.3 What is the ability and capacity of the water and sewer system to accommodate 
development that may occur as a result of the General Plan Amendment without system 
extension or improvements? 
 
Water and Sewer services will be provided by Johnson Utilities, LLC (JUC).   Johnson Utilities 

has a regional WWTP located across the UPRR approximately ¼ south of the project and has 

sufficient capacity to serve the site.  Additionally, JUC has regional water lines in N Mitchell 

Trail that the project will be able to tie into.    

 

2.4 What  is  the  ability  of  the  existing  police  and  fire  department  personnel  to  provide 

adequate  emergency  services  according  to  acceptable  response  standards  set  by  the 

community? 

Police and Fire protection for the Project will be served by the Town of Florence.  The new 

Anthem at Merrill Ranch Fire Station currently under construction is located approximately 

4.5 miles south of this site.  However, as previously mentioned the property owners and the 

Town are currently negotiating dedication a 4 acre Fire Site within the Project.  

 The  nearest  police  station  is  located  in  downtown  Florence,  approximately  12  miles 

southeast.   With  the pending Magic Ranch Annexation,  it  is anticipated  that an additional 



Minor General Plan  9  Magic Ranch 80 

Amendment  United Engineering Group 

 

police substation will be constructed  in the vicinity of the project with the addition of  the 

added rooftops.   

Ongoing conversation between the Town of Florence and the applicant will continue so that 

both the emergency and fire response needs can be satisfied as the property moves forward 

with development.  

 

2.5 What is the ability of the proposed public and private open space, recreation, schools, and 
library  facilities  to meet  the projected demand of  future development without  reducing 
services below community standards?  

 
This application proposes  to change  the current  land use designation  from E/LI  to MDR1. 

This land use and the specific development proposed for this property will slightly increase 

the population densities and thus the need for public services such as schools or parks will 

increase  slightly also.   The addition of  the proposed Fire Station and  the additional Open 

space that will be utilized along the UPRR will provide far more benefit to the overall area 

than a burden. 

 

 
2.6 What  is  the  proposed  fiscal  impact  of  future  development  based  on  evaluation  of 

projected  revenues and  the additional  cost of providing public  facilities and  services  to 
accommodate projected increases or decreases in population and development that could 
occur as a result of the General Plan amendment?  

 
The proposed  fiscal  impact  for  the Project  is expected  to be beneficial  to  the Town once 

development  commences.  The  added  rooftops/residents  will  bring  added  taxes  and 

economic benefit to surrounding businesses.  

 

As previously stated, the added demand on public facilities will be minimal as wet utilities 

will be provided by JUC and the addition of the proposed Fire Station Site. 

 
2.7 How will  the  proposed  amendment  affect  the  ability  of  the  community  to  sustain  the 

physical and  cultural  resources,  including air quality, water quality, energy, natural and 
human‐made resources necessary to meet the demands of present and future residents?  

 
This amendment and the proposed subdivision will be subject to and comply with all Town, 
County, State, and Federal regulations as they may apply.  
 
The properties water and  sewer  systems will be  regulated by  the Arizona Department of 
Environmental Quality.   Being under this regulator, water resources within the area will be 
held to the highest of standards.   
 
 



Minor General Plan  10  Magic Ranch 80 

Amendment  United Engineering Group 

 

2.8  What  changes,  if  any,  in  Federal  or  State  laws  or  policies  substantiate  the  proposed 
amendment?   
 
There  are  no  changes  in  Federal  or  State  Laws  or  Policies  necessitated  by  this  proposed 
General  Plan  Amendment.  This  application  is  being  submitted  in  conformance  with  the 
procedures of the Town of Florence minor General Plan amendment procedures.   

 
 

3. CONCLUSION 

  In  Conclusion,  given  the  statement  and  justifications  above,  the Magic  Ranch  80  project  sill 

conforms  to  the  goals  and  policies  set  forth  by  the  Town  in  it  2020  General  Plan  and  is  a 

development that will provide a high quality of  life  for  its  future residents.     The vision of the 

community  in  this  location and  the  request  to amend  the General Plan  in  the  location would 

benefit  the  town  greatly.   The  intent of  this  request  is  to 1)  removed  the  Employment/Light 

Industrial  land  use  on  38.85  acres  of  the  project  and  2)  transition  the  Employment/Light 

Industrial to Medium Density Residential (MDR1). 

 

   



Minor General Plan  11  Magic Ranch 80 

Amendment  United Engineering Group 

 

 

EXHIBITS 

 
   











Minor General Plan  12  Magic Ranch 80 

Amendment  United Engineering Group 

 

Appendix A 

   







Minor General Plan  13  Magic Ranch 80 

Amendment  United Engineering Group 

 

Appendix B 

 













 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8b. 

MEETING DATE:  March 17, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                     Community Development Director          
                                      
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1426+-14:  The Reserve at  
                    Lookout Mountain Minor General Plan  
                    Amendment (PZC-01-14-GPA) 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1426-14 The Reserve at Lookout Mountain PZC-01-14-GPA 
Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 6 

 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1426-14 for the Reserve at Lookout Mountain Minor 
General Plan Amendment.  

REQUEST: 

An application by United Engineering Group, on behalf of RMG Lucky 
Hunt LLC, for a Minor General Plan Amendment to the Town’s 2020 
General Plan Future Land Use Map to change the land use designation on 
approximately 11.2 acres from Community Commercial (CC) to Medium 
Density Residential 1 (MDR1). This change would facilitate a subsequent 
zoning amendment on the site, which is generally located on the west side 
of Hunt Highway at the Heritage Road alignment, should the subject 
property be annexed into the Town of Florence per pending Annexation     
2013-01. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The proposed project known as the Reserve at Lookout Mountain encompasses 65.07 
acres of potential residential development.  This project is located on the southwest 
corner of Hunt Highway and Heritage Road in Pinal County, Arizona.  Owners RMG 
Lucky Hunt, LLC, an entity of the McRae Group of Companies, control the entire 
project.  The applicant is requesting a Minor General Plan Amendment for 11.27 acres 
of the 65.07 acres. 
 
The Reserve at Lookout Mountain is currently undeveloped land that is bordered by 
Hunt Highway.  Hunt Highway is planned to be a major arterial to meet future traffic 
demands in this area. 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1426-14 The Reserve at Lookout Mountain PZC-01-14-GPA 
Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 
Page 2 of 6 

For this General Plan Amendment application, United Engineering Group is requesting 
a change in the land use designation for approximately 11 acres from Community 
Commercial (CC) to Medium Density Residential 1 (MDR1).  
  
The overall motivating philosophy behind this proposed land use change is to provide 
more compact development opportunities for a varied housing inventory.  The MDR 1 
designation will allow an improved subdivision design.  The slight loss of commercial is 
more than offset by the planned commercial areas in the immediate vicinity of this site.   
 
The uses proposed by this application are the ones the property owners believe will 
best meet the demand of the market and those that will best serve to assist the Town of 
Florence in meeting its goals and objectives as outlined in the 2020 General Plan. 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
When the Planning and Zoning and Town Council are considering an amendment to the 
General Plan, the applicant must justify the need for Minor Amendment to the General 
Plan through a series of questions: 
 
1. Why is the current land use/circulation classification not suitable? 

 
Staff contends the area in question has an adequate amount of Community 
Commercial (CC) land designated in this area.  The requested Minor General Plan 
Amendment to the Town’s 2020 General Plan Future Land Use Map to change the 
land use designation on approximately 11.2 acres from Community Commercial 
(CC) to Medium Density Residential 1 (MDR1) would have a minimal impact.   
 
This proposal does not suggest any changes to the overall circulation system of the 
Florence General Plan. 

 
The land use designations on surrounding properties are as follows: 
 
North:   Medium Density Residential 1 (MDR1) and Community Commercial (CC) 
 
South:  Medium Density Residential 1 (MDR1) and Community Commercial (CC) 
 
East: Community Commercial (CC) 
 
West: Gila River Indian Community (GRIC) 

 
2. Does the proposal conform with land use goals? 

 
a. Support the goals and policies of the General Plan; and 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1426-14 The Reserve at Lookout Mountain PZC-01-14-GPA 
Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 
Page 3 of 6 

 
The proposed Minor GPA would support the overall policies and goals of the 
2020 General Plan by incorporating medium density residential uses in 
proximity to similar land uses or where there is a need for such uses.  The 
proposed land use is compatible with the existing conditions as evident by 
existing homes that line the Hunt Highway corridor.  

 
This project will also conform to the 2008 Parks, Trails and Open Space 
Master Plan goals by preserving hillside area to be used by local and regional 
residents. 
 

b. Conform to the proposed range of land uses, densities, and             
intensity of uses, hierarchy of transportation systems; and  
 
The proposed Medium Density Residential 1 land use supports a variety of 
different housing products that may ultimately be utilized on the property. This 
amendment will not conflict with the hierarchy of roadways previously 
proposed in the General Plan.  Hunt Highway will remain designated as a 
major arterial.    
 

c. Avoid creation of isolated uses that will cause incompatible community 
form and a burden on services and circulation systems? 

 
The proposed land use change is consistent with the surrounding 
designations.  No incompatible or isolated land uses will be created, nor will 
any additional burden on services and circulation systems be created.   

 
3. What unique physical characteristics of the site present opportunities or 

constraints for the development under the existing classification? 
 
With the site’s unique topography and location along Hunt Highway, the opportunity 
to develop a premier hillside residential community with amazing views of 
undisturbed desert far exceeds the need for another competing commercial 
development next to the future Barclay Group commercial center.  A portion of the 
property to the south has previously been sold to a local commercial developer and 
the site is planned for a large supermarket anchor.  There is not an established need 
for a competing commercial center immediately adjacent to this site.   

 
4. What is the ability and capacity of the water and sewer system to 

accommodate development that may occur as a result of the General Plan 
Amendment without system extensions or improvements? 
 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1426-14 The Reserve at Lookout Mountain PZC-01-14-GPA 
Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 
Page 4 of 6 

Water and sewer services will be provided by Johnson Utilities, LLC (JUC).   
Johnson Utilities has a regional WWTP located directly across Hunt Highway for the 
project and has sufficient capacity to serve the site.  Additionally, JUC has regional 
water lines in Hunt Highway that the project will be able to tie into.    

 
5. What is the ability of existing police and fire department personnel to provide 

adequate emergency services according to acceptable response standards set 
by the community? 
 
Police and fire protection for the project will be served by the Town of Florence upon 
annexation. Anthem at Merrill Ranch Fire Station No. 2 is located approximately 4.5 
miles south of this site; however, it is understood that the Town is anticipating an 
additional fire station near the Magic Ranch Area in the coming years.  

 
The main police station is located in downtown Florence, approximately 12 miles 
southeast.  A police substation will be included within the Fire Station No. 2.   

 
Ongoing conversations between the Town of Florence and the applicant will 
continue so that both the emergency and fire response needs can be satisfied as the 
property moves forward with development. 

 
6. What is the ability of the proposed public and private open space, recreation, 

schools, and library facilities to meet the projected demand of future 
development without reducing services below community standards? 
 
The land use and the specific development proposed for this property will only 
slightly increase the population densities and the need for public services such as 
schools or parks. Community service standards will not be impacted by this change. 
Hillside areas that are deemed undevelopable will be utilized as open space with 
private trails and parks. 

 
7. What is the proposed fiscal impact of future development based on evaluation 

of projected revenues and the additional cost of providing public facilities and 
services to accommodate projected increases or decrease in population and 
development that could occur as a result of the General Plan amendment? 

 
The fiscal impact is expected to be beneficial to the Town once development 
commences. The added rooftops/residents will bring added taxes and economic 
benefit to surrounding businesses.  
 
As previously stated, the added demand on public facilities will be minimal as wet 
utilities will be provided by JUC. 
 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1426-14 The Reserve at Lookout Mountain PZC-01-14-GPA 
Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 
Page 5 of 6 

8. How will the proposed amendment affect the ability of the community to 
sustain the physical and cultural resources, including air quality, water 
quality, energy, natural and human-made resources necessary to meet the 
demands of present and future residents? 
 
This amendment and the proposed subdivision will be subject to and comply with all 
Town, County, State and Federal regulations as they may apply.  

 
9. What changes, if any, in Federal or State Laws or policies substantiate the 

proposed amendment? 
 

There are no changes in Federal or State Laws or policies necessitated by this 
proposed Minor General Plan Amendment. This application is being submitted in 
conformance with the procedures of the Town of Florence General Plan amendment 
procedures.   

 
FINDINGS: 
 

 The Medium Density Residential 1 (MDR1) designation has been identified for 
suitable areas within the Town’s Planning Area 

 
 The property in question has been identified as a potential medium density 

residential  development and will have a viable circulation network 
 

 The properties in the area should be affected in a positive way by this General Plan 
Amendment as the amendment may provide more diverse  housing types and 
additional market base for employment and in retail goods and services 

 
 The proposed Minor General Plan Amendment is in compliance with the goals, 

objectives and strategies of the Town’s General Plan 
 

 A public notification effort has occurred for this Minor General Plan Amendment 
and staff notes that there have been no objections to this proposed amendment 
that have been received as of this writing 

 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
The Town has reached out to all Town citizens and other property owners though a 
public participation process that includes: 

 
 A notice for the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearings was mailed to 

all property owners within three hundred (300) feet of the site 
 

 Property Posting (Sign) - Notice of Public Hearing for a Minor General Plan 
Amendment was posted on one location on the site 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1426-14 The Reserve at Lookout Mountain PZC-01-14-GPA 
Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 
Page 6 of 6 

 
 Advertisements in the local Town paper 

 
 One public hearing for the Planning and Zoning Commission  

  
 Town Council public hearing  

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None directly applicable to this request.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
In accordance with the findings presented on this request, on February 12, 2014, the 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of this Minor General Plan 
Amendment, subject to the following conditions: 

1. Any conditions deemed necessary by the Town Council. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1426-14 
The Reserve at Lookout Mountain Minor General Plan Amendment Book 
Exhibit A 
Application 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 1426-14 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING THE RESERVE AT LOOKOUT MOUNTAIN 
MINOR GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT (PZC-01-14-GPA). 

 
WHEREAS, a Minor General Plan Amendment (Minor GPA) is requested for 

property located on the west side of Hunt Highway at the Heritage Road alignment; and 

 
WHEREAS, a significant public participation process, including the holding of a 

public hearing of the Town of Florence Planning and Zoning Commission, has been 
followed for the Minor GPA; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, has considered all public comments made at the public hearing; and 

 
WHEREAS, said proposal has been considered by the Council, and the Minor 

GPA has been found to: be appropriate; be consistent with the goals, objectives and 
strategies of the Town’s General Plan; have a positive impact on the overall balance 
and mixture of land uses in the Town’s General Plan; be consistent with good planning 
principles; be beneficial for the Town’s orderly growth; and be favorable to the general 
welfare, health and safety of the public. Thus, a determination has been made that the 
Minor GPA should be approved.  
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 
The Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona, hereby approve the subject 
Minor General Plan Amendment as presented in Exhibit A. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Common Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, this 17th day of March, 2014. 
 
 

 
  ___________________________ 
  Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
                          

______________________                             _____________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk             James E.  Mannato, Town Attorney 
 



Amended Planned Unit 

Development  

Narrative 

FOR 

Marabella 
Submitted to 

City of Casa Grande, Arizona 

January 2012 

 

 

APPLICANT/PROPERTY OWNER(S) 
LANGLEY RIGGINS 600, LLC 
2738 E. Guadalupe Road 

Gilbert, AZ 85234 
(480) 633‐0999 

 
RMG MARABELLA SOUTH, LLC 
8800 N. Gainey Center Drive 

Suite 255 
Scottsdale, AZ 85258 

 (480) 609‐1200 
 
 

AGENT/ENGINEER 
UNITED ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC 

3205 W. Ray Road 
Suite 1 

Chandler, AZ  85226 
(480) 705‐5372 

UNITED ENGINEERING GROUP 

	December	11,	2013		

 

Minor General Plan 
Amendment  

Narrative 
 

Florence, Arizona 

3 2 0 5   W .   R A Y   R D . ,   S U I T E   1   |   C H A N D L E R ,   A Z     8 5 2 2 6   |   4 8 0 ‐ 7 0 5 ‐ 5 3 7 2  

P 
 
 

The Reserve  
at Lookout Mountain 

8800 N. Gainey Center Drive 
Suite 255 

Scottsdale, AZ 85258 



Minor General Plan  2  The Reserve at Lookout Mountain 

Amendment  United Engineering Group 

 

Project Data Sheet 
 

Project Location:  A Portion of the Northeast Quarter of Section 10, Township 4 
South, Ranch 8 East of the Gila and Salt River Base and 
Meridian, Pinal County, Arizona 

 
Parcel Number(s):  200‐25‐001C, 200‐25‐001E (Portion) 
 
Project Request:  Minor General Plan Amendment from Community Commercial 

(CC) to Medium Density Residential (MDR1) 
 
Gross Acreage:  11.2781 acres  
 
Existing Use:        None, Raw Desert  
 
Proposed Use:        Single Family Residential Subdivision 
 
Existing General Plan:      Community Commercial (CC) Designation 
 
Proposed General Plan:     Medium Density Residential (MDR1) Designation 
 
Existing Zoning:       None, Property is located within County 
 
Proposed Zoning:  Planned Unit Development (PUD)  
 
Flood Zone:  Zone X 
 

   



Minor General Plan  3  The Reserve at Lookout Mountain 

Amendment  United Engineering Group 

 

 

APPLICATION FOR 

MINOR GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT 

FOR 

The Reserve  

At Lookout Mountain 
Submitted to 

Town of Florence, Arizona 

December 11, 2013 

 

PROPERTY OWNER 
RMG Lucky Hunt 65. LLC 

8800 N. Gainey Center Drive 
Suite 255 

Scottsdale, AZ 85258 
 (480) 609‐1200 

 

APPLICANT/DEVELOPER 
McRae Group of Companies 
8800 N Gainey Center Dr. 

Suite 255 
Scottsdale, AZ  85258 

(480) 609‐1200 
 

AGENT/ENGINEER 
UNITED ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC 

3205 W. Ray Road 
Suite 1 

Chandler, AZ  85226 
(480) 705‐5372 

 
UEG Project No. 15922   



Minor General Plan  4  The Reserve at Lookout Mountain 

Amendment  United Engineering Group 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1.  INTRODUCTION ..................................................................................................................................... 5 

2.  PROJECT JUSTIFICATION ....................................................................................................................... 7 

3.  CONCLUSION ....................................................................................................................................... 11 

 

 

FIGURES 

Figure 1 ‐ Florence General Plan ................................................................................................................... 5 

Figure 2 ‐ Hillside Photo ................................................................................................................................ 8 

Figure 3 ‐ Barclay Commercial Center........................................................................................................... 8 

 

 

EXHIBITS 

A. Vicinity Map 

B. Assessor Parcel Map 

C. General Plan Amendment Exhibit 

D. Surrounding Owners 

 

 



Minor Gen

Amendmen

 

1. INTRO

1

 

 

 

neral Plan 

nt 

ODUCTION 

.1 Purpose o

The purpo

project kn

the southw

A – Vicinit

Lucky  Hun

parcel num

Exhibit B –

application

 

The  Projec

Residentia

Plan Amen

(See Figur

appropriat

designatio

 

This  appli

informatio

property. T

f Request 

ose of  this  re

ow as The R

west corner o

ty Map)  The

nt,  LLC  (Own

mbers making

– Assessor Pa

n is only requ

ct  is  currentl

al 1  (MRD1) p

ndment  to am

re 1 & Exhibit

te  for  the 

ons.  

ication,  alon

on and docum

The Minor Ge

United E

equest  is  to  a

eserve at Loo

of Hunt Hwy 

 project has 

ers),  an  enti

g up this proj

arcel Map) Th

uesting a Mino

y  designated

per  the Flore

mend  the 11

t C – Existing 

property  to

g  with  the 

ments  it need

eneral Plan Am

Figure

5

Engineering Gr

allow  for  the

okout Mount

and Heritage

recently chan

ty  of  the Mc

ject are 200‐

hough the ent

or General Pla

d  as  Commun

ence 2020 Ge

.27 acre port

& Proposed 

day  and  in 

attached  ex

ds to approve

mendment A

e 1 ‐ Florence Ge

roup 

e developmen

tain  (the Proj

e Road in Pina

nged hands a

cRae Group 

‐25‐001C, 200

tire Project is

an Amendme

nity  Commer

eneral Plan.   

tion of  the si

Florence Ge

the  future

xhibits,  will 

e a Minor Ge

Application ca

eneral Plan

The Reserve a

nt of  a 65.07

ject). The Pro

al County, Ar

and is current

of  Companie

0‐25‐001E & 

s comprised o

ent to 11.27 a

rcial  (CC)  and

It  is  the  inte

ite designate

neral Plan).  

e  considering

provide  the

eneral Plan A

n be found in

at Lookout Mo

77  acre  resid

oject  is  locate

izona. (See Ex

tly owned by

es  (MGC).  Th

200‐25‐001F

of 65.07 acre

acres.  

d Medium De

ent of  this Ge

ed as CC  to M

This designat

g  its  surrou

e  Town  with

mendment o

n Appendix A

untain 

ential 

ed on 

Exhibit 

y RMG 

he  tax 

. (See 

s, this 

ensity 

eneral 

MDR1. 

tion is 

unding 

h  the 

on the 

A. 



Minor General Plan  6  The Reserve at Lookout Mountain 

Amendment  United Engineering Group 

 

1.2 Property Description 

The Project is located on the southwest corner of Hunt Highway and Heritage Road in Pinal 

County.   Refer  to  Exhibit A  –  Vicinity Map.    This  site, with  additional  land  to  the  south 

currently held by a separate MGC LLC will make up a premier hillside residential community 

as a focal point of entry into the Town of Florence.  As mentioned, the property is currently 

within the  jurisdiction of Pinal County and  is part of the Florence Magic Ranch Annexation 

expected  to be complete by mid 2014.   The APN’s consist of 200‐25‐001C & 200‐25‐001E 

(Portion). Refer to Exhibit B – Assessor Parcel Map.   A  legal description for the 11.27 acre 

portion being amended can be found in Appendix B. 

 

1.3 Proposed Minor General Plan Amendment 

The proposed Minor GPA will change the land use designation from Community Commercial 

(CC)  to Medium Density Residential  (MDR1).    (Refer  to Exhibit C – Existing and Proposed 

General Plan Land Use Designation).  The Subject is currently zoned AG within the County 

and  carries  no  Town  zoning.    Concurrent  with  the  annexation  and  GPA,  a  PUD  will  be 

requested on the subject property.  

The MDR1  land use  designation proposed with  this  application  is  consistent with nearby 

land uses located in the vicinity of the property and is necessary to support the needs of this 

developing area.   

1.4 Relationship to Surrounding Properties 

The surrounding properties in the immediate area is mostly undeveloped raw desert, more 

specifically  the Gila River  Indian Community  (GRIC)  to  the west, Arizona  State Trust  Land 

(ASTL)  to  the  north,  a  private  land  owner  to  the  east  and  another McRae Group  entity, 

Magic  Lake  80  LLC  to  the  which  carries  an  approved  PAD  within  Pinal  County.    Other 

surrounding property owners in the area include, Magic Ranch Subdivision & Country Club, 

future  Fry’s  grocery  store  within  the  Barclay  Group  Commercial  Master  Plan,  and  the 

Johnson Utilities WWTP and refuse  transfer station.  (See Exhibit D – Surrounding Owners 

Map)  

The surrounding General Plan land use designations are as follows: 

  North:  Medium Density Residential (MDR1) & Community Commercial (CC) 

  South:  Medium Density Residential (MDR1) 

  East:  Community Commercial (CC) 

  West:  No Town GP Designation, Gila River Indian Community (GRIC) 

   

As the Site is currently within the County and in the process of being annexed into the Town 

of Florence, there is no surrounding Town zoning at this time.  

 

 



Minor General Plan  7  The Reserve at Lookout Mountain 

Amendment  United Engineering Group 

 

 

2. PROJECT JUSTIFICATION 

2.1 Why is the current land use/circulation classification not suitable? 

This site has excellent characteristics that make it the ideal entry point along Hunt Hwy into 

the Town of Florence.   With  the  sites  topography and  close proximity  to  the  future Fry’s 

Grocery  Store  and  Commercial  Center  located  just  south,  this  site  has  an  excellent 

opportunity as a premiere hillside community with excellent views of the undisturbed desert 

of the surrounding GRIC and ASLD land.  

 

2.1 Does the proposal conform with  land use goals? Will the proposed change  in  land use or 
circulation do the following: 

 
a) Support the goals and policies of the General Plan; 

 
The  proposed  Minor  GPA  would  support  the  overall  policies  and  goals  of  the 

General  Plan  by  incorporating medium  density  residential  uses  in  proximity  to 

similar  land uses or where there  is a need for such uses.   The proposed  land uses 

are compatible with the existing terrain as evident by existing homes up and down 

Hunt Hwy.  

This proposal does not suggest any changes to the overall circulation system of the 

Florence General Plan. 

This project will also conform to the Park, trails and open space goal by providing 

ample hillside area to be uses by local and regional residents.  

b) Conform  to  the  proposed  range  of  land  uses,  densities,  and  intensity  of  uses, 

hierarchy of transportation system; and 

The proposed Medium Density Residential land uses included a variety of different 

housing  products  that  may  ultimately  be  utilized  on  the  property.      The 

amendment will not conflict with the hierarchy of roadways previously proposed in 

the General Plan.  Hunt Highway will remain designated as a Major Arterial.    

c) Avoid creation of isolated uses that will cause incompatible community form and 

a burden on services and circulation systems? 

The  proposed  Medium  Density  Residential  land  use  is  consistent  with  the 

surrounding designations.   No  incompatible or  isolated  land uses will be created, 

nor will any additional burden on services and circulation systems be created.   As 

mentioned,  the  amendment  is  only  11.27  acres  and will  be  consistent with  the 

surrounding designations.  



Minor Gen

Amendmen

 

2

neral Plan 

nt 

.2 What uniq
the develo
 
With the s

a  premier

exceeds  t

Barclay Gr

to the sou

large groc

the  future

immediate

que physical c
opment unde

sites unique t

  hillside  resi

he  need  for 

roup Commer

th has previo

ery anchor.   

e home  to  a 

ely adjacent is

United E

characteristic
r the existing

topography a

dential  comm

another  co

rcial Center. (

ously been sol

That anchor 

Fry’s Grocery

s un‐needed. 

Figure

8

Engineering Gr

cs of the site p
g classificatio

nd location a

munity  with 

mpeting  com

(See Figure 2 

ld to a local c

site was the

y  Store.    The

 (See Figure 

Figure 2 ‐ Hillsi

e 3 ‐ Barclay Com

roup 

present oppo
on?  

along Hunt Hw

amazing  vie

mmercial  dev

2 – Hillside Ph

commercial d

n sold to Sm

e need  for  a 

3 – Barclay C

ide Photo 

mmercial Center

The Reserve a

ortunities or c

wy, the oppo

ews  of  undist

velopment  n

hoto)  A porti

eveloper and

ith Food and

competing  c

Commercial C

r 

at Lookout Mo

constraints fo

ortunity to de

turbed  deser

ext  to  the  f

on of the pro

d site planned

d Drug with w

commercial  c

Center)    

untain 

or 

evelop 

rt,  far 

future 

operty 

d for a 

will be 

center 

 

 



Minor General Plan  9  The Reserve at Lookout Mountain 

Amendment  United Engineering Group 

 

2.3 What is the ability and capacity of the water and sewer system to accommodate 
development that may occur as a result of the General Plan Amendment without system 
extension or improvements? 
 
Water and Sewer services will be provided by Johnson Utilities, LLC (JUC).   Johnson Utilities 

has a regional WWTP located directly across Hunt Hwy for the project and has sufficient 

capacity to serve the site.  Additionally, JUC has regional water lines in Hunt Hwy that the 

project will be able to tie into.    

 

2.4 What  is  the  ability  of  the  existing  police  and  fire  department  personnel  to  provide 

adequate  emergency  services  according  to  acceptable  response  standards  set  by  the 

community? 

Police and Fire protection for the Project will be served by the Town of Florence.  Anthem at 

Merrill Ranch Fire Station is located approximately 4.5 miles south of this site.  However, it is 

understood  that  the  Town  is  anticipating  an  additional Magic  Ranch  Fire  Station  in  the 

coming years.  

 The  nearest  police  station  is  located  in  downtown  Florence,  approximately  12  miles 

southeast.   With  the pending Magic Ranch Annexation,  it  is anticipated  that an additional 

police substation will be constructed  in the vicinity of the project with the addition of  the 

added rooftops.   

Ongoing conversation between the Town of Florence and the applicant will continue so that 

both the emergency and fire response needs can be satisfied as the property moves forward 

with development.  

 

2.5 What is the ability of the proposed public and private open space, recreation, schools, and 
library  facilities  to meet  the projected demand of  future development without  reducing 
services below community standards?  

 
This application proposes to change the current land use designation from CC to MDR1. This 

land use and the specific development proposed for this property will slightly  increase the 

population  densities  and  thus  the  need  for  public  services  such  as  schools  or  parks will 

increase slightly also. However, as this area is part of a larger community, the hillside areas 

that are deemed undevelopable will be utilized as open space with trails and parks.  

 
2.6 What  is  the  proposed  fiscal  impact  of  future  development  based  on  evaluation  of 

projected  revenues and  the additional  cost of providing public  facilities and  services  to 
accommodate projected increases or decreases in population and development that could 
occur as a result of the General Plan amendment?  

 



Minor General Plan  10  The Reserve at Lookout Mountain 

Amendment  United Engineering Group 

 

The proposed  fiscal  impact  for  the Project  is expected  to be beneficial  to  the Town once 

development  commences.  The  added  rooftops/residents  will  bring  added  taxes  and 

economic benefit to surrounding businesses.  

 

As previously stated, the added demand on public facilities will be minimal as wet utilities 

will be provided by JUC. 

 
2.7 How will  the  proposed  amendment  affect  the  ability  of  the  community  to  sustain  the 

physical and  cultural  resources,  including air quality, water quality, energy, natural and 
human‐made resources necessary to meet the demands of present and future residents?  

 
This amendment and the proposed subdivision will be subject to and comply with all Town, 
County, State, and Federal regulations as they may apply.  
 
The properties water and  sewer  systems will be  regulated by  the Arizona Department of 
Environmental Quality.   Being under this regulator, water resources within the area will be 
held to the highest of standards.   
 

2.8  What  changes,  if  any,  in  Federal  or  State  laws  or  policies  substantiate  the  proposed 
amendment?   
 
There  are  no  changes  in  Federal  or  State  Laws  or  Policies  necessitated  by  this  proposed 
General  Plan  Amendment.  This  application  is  being  submitted  in  conformance  with  the 
procedures of the Town of Florence minor General Plan amendment procedures.   

 
 

 

   



Minor General Plan  11  The Reserve at Lookout Mountain 

Amendment  United Engineering Group 

 

3. CONCLUSION 

  In Conclusion, given the statement and  justifications above, The Reserve at Lookout Mountain 

project sill conforms to the goals and policies set forth by the Town in it 2020 General Plan and 

is a development that will provide a high quality of life for its future residents.   The vision of the 

premier hillside community  in  this  location and  the  request  to amend  the General Plan  in  the 

location  would  benefit  the  town  greatly.    The  intent  of  this  request  is  to  1)  removed  the 

Community Commercial land use on 11.27 acres of the project and 2) transition the Community 

Commercial to Medium Density Residential (MDR1). 

 

   



Minor General Plan  12  The Reserve at Lookout Mountain 

Amendment  United Engineering Group 

 

 

EXHIBITS 

 
   











Minor General Plan  13  The Reserve at Lookout Mountain 

Amendment  United Engineering Group 

 

Appendix A 

   







Minor General Plan  14  The Reserve at Lookout Mountain 

Amendment  United Engineering Group 

 

Appendix B 

 















 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8c. 

MEETING DATE:  March 17, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                     Community Development Director          
                                      
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1427-14: Ultra Health, LLC  
                    (PZC-06-14-CUP) 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1427-14 Ultra Health, LLC, PZC-06-14-CUP   Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 8 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1427-14 for a proposed Conditional Use Permit for a 
medical marijuana dispensary.  

REQUEST: 

A Conditional Use Permit request by Duke Rodriguez, of Ultra Health, LLC, 
on behalf of River Bottom, LLC, to allow for a proposed Medical Marijuana 
Dispensary on a Highway Business Commercial (B-2) zoned property 
located at 2501 N. Pinal Parkway Avenue, Florence, Arizona. 
 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Town of Florence adopted a comprehensive approach to the State law regarding 
medical marijuana facilities. First and foremost, the new medical marijuana industry 
allowed by State law presented the need to better define the types of uses allowable 
under the new State law. Once those new uses were more clearly defined in a new 
chapter of the Town Code (Chapter 152) titled Medical Marijuana, the Town then 
developed requirements pertaining to the location and operation of these new uses.  
Locational criteria is first defined at the Zoning District level and then narrowed down by 
additional locational criteria, such as the distances between similar uses, distances to 
schools and other factors. 

 
In general, the Town’s medical marijuana ordinance allows all of the cultivation, 
operation and dispensary related medical marijuana uses to occur within the Town’s 
Light Industrial (LI) Zoning District with a Conditional Use Permit (CUP). In addition, 
dispensary facilities are also allowed within the Town’s Highway Business Commercial 
(B-2) Zoning District with a Conditional Use Permit. Any type of new facility related to 
this ordinance is subject to meeting the terms of their respective CUP and also would 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1427-14 Ultra Health, LLC.  PZC-06-14-CUP   Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 
Page 2 of 8 

need to obtain required zoning clearance from the Town. In addition, all such facilities 
must be in compliance with State law and the AZDHS rules and regulations. 
 
Ultra Health, LLC, is proposing a medical marijuana dispensary for the purpose of 
dispensing medical marijuana to qualifying patients in the designated service area at 
2501 N. Pinal Parkway Avenue, Florence, Arizona, 85132.  The Arizona Department of 
Health Services (AZDHS) has designated the service area as Community Health 
Analysis Area (CHAA) No.95 Florence. The service area is currently estimated at less 
than 100 qualifying card holders, which will likely represent two to four patients per day 
during the first year of operation. 
 
No cultivation is proposed at this location. Product will be delivered from offsite 
cultivation sites located primarily in Phoenix and central Arizona. It is estimated that the 
amount of product on hand at the dispensary at any given time will be no more than 
approximately five pounds and product will be stored nightly in a secure vault. 
Qualifying patients will not be allowed to consume or use the product onsite. 
 
The one-story building includes 1,728 sq. ft. of floor area with a single east facing 
entrance. A single access point is in response to the Arizona Medical Marijuana Act 
specifying only a single secured ingress and egress be provided to dispensaries. 
However, the regulations also allow a second emergency exit for fire and safety 
purposes. With the relatively small size of the building, the applicant prefers to keep the 
single secured primary entry and exit door and not provide a second emergency exit for 
the building, but this is subject to further Town review. 
 
The following is a summary of security measures to be included in this dispensary. All 
final security requirements will be confirmed with the Town of Florence prior to opening:  
 
• 100% digital high-resolution cameras with weather rated and vandal resistant     

enclosures 
• Motion detection enabled, low light cameras 
• Camera tampering and connection instant notification alerts 
• 100% interior and exterior site coverage with full visibility of perimeter 
• 24/7 recording with 30 day rolling storage 
• Clustered recording system allows migration of cameras in event of a recorder 

failure 
• Redundant storage system with dual drives in the event of a single hard drive 

failure and dedicated battery back-up 
• Onsite and off-site monitoring with text and email alerts 
• On staff security systems experts 
• Full property alarm system including buildings, perimeter, and gates 
• Full perimeter proximity detection to detect intrusion through non-designated 

entrances/exits 
• Radio Frequency (RF) ID triggered door locks and entrance gates 
• Unique RF ID codes for every staff member 
• Centrally managed badge system 
 
 
 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1427-14 Ultra Health, LLC.  PZC-06-14-CUP   Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 
Page 3 of 8 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The site is the current location of the River Bottom Grill restaurant. The proposed 
dispensary will be located on the River Bottom Grill property, which contains 
approximately 0.81 acres. The proposed medical marijuana dispensary will operate 
from a 1,728 sq. ft. fully enclosed and secured building. The restaurant and bar will 
cease to operate to allow for this use.  
 
Florence Ultra Health LLC, dispensary will complete a tenant improvement (TI) to the 
existing main structure. The interior space of the former River Bottom Grill will be 
demolished and reconfigured to include an entry waiting/lobby room, receptionist area, 
retail dispensary area, a general office, a storage room and two ADA compliant 
restrooms. Non-permanent additions currently attached to the existing facility will be 
removed. The exterior elevation of the building will be enhanced and the height of the 
building will be raised to screen mechanical equipment. 
 
A. The site of the proposed use and the surrounding land uses; 
 
Finding:  
 
The site is currently zoned Highway Business Commercial (B-2) and per the Town of 
Florence Development Code Title XV: Land Usage Chapter 150: Medical Marijuana 
Dispensary (excluding cultivation) is an allowed use on a Highway Business 
Commercial (B-2) Zoning District with an approved Conditional Use Permit (CUP) as 
long as the sensitive use distances have been observed. 
 
Florence Ultra Health LLC, dispensary will complete a tenant improvement (TI) to the 
existing main structure. The interior space of the former River Bottom Grill will be 
demolished and reconfigured to include an entry waiting/lobby room, receptionist area, 
retail dispensary area, a general office, a storage room and two ADA compliant 
restrooms. Non-permanent additions currently attached to the existing facility will be 
removed. The exterior elevation of the building will be enhanced and the height of the 
building will be raised to screen mechanical equipment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1427-14 Ultra Health, LLC.  PZC-06-14-CUP   Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 
Page 4 of 8 

 
B. Access to the site; and 

 
Finding:  
 
Vehicular access to the site is provided from Highway 79 on the northern most part of 
the site and further refinements to site will be addressed with this application and a 
companion Design Review application to ensure improved access and circulation.  Staff 
notes that only one access point will be necessary to accommodate access to the 
proposed use. 
 
C.   The impact on adjoining and surrounding property if the application is 
approved. 
 
Finding:  
 
The Town’s 2020 General Plan identifies this area along Highway 79 as a future 
business and mixed use corridor.   
 
The evaluation of potential impacts of a conditionally permitted use to adjoining and/or 
surrounding properties is a factor that requires careful consideration. In general, a 
conditionally permitted use is a use that might work at one location within a given zoning 
district, but might be inappropriate at another location within the same zoning district.  
Potential compatibility issues have been presented to the Town regarding other 
proposed medical marijuana dispensaries cases. However as of this writing, no 
objections have been received regarding this case, nor has staff received any favorable 
comments. The proposed business meets the separation criteria outlined in the Town’s 
medical marijuana ordinance.  

 
Surrounding Land Uses and  Zoning  Districts: 

   
Zoning Classification 

 
Existing Use 

 
North 

 
 Highway Business Commercial 

(B-2)  

 
Vacant Land and  the Florence 
Immigrant & Refugee Rights 

Facility 
 

East 
 

Town Boundary 
 

Vacant Land 
 

South 
 

Town Boundary
 

Vacant Land 
 

West 
 

Highway Business Commercial 
(B-2) 

 
            Vacant Land 

 

On-Site 
 

Highway Business Commercial 
(B-2)

 

Restaurant/Bar 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1427-14 Ultra Health, LLC.  PZC-06-14-CUP   Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 
Page 5 of 8 

 
Staff has detailed all sensitive uses and required separations per the Town Code in the 
following table. 
 
Separation Distances 

Use or use classification  Required 
Separation  

Provided 
Separation  

Another Medical Marijuana Dispensary   2,640 ft.  32 miles  

Public or private park  660 ft.  1.4 miles  
Public Library (Pinal Law Library) 660 ft.  1.04 miles 
Massage Establishment  660 ft.  21 miles  
Place of worship (Union Baptist) 660 ft.  1.17 miles  
Sexually oriented business  660 ft.  N/A  
Teen club  660 ft.  22 miles  
*Schools (Florence K-8 Elementary)  660 ft.  1.8 miles  
Public or private recreational center  660 ft.  24 miles  
Residential district boundary  660 ft.  .66 miles 
 
*500 ft. per State statutes.  
 
Distances are approximate. Per 152.04, Distance Separation Requirements, the 
distance separation provision is not applicable for cases where the aforementioned 
uses are separated by a state highway, except as governed by the “Arizona Medical 
Marijuana Act” and applicable state statutes. 
 
In making its recommendation, the Planning and Zoning Commission and Town Council 
may include conditions that are deemed necessary to protect the public health, safety, 
and general welfare. These conditions may include, but are not limited to:   
 

1. Regulation of use 
2. Special yard requirements 
3. Special buffers, fences or walls 
4. Special parking areas 
5. Street dedications and/or improvements or appropriate bonds 
6. Regulation of access points 
7. Sign restrictions 
8. Required maintenance of yard 
9. Regulations of odors, noise, light or other special environmental factors 
10. Restrictions of hours of activity 
11. Duration of use 
12. Completion of development 
13. Other conditions that will make the proposed use more compatible and 

harmonious with the surrounding land uses. In no case, however, shall these 
conditions be less restrictive than those found in the existing zoning 
classification 

 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1427-14 Ultra Health, LLC.  PZC-06-14-CUP   Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 
Page 6 of 8 

In addition to any of the above special conditions, the Planning and Zoning Commission 
and Town Council shall impose the following general requirements on every Conditional 
Use Permit that is granted:   
 

1. No Conditional Use approval shall be final until all conditions imposed have 
been met 

 
2. All of the special conditions shall constitute restrictions that run with the land 

and that shall be binding upon the owner of the land, successors or assigns 
 

3. The special conditions imposed by the Planning and Zoning Commission 
and/or Town Council shall be consented to in writing by the applicant prior to 
issuance of a Conditional Use Permit 

 
4. The Resolution of the Town Council granting the application together with all 

consent forms shall be recorded by the recorder of the County 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
Town Staff has complied with all applicable Town requirements and Arizona Revised 
Statutes regarding public participation. Public notice for the Planning and Zoning 
Commission Public Hearing was mailed to all property owners within three hundred 
(300) feet of the site.   

 
Property posting for notice of public hearings for a Conditional Use Permit was posted 
on the site per Town requirements.  Advertisements in the local Town paper have been 
posted per Town requirements. Under Arizona Revised Statutes, Title 9, Section-462.04 
and Town of Florence Development Code, a public hearing is required for a Conditional 
Use Permit.  
 
As of the writing of this report, staff has received two letters of opposition for this case. At 
the Planning and Zoning Commission Public Hearing for this case, comments were made 
for and against this application. 
 
The tentative schedule for Planning and Zoning/Town Council meetings for this case 
are as follows: 
 
February 12, 2014            Planning and Zoning Public Hearing  
 
March 17, 2014              Town Council Public Hearing and Action 
 
All meetings will be held at Town Hall Council Chambers – 775 North Main Street. 
 
FINDINGS: 
 
Staff presents the following findings for the consideration of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and Town Council: 
 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1427-14 Ultra Health, LLC.  PZC-06-14-CUP   Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 
Page 7 of 8 

1. A Medical Marijuana Dispensary is a conditionally permitted use in a Highway 
Business Commercial (B-2) Zoning District, subject to complying with applicable 
locational criteria. 

 
2. Access, circulation and parking for the subject use conforms to applicable codes. 
 
3. The proposed use is located within an existing hospital building, which supports the 

professional and medical nature of the proposed use and enhances compatibility. 
 
4. Approval of the subject use would be conditioned to further enhance compatibility of 

this use with on-site uses and adjacent and surrounding properties. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Unable to determine as there is no long term track record of this type of use in Arizona. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission has forwarded a unanimous favorable 
recommendation on the proposed Medical Marijuana Dispensary Conditional Use 
Permit to the Mayor and Town Council, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. This Conditional Use Permit shall be revoked and become null and void if the 

applicant is not granted approval by the Arizona Department of Health Services to 
operate a medical marijuana dispensary at this location and/or if such approval from 
the Arizona Department of Health Services is revoked or expires.  
 

2.  This Conditional Use Permit shall be revoked and become null and void if the 
subject property is approved by the Arizona Department of Health Services for a 
medical marijuana dispensary and such operations are not open for business within 
six months of the Department of Health Services (DHS) approval.  

 
3. This Conditional Use Permit shall be revoked and become null and void if the 

conditionally permitted use ceases business operations at the subject location for 
more than six months.  

 
4. Property owner or their lessee shall connect to the Town sewer system at owner’s 

expense when public sewer is extended to the subject property. Upon connection, 
owner shall abandon all existing septic systems on the site at owner’s expense.  

 
5. Final plans for grading, drainage and applicable public utility improvements are 

subject to the review and approval of the Town Engineer. 
 

6. Property owner or their lessee shall remove the existing non-conforming mobile 
home on the subject property prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for 
the medical marijuana dispensary. 

 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1427-14 Ultra Health, LLC.  PZC-06-14-CUP   Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 
Page 8 of 8 

7. Development of the site will be in compliance with an approved Design Review 
Application. 

 
8. Property owner agrees to waive claims for diminution in value pursuant to 

Proposition 207 [A.R.S. § 12-1134] pursuant to the waiver attached hereto as Exhibit 
B. 

 
9. All work within the ADOT right-of-way is subject to ADOT reviews and permitting. 

 
10. Signage shall comply with all applicable Town Codes and is subject to Design 

Review approval.  
 

11. Building ingress/egress subject to the review and approval of the Town Building 
Official and Fire Marshal. 

 
12. The development of the subject site shall be in conformance with any applicable 

Town Codes, Ordinances, Building Codes and Fire Codes.  
 

13. This Conditional Use Permit shall be revoked and become null and void if any of the 
conditions of the Conditional Use Permit and applicable codes are not met. 

 
14. Any additional conditions deemed necessary by the Town Council. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution No. 1427-14 
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Application  
Notice to paper 
Letters of opposition 
Narrative 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 1427-14 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW A 
PROPOSED MEDICAL MARIJUANA DISPENSARY ON PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 2501 NORTH PINAL PARKWAY AVENUE, FLORENCE, 
ARIZONA, (PZC-06-14-CUP).   

 

WHEREAS, a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) application was filed by Ultra Health, 
LLC to allow a proposed medical marijuana dispensary at 2501 North Pinal Parkway 
Avenue; Florence, Arizona, and 
 

WHEREAS, a Conditional Use Permit has been proposed and a public hearing 
has been held by the Planning and Zoning Commission; and 

 
WHEREAS, the property is zoned Highway Business Commercial (B-2), which is 

consistent with the Town’s General Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, the property’s zoning ordinance (B-2) could allow for a medical 

marijuana dispensary with an approved Conditional Use Permit; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the Town of Florence has 

considered all public comments made at their hearing and have forwarded a favorable 
recommendation for this case to the Mayor and Town Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, said proposal has been considered by the Council and the 

Conditional Use Permit has been found to be appropriate and thereby should be 
imposed. 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona, 

as follows: 
 

1. The Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona, approve the 
Conditional Use Permit request for the subject property described in Exhibit A, 
subject to the following special conditions that are deemed necessary to protect 
the public health, safety and general welfare: 

 
a) This Conditional Use Permit shall be revoked and become null 

and void if the applicant is not granted approval by the Arizona 
Department of Health Services to operate a medical marijuana 
dispensary at this location and/or if such approval from the 
Arizona Department of Health Services is revoked or expires.  
 



2 
 

b)  This Conditional Use Permit shall be revoked and become null 
and void if the subject property is approved by the Arizona 
Department of Health Services for a medical marijuana 
dispensary and such operations are not open for business 
within six months of the Department of Health Services (DHS) 
approval.  
 

c) This Conditional Use Permit shall be revoked and become null 
and void if the conditionally permitted use ceases business 
operations at the subject location for more than six months.  

 
d) Property owner or their lessee shall connect to the Town sewer 

system at owner’s expense when public sewer is extended to 
the subject property. Upon connection, owner shall abandon all 
existing septic systems on the site at owner’s expense.  

 
e) Final plans for grading, drainage and applicable public utility 

improvements are subject to the review and approval of the 
Town Engineer. 

 
f) Property owner or their lessee shall remove the existing non-

conforming mobile home on the subject property prior to the 
issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for the medical 
marijuana dispensary. 

 
g) Development of the site will be in compliance with an approved 

Design Review Application. 
 

h) Property owner agrees to waive claims for diminution in value 
pursuant to Proposition 207 [A.R.S. § 12-1134] pursuant to the 
waiver attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

 
i) All work within the ADOT right-of-way is subject to ADOT 

reviews and permitting. 
 

j) Signage shall comply with all applicable Town Codes and is 
subject to Design Review approval.  

 
k) Building ingress/egress subject to the review and approval of 

the Town Building Official and Fire Marshal. 
 

l) The development of the subject site shall be in conformance 
with any applicable Town Codes, Ordinances, Building Codes 
and Fire Codes.  

 



3 
 

m) This Conditional Use Permit shall be revoked and become null 
and void if any of the conditions of the Conditional Use Permit 
and applicable codes are not met. 

 
2. The Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona, approve the 

Conditional Use Permit request, subject to the following general conditions:  
 
a. No Conditional Use Permit approval shall be final until all conditions 

imposed have been met 
 

b. All of the special conditions shall constitute restrictions which run with 
the land and which shall be binding upon the owner of the land, 
successors or assigns 

 
c. The special conditions imposed by the Planning and Zoning 

Commission and/or Council shall be consented to in writing by the 
applicant prior to issuance of a Conditional Use Permit 

 
d. The Resolution of the Council granting the application together with all             

consent forms shall be recorded by the County Recorder 
 

3. This Conditional Use Permit shall be recorded within thirty days of Mayor and                     
Council’s approval of said Conditional Use Permit. 

 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, this 17th day of March, 2014. 
 
 
  ___________________________ 
  Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM 
         
______________________                             _____________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk             James E.  Mannato, Town Attorney  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



North Side Canal

Gila River

200-33-009M

200-33-009C

200-33-012A

200-33-0030

200-33-009J

200-33-009K

200-33-009F

200-33-013B

200-33-008A

PIN
AL

 PA
RK

WA
Y A

VE

This map is created for reference purposes only and is to be used at your own risk.  The Town of Florence makes no warranty as to the accuracy or completeness of the information 
contained in this  map and assumes no liability for any errors or omissions contained therein, nor for any direct, indirect, or consequential damages which may be caused by its use.  
It is the user's responsibility to verify all information conatined herein.                                          FlorenceDispensaryExhibitA.mxd              TOF GIS  01/13/2014

0 100 200
Feet

´

Exhibit A:  Florence Dispensary PZC 6-14-CUPExhibit A:  Florence Dispensary PZC 6-14-CUP
Town ofTown of
FlorenceFlorence

Dispensary Site Parcel Lines
Town Limits















	   1 

 
16624 N. 90th Street, Suite 200 � Scottsdale, AZ 85260 

Phone: (480) 404-6699 � Fax: (800) 829-3575 
 

ULTRA HEALTH FLORENCE NARRATIVE 

 Ultra Health Florence is proposing a remodel project at 2501 N. Pinal Parkway Ave, 

Florence, AZ 85132 (the “Project”). The intended Project is to provide a facility for dispensing 

medical marijuana to qualifying patients in the designated service area. The Arizona Department 

of Health Services (AZDHS) has designated the service area as Community Health Analysis 

Area (CHAA) #95 Florence. The service area is currently estimated at less than 100 qualifying 

cardholders, which will likely represent two to four patients per day during the first year of 

operation. 

 The proposed Project is intended on an existing site (APN: 200-33-003) consisting of an 

approximately 0.81 ac. (37,595 sq. ft.) site in a business highway commercial zoning district (B-

2). The proposed medical marijuana dispensary will operate from a 1,728 sq. ft. fully enclosed, 

secured building. Security will be enhanced as required by the state of Arizona. The following is 

a summary of security to be included in the Project, but all final security requirements will be 

confirmed with local law enforcement prior to opening: 

- 100% Digital high-resolution cameras with weather rated and vandal resistant enclosures 
- Motion detection enabled, low light cameras 
- Camera tampering and connection instant notification alerts 
- 100% interior and exterior site coverage with full visibility of perimeter 
- 24/7 recording with 30 day rolling storage 
- Clustered recording system allows migration of cameras in event of a recorder failure 
- Redundant storage system with dual drives in the event of a single hard drive failure and 

dedicated battery back up 
- Onsite and off-site monitoring with text and email alerts



	   2 

 
- On staff security systems experts 
- Full property alarm system including buildings, perimeter, and gates 
- Full perimeter proximity detection to detect intrusion through non-designated 

entrance/exits 
- Radio Frequency (RF) ID triggered door locks and entrance gates 
- Unique RF ID codes for every staff member 
- Centrally managed badge system 

 
 The Project is to be a tenant improvement (TI) using the existing main structure. The 

interior space of the former River Bottom Grill will have interior demolition and the interior will 

be reconfigured to include an entry waiting/lobby room, receptionist area, retail dispensary area, 

a general office, a storage room, and two ADA compliant restrooms. Nonpermanent additions 

currently attached to the existing facility will be removed in accordance with the demolition plan 

submitted. The exterior elevation of the building will be enhanced and the height of the building 

will be raised to screen mechanical equipment. The overall finish of the building will be 

upgraded to augment the appearance of the facility to nearby traffic. The remodeled facility shall 

provide a major improvement from the existing facility.  

 Dispensaries allow for the cultivation and sale of medical marijuana, however, no 

cultivation is proposed at this location. Product will be delivered from offsite cultivation site(s) 

located primarily in Phoenix and central Arizona. It is estimated that the amount of product on 

hand at the dispensary at any given time will be no more than approximately five pounds and 

will be stored nightly in a secure, 600+ pound vault. Qualifying patients will not be allowed to 

consume or use the product onsite.  

 The one-story building includes 1,728 sq. ft. of floor area with a single east facing 

entrance. A single access is provided to the building, in accordance with the Arizona Medical 

Marijuana Act specifying only a single secured ingress and egress be provided to dispensaries, 

however, the regulations also allow a second emergency exit for fire and safety purposes. With 

the relatively small size of the building, the applicant chooses to keep the single secured primary 

entry and exit door and not provide a 2nd emergency exit for the building.  



	   3 

 Adequate separation distances as required by the state of Arizona and the Town of Florence 

are provided from other dispensaries, schools, public or private recreation center, parks, public 

library, place of worship, massage establishment, sexually oriented business, teen club and 

residential areas. The nearest residential neighborhood is approximately 3,500 feet from the 

proposed site. 

 Emergency and regular vehicular access to the site is provided from Highway 79. Parking 

provides fourteen parking spaces meeting the Town of Florence Code of Ordinances 

requirement. Adequate roadway dedication, open space, parking areas and building setbacks are 

included in this development proposal. Site plan, elevations, landscaping, lighting and grading 

and drainage are subject to Design Review Board approval. Applicant will be compliant with any 

signage requirements per the Town of Florence 

 

//attachments included 

	  























Healing Healthcare 3, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

FLORENCE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Submission to the Town of Florence 
 
 

  



	   1 

APPLICANT/OWNER 
Applicant: Ultra Health, LLC   Phone: 480-404-6699 
Attention: Duke Rodriguez    Email: duke@ultrahealth.com 
Address 16624 N 90th St, Ste 200 
Scottsdale, AZ 85260 
 
Project Data: 
Proposed Project 
Site Area: 37,595 sq. ft. 
Floor Area: 1,728 sq. ft. 

 Parking Spaces Required/ Provided: 12/14 
Building Height: Allowed/ Provided 55’/18’ 10” 
Hours of Operation 8 AM- 8 PM Daily 

 
Surrounding Land Use and Zoning Districts1  

 
Land Use Designation Zoning Classification Existing Use 

North Highway Business 
Commercial 

Highway Business Commercial 
(B-2) 

Immigration 
Center 

East 
Town Boundary Town Boundary Vacant Land 

South 
Town Boundary Town Boundary Vacant Land 

West Highway Business 
Commercial 

Highway Business Commercial 
(B-2) Vacant Land 

Onsite Highway Business 
Commercial 

Highway Business Commercial 
(B-2) Vacant Land 

 
Separation Distances2 
Use or use classification Required Separation 

Distance 
Provided Separation 
Distance 

Another Medical Marijuana Dispensary or 
Offsite cultivation site 

2,640 ft. 32 miles 

Public or private park 660 ft. 1.4 miles 
Public Library 660 ft. 1.7 miles 
Massage Establishment 660 ft. 21 miles 
Place of worship 660 ft. 1.2 miles 
Sexually oriented business 660 ft. N/A 
Teen club 660 ft. 22 miles 
Schools 660 ft. 1.9 miles 
Public or private recreational center 660 ft. 24 miles 
Residential district boundary 660 ft. 3,500 feet 

 
 
	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
1	  This project was reviewed under the Town of Florence Code of Ordinances.	  
2 COO 152.04. 



	   2 

OVERVIEW 
 
Ultra Health Florence is requesting Use Permit approval for a medical marijuana dispensary on an 
approximately 0.81 ac. (37,595 sq. ft.) site, located at 2501 N. Pinal Parkway Ave, Florence, AZ 
85132 in business highway commercial zoning district (B-2). The proposed medical marijuana 
dispensary will operate from a 1,728 sq. ft. fully enclosed, secured building. Dispensaries allow 
for the cultivation and sale of medical marijuana, however, no cultivation is proposed at this 
location and the product will be delivered from offsite cultivation site(s) located primarily in 
Phoenix and central Arizona. Ultra Health Florence will dispense the prescribed medical 
marijuana to eligible cardholders with illnesses and afflictions that are recognized as debilitating 
medical conditions under the Arizona Medical Marijuana Act (AMMA). The applicant has a 
Dispensary Registration Certificate for Community Health Analysis Area #95 Florence.  
 
The one-story building includes 1,728 sq. ft. of floor area with a single east facing entrance and 
contains a waiting room, product display area, client meeting rooms, product storage area, 
manager’s office and restroom. A single access is provided to the building, in accordance with 
the AMMA that specifies only a single secured ingress and egress be provided to dispensaries, 
however, the regulations also allow a second emergency exit for fire and safety purposes. With 
the relatively small size of the building, the applicants may choose to keep the single secured 
primary entry and exit door and not provide a 2nd emergency exit for the building. Adequate 
separation distances as required by Code, are provided from other dispensaries, schools, public or 
private recreation center, parks, public library, place of worship, massage establishment, sexually 
oriented business, teen club and residential areas, as shown in the table above. The nearest 
residential neighborhood is approximately 3,500 feet from the proposed site. 
 
DEFINITION 
 
The Town of Florence Code of Ordinances (“COO”) defines a Medical Marijuana Dispensary use 
as: 
 

“A building, dwelling, structure or premises used to acquire, possess, cultivate, 
manufacture, deliver, transfer, transport, sell, distribute, transmit, give, dispense or 
otherwise provide medical marijuana in any manner to patients or designated 
caregivers pursuant to the authority contained in A.R.S. §§ 36-2801 et seq.” 

 
A Medical Marijuana Dispensary and related activities must be conducted indoors and comply 
with all requirements of Town of Florence Code, Chapter 152 (See Attachment #1). 
 
SITE PLAN 
 
The Medical Marijuana Dispensary is located on a 0.81 acre site and will be housed within a 
1,728 sq. ft. building. Vehicular access to the site is provided from Highway 79. Parking 
provides FOURTEEN (14) parking spaces meeting the COO requirement. Adequate roadway 
dedication, open space, parking areas and building setbacks are included in this development 
proposal. Site plan, elevations, landscaping, lighting and grading and drainage are subject to 
Design Review Board approval. We will be compliant with any signage requirements per the 



	   3 

Town of Florence. 
 
ANALYSIS OF THE USE PERMIT CRITERIA 
 
COO Chapter 152 regulates the location, function, and operation of medical marijuana 
dispensaries. In addition to meeting those requirements, the COO provides that a Use Permit 
analyze the impact on surrounding properties and to assure that granting of the Use Permit will 
not create an adverse impact or negative impact on surrounding properties and uses. 
Traditionally, planning commissions have used FOUR (4) criteria when deciding to grant a Use 
Permit related to medical marijuana and these criteria are discussed in greater detail below. 
 

1. The proposed use will not be detrimental to health, safety, or general welfare of 
persons living or working in the vicinity, to adjacent property, to the 
neighborhood, or to the public in general; 

 
The site is zoned as Highway Business Commercial (B-2) and is surrounded by other 
industrial and commercial uses. The dispensary provides a remodeled building, which is 
secured and self-contained on the 0.81 acre lot. The use is not considered to be a 
significant generator of traffic. Card holders will drive to this facility, park their vehicle 
in the site parking lot, enter and exit the building from the single entrance on the east side 
of the building and leave the site again. Employees are professional care givers who have 
passed mandated, verified background checks and have been accepted as being suitable 
and responsible. No consumption of this product is permitted within the building, on the 
site, or near this location. Cardholders are generally expected to return home with the 
product. This use will operate similar to retail, office or storage uses. The site and 
security plans will have to be reviewed by the Town Police Department and deemed 
acceptable for this location and type of use. The dispensary does not create an undue 
impact, nuisance, or safety hazard upon adjoining properties or people working or 
residing in the area. 

 
2. The proposed use conforms with the purposes, intent, and policies of the General 

Plan and its policies and any applicable area, neighborhood, or other plan adopted 
by the Town Council; 

 
The Medical Marijuana Dispensary is located in the Highway Business Commercial (B-2) 
zoning district and is adjacent to other industrial land use to the north and west, and 
adjacent to commercial uses to the south and east.  No residential areas are located in the 
vicinity. This project is consistent with Code for use, size, operations and security, 
setbacks, design and separation from other land uses and zoning districts. 

 
3. The proposed use conforms to the conditions, requirements, or standards 

required by the Zoning Code and any other applicable local or State 
requirements; 

 
Highway Business Commercial (B-2) zoning districts allow Medical Marijuana 
Dispensaries as Conditional Uses, subject to conformance with the General Regulations 



	   4 

of Chapter 152 of COO and requirements for granting a Use Permit. The Medical 
Marijuana Dispensary complies with these requirements set forth in the Code of 
Ordinances Chapter 152, with regard to the location, separation distances, general 
function, hours of operation and a security plan for the issuance of a Use Permit. In 
addition, the dispensary must receive the approval of Arizona Department of Health 
Services (pursuant to Arizona Revised Statues Title 36, Chapter 28.1) for registration and 
certification concurrently to a Use Permit authorization by Florence, which is a condition 
of the application. 

 
 

4. The proposed  uses, as  conditioned, would not unreasonably  interfere  with the 
use and enjoyment of nearby properties. 

	  
Ultra Health Florence has reviewed all of the requirements pertaining to the site and 
operation of the use and believes that the proposed Medical Marijuana Dispensary will 
not unreasonably interfere with the use and enjoyment of nearby property owners.   
The dispensary will not generate excessive traffic, noise, dust, or odor and is reasonably 
compatible with surrounding uses in the area.  The dispensary is in compliance with all 
Florence and State requirements for dispensing, function, and operations and is subject to 
certification and approval by the AZ Department of Health Services.    

 
Attachments: 
 

1. Supplement – A, COO Section 152 Medical Marijuana 
2. Exhibit A – Legal name of Medical Marijuana Dispensary and Offsite Cultivation 

Location 
3. Exhibit B – Name, Address, and Birth dates of each Officer and Board Member of 

Nonprofit Medical Marijuana Dispensary 
4. Exhibit C – Ultra Health Florence Operating Procedures Manual 
5. Exhibit D – Notarized Certification: No Officer or Board Member convicted of 

violent crime 
6. Exhibit E – Notarized Certification: No Officer or Board Member convicted of 

violation of Controlled Substances Act 
7. Exhibit F – Notarized Certification: No Officer or Board Member has served as 

Officer or Board Member for a Medical Marijuana Dispensary that has had its 
Registration Certificate revoked 

 
  



	   5 

Supplement 1 
 
Supplement – A, Section 152 Medical Marijuana 
 
Section 152.03(A) Conditional Use Permit – All medical marijuana operations, including 
medical marijuana designated caregiver cultivation locations, medical marijuana dispensary 
offsite cultivation locations, medical marijuana dispensaries and medical marijuana infusion 
facilities shall require the approval of a conditional use permit in the Highway Business 
Commercial (B-2) and § 150.064 Light Industrial (Ll), which this site is zoned. 
 
Section 152.03(B) Zoning Clearance - All medical marijuana operations, including medical 
marijuana dispensary offsite cultivation locations, medical marijuana dispensaries and 
medical marijuana infusion facilities shall require a zoning clearance. 
 
Section 152.04 Distance Separation Requirements: 
 
(A) All medical marijuana dispensaries, medical marijuana dispensary offsite cultivation 
locations and medical marijuana infusion facilities shall meet the following minimum 
location requirements: 
 

(1) No medical marijuana dispensary, medical marijuana dispensary offsite 
cultivation location or medical marijuana infusion facility shall be operated or 
maintained within 2,640 feet of another medical marijuana dispensary, medical 
marijuana dispensary offsite cultivation location or medical marijuana infusion 
facility. 

 
Ultra Health Florence will not be located within 2,640 feet of another medical 
marijuana dispensary, medical marijuana dispensary offsite cultivation location, 
or medical marijuana infusion facility. 

 
(2) No medical marijuana dispensary, medical marijuana dispensary offsite 
cultivation location or medical marijuana infusion facility shall be operated or 
maintained within 660 feet of any sensitive uses within the corporate limits of 
Florence. This distance separation provision is not applicable for cases where the 
aforementioned uses are separated by a state highway, except as governed by the 
“Arizona Medical Marijuana Act” and applicable state statutes. 

 
Ultra Health Florence will not be located within 660 feet of the following 
“sensitive uses”: school; public or private recreation center; park; public library; 
place of worship; massage establishment; sexually oriented business; or teen club. 

 
(3) No medical marijuana dispensary, medical marijuana dispensary offsite 
cultivation location or medical marijuana infusion facility shall be operated or 
maintained within 660 feet of a boundary of a single-family residential zoning 
district within the corporate limits of Florence. This distance separation provision is 
not applicable for cases where the aforementioned uses are separated by a state 



	   6 

highway, except as governed by the “Arizona Medical Marijuana Act” and 
applicable state statutes. 

 
Ultra Health Florence will not be located within 660 feet of Town Zoning 
Districts R1-6, R-2, MHS, RV Overlay, or any other districts within the 
parameters of PUD within the corporate limits of Florence. 

 
Section 152.05 Security Plan - A security plan for all medical marijuana operations shall be 
submitted to town incorporating and detailing the following elements: (A) Exterior 
lighting; (B) Security alarm system; (C) Building security measures; (D) Interior floor 
plan; (E) Exterior site and parking plan; and (F) A secure storage area.  
 

As part of the security plan, Ultra Health Florence will supply an interior floor 
plan as well as an exterior site and parking plan providing for all security 
measures required by Arizona Law including an on-site alarm system, exterior 
lighting plan details, and single secure entry. 

 
Ultra Health Florence will have secure and adequate protections if needed against 
diversion and theft. Installation of video cameras with 24 hours surveillance of 
the dispensary is provided. Video cameras will be installed throughout the 
interior of the dispensary. Video surveillance will also be installed outside the 
front entrance of the dispensary. 
 
Ultra Health Florence will provide an intrusion alarm system. An intrusion alarm 
system provide a range of sensors including door and window contacts, glass 
break detectors, motion sensors, panic devices, smoke detectors, temperature-
control devices, and perimeter detection systems. 
 
A safe and storage unit is provided which is adequately secured according to the 
details contained in the Security Plan. 

 
Section 152.06 Dispensary House of Operation – Medical marijuana dispensary hours of 
operation shall be no earlier than 8:00 a.m. and no later than 8:00 p.m.  
 
  Ultra Health Florence will not conduct operations before 8:00 AM or after   
 8:00 PM.  
 
Section 152.07 Additional Conditions and Standards – The following provisions shall 
govern the issuance of conditional use permits and zoning clearances for medical 
marijuana operations, including medical marijuana designated caregiver cultivation 
locations, medical marijuana dispensary offsite cultivation locations, medical marijuana 
dispensaries, and medical marijuana infusion facilities by the Zoning Administrator and 
Town Council. 
 

(A) All activity related to medical marijuana operations shall be conducted in 
compliance with 36 A.R.S. §§ 36-2801 et seq., Department rules and regulations, and 



	   7 

other implementing state statutes and administrative regulations. 
 

All activity related to medical marijuana operations will be conducted in 
compliance with 36 A.R.S. §§ 36-2801 et seq. 

 
(B) All activity related to medical marijuana operations including but not limited to 
cultivating, growing, processing, displaying, selling and storage, shall be conducted 
indoors and in a permanent building and may not be located in a trailer, cargo 
container or motor vehicle. 

 
Ultra Health Florence will be located at 2501 N. Pinal Parkway Ave, Florence, 
AZ 85132 on parcel #200-33-003. 

 
(C) Medical marijuana operations shall not be allowed as home occupations. 

 
Ultra Health Florence will not allow any operations as home occupations.  

 
(D) Medical marijuana operations shall not have drive-through service. 

 
No drive-through facility or take-out window will be provided at the facility. 

 
(E) Sufficient measures and means of preventing smoke, odors, debris, dust fluids 
and other substances from exiting a dispensary or cultivation facility must be 
provided at all times. In the event that any odors, debris, dust, fluids or other 
substance exit a dispensary or cultivation facility, the owner of the premises shall be 
jointly and severally liable for such conditions and shall be responsible for 
immediate, full clean-up and correction of such condition. 

 
Ultra Health Florence will adhere to strict standards so dust, fumes, vapors or 
odors will be controlled to prevent disturbing the environment. Use of carbon air 
filters and fans will be used in the building as well as an air circulation system to 
eliminate fumes and odors from being released into the environment. 

 
(F) Offsite delivery of medical marijuana is prohibited 

 
Ultra Health Florence will not be making offsite deliveries of medical marijuana 
or product produced at the site as these are provided for patient pickup only. 

 
(G) Consumption of marijuana on the premises is prohibited. 

 
Ultra Health Florence will not allow for the consumption of Medical Marijuana 
on the premises. Surveillance will be provided to avoid loitering and patient flow. 

 
(H) Medical marijuana operations shall obtain and display current applicable 
business licenses, certificates and registrations. 

 



	   8 

Ultra Health Florence will obtain, maintain, and display a valid Town of Florence 
business license, certificates, and registrations as required by Town Code or as 
may otherwise be required.  

 
(I) Facilities shall not be larger than 2,500 square feet for a dispensary and 3,000 
square feet for a cultivation location. 

 
Ultra Health Florence will be housed in a 1,728 sq. ft. building and will receive 
product from a legally established offsite cultivation site, primarily located in 
Phoenix and central Arizona.  

 
(J) No retail sales of paraphernalia are permitted at a dispensary, except as 
permitted by law to patients or registered designated caregivers. 

 
Ultra Health Florence will not allow any sales of paraphernalia or merchandise 
that is not approved for the use of and application of Medical Marijuana to 
qualifying patients or registered designated caregivers. 

 
(K) Retail sales of medical marijuana are prohibited.  

 
Ultra Health Florence will not allow any retail sales of Medical Marijuana to any 
persons other than qualifying patients or registered designated caregivers. 

 
Section 157.08 Supplemental Materials  
 
(A) The minimum requirements of this subpart requiring supplemental materials shall 
apply to all medical marijuana dispensary and medical marijuana dispensary offsite 
cultivation uses located in any zoning district. 

 
(B) In addition to the other application requirements an applicant for any medical 
marijuana dispensary or medical marijuana dispensary offsite cultivation location 
conditional use permit shall provide the following: 
 

(1) A notarized authorization executed by the property owner, acknowledging and 
consenting to the proposed use of the property as a medical marijuana dispensary 
or medical marijuana dispensary offsite cultivation location, as applicable; 

 
Ultra Health Florence will provide the Town with a notarized authorization 
executed by the property owner, acknowledging and consenting to the proposed 
use of the property as a medical marijuana dispensary. 

 
(2) The legal name of the medical marijuana dispensary or medical marijuana 
dispensary offsite cultivation location; 

 
Ultra Health Florence will provide the Town with the legal name of the medical 
marijuana dispensary as well as the address of the dispensary’s offsite cultivation 



	   9 

location (See Exhibit A). 
 

(3) If the application is for a medical marijuana dispensary offsite cultivation 
location, the name and location of the medical marijuana dispensary with which it is 
associated; 

 
Ultra Health Florence is not applying for a medical marijuana dispensary offsite 
cultivation location at this time. 

 
(4) The name, address, and birth dates of each officer and board member of the 
nonprofit medical marijuana dispensary; 

 
Ultra Health Florence will provide the Town with the name, address, and birth 
dates of each officer and board member of the nonprofit medical marijuana 
dispensary (See Exhibit B). 

 
(5) The name, address, birth date, and valid registry identification card for each 
nonprofit medical marijuana dispensary agent; 

 
Ultra Health Florence will provide the Town with the name, address, birth date, 
and valid registry identification card for each nonprofit medical marijuana 
dispensary agent prior to the dispensary opening. Agent cards will not be obtained 
until early 2014. 

 
(6) A copy of the operating procedures adopted in compliance with A.R.S. §§ 36-
2801 et seq., and department rules and regulations; 

 
Ultra Health Florence will provide the Town with a copy of the operating 
procedures adopted in compliance with A.R.S. §§ 36-2801 et seq., and department 
rules and regulations (See Exhibit C). 

 
(7) A notarized certification that none of the nonprofit medical marijuana 
dispensary officers or board members has been convicted of any of the following 
offenses: 

 
(a) A violent crime as defined in A.R.S. § 13-901.03(B) that were classified as 
a felony in the jurisdiction where the person was convicted; 

 
Ultra Health Florence will provide the Town with a notarized certification 
that none of the nonprofit medical marijuana dispensary officers or board 
members has been convicted of a violent crime as defined in A.R.S. § 13-
901.03(B) that were classified as a felony in the jurisdiction where the 
person was convicted (See Exhibit D).  

     
(b) A violation of state of federal controlled substance law that was classified 
as a felony in the jurisdiction where the person was convicted except an 



	   10 

offense for which the sentence, including any term of probation, 
incarceration of supervised release, was completed ten or more years or an 
offense involving conduct that would be immune from arrest, prosecution or 
penalty under A.R.S. § 36-2811 except that the conduct occurred before the 
effective date of that statute or was prosecuted by an authority other than the 
state of Arizona; and 

 
Ultra Health Florence will provide the Town with a notarized certification 
that none of the nonprofit medical marijuana dispensary officers or board 
members has been convicted of a violation of state of federal controlled 
substance law that was classified as a felony in the jurisdiction where the 
person was convicted except an offense for which the sentence, including 
any term of probation, incarceration of supervised release, was completed 
ten or more years or an offense involving conduct that would be immune 
from arrest, prosecution or penalty under A.R.S. § 36-2811 except that the 
conduct occurred before the effective date of that statute or was 
prosecuted by an authority other than the state of Arizona (See Exhibit E). 

 
(8) A notarized certification that none of the non-profit medical marijuana 
dispensary officers or board members has served as an officer or board member for 
a medical marijuana dispensary that has had its registration certificate revoked. 

 
Ultra Health Florence will provide the Town with a notarized certification that 
none of the non-profit medical marijuana dispensary officers or board members 
has served as an officer or board member for a medical marijuana dispensary that 
has had its registration certificate revoked (See Exhibit F). 

 
Section 152.09 Prohibited Activities; No Non-Conforming Uses 
 
(A) Any medical marijuana dispensary offsite cultivation location not associated with a 
medical marijuana dispensary is prohibited, and only one medical marijuana dispensary 
offsite cultivation location shall be permitted for the single medical marijuana dispensary 
with which it is associated. 
 

Ultra Health Florence will have only one offsite cultivation location associated with its 
dispensary. 

 
(B) No medical marijuana operation or use which purports to have cultivated or dispensed 
medical marijuana prior to the enactment of this chapter shall be deemed to have been a 
legally established use under the provisions of this chapter and such medical marijuana 
operation and use shall not be entitled to claim legal non-conforming status. 
 

Ultra Health Florence did not have a medical marijuana operation or use which purported 
to cultivate or dispense medical marijuana prior to the enactment of chapter nor will it 
deem to have legally established a use under this chapter and claim legal non-conforming 
status. 



	   11 

 
(C) Medical marijuana dispensaries and cultivation operations may not be co-located with 
facilities used to prepare, produce or assemble food, whether for medical or non-medical 
purposes. 
 

Ultra Health Florence will not be co-located with facilities used to prepare , produce or 
assemble food, whether for medical or non-medical purposes. 

 
(D) No medical marijuana or paraphernalia shall be displayed or kept in a dispensary or 
cultivation facility so as to be visible from outside the premises. 
 

Ultra Health Florence will not display medical marijuana or paraphernalia so as to be 
visible from outside the premises. 

 
(E) If the state prohibits medical marijuana dispensaries or cultivation, any conditional use 
permit and zoning clearance shall be deemed immediately revoked by operation of law. 
 

Ultra Health Florence acknowledges that should the state of Arizona repeal the Arizona 
Medical Marijuana Act the conditional use permit and zoning clearance granted shall be 
deemed revoked by operation of law. 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 
	   	  



	  
1 

 



	   2 

 

	  



	  
3 

	  

	  
	  



	   4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit B 
 

	  



 
16624 N. 90th Street, Suite 200 � Scottsdale, AZ 85260 

Phone: (480) 404-6699 � Fax: (800) 829-3575 
 

Name Address Date of Birth 
Rakesh K Pahwa  13404 S. 33rd CT Phoenix, AZ 

85044  
April 2, 1958  

Deepak Narang  1840 W. Apache Trail Apache 
Junction, AZ 85120  

September 26, 1959  

Duke Rodriguez 16624 N. 90th Street, #200 
Scottsdale, AZ 85260 

August 18, 1957 

	  
 
	    



	   1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit C 
	    







2 
 

   
Table of Contents  

   
Section 1 - Introduction  
   
1.1 Employee Handbook  
1.2 Changes in Policy  
1.3 Employment-At-Will  
   
Section 2 - Employment Policies  
   
2.1 Employee Classifications  
2.2 Equal Employment Opportunity & Americans with Disabilities Act.  
2.3 Confidentiality  
2.4 Employment of Minors  
2.5 Employment of Relatives  
2.6 Introductory Period  
2.7 Personnel Records and Employee References  
2.8 Privacy  
2.9 Immigration Law Compliance  
2.10 Religious Accommodation  
2.11 Political Neutrality  
   
Section 3 - Hours of Work and Payroll Practices  
   
3.1 Pay Periods and Paydays  
3.2 Overtime  
3.3 Rest and Meal Periods  
3.4 Time Cards  
3.5 Payroll Deductions  
3.6 Wage Garnishment  
3.7 Direct Deposit  
   
Section 4 - Standards of Conduct and Employee Performance  
   
4.1 Anti- Harassment and Discrimination  
4.2 Attendance  
4.3 Discipline and Standards of Conduct  
4.4 Dress Code  
4.5 Safety  
4.6 Substance and Abuse  
4.7 Workplace Searches  
4.8 Cell Phone Policy  
   



3 
 

Section 5 - Employee Benefits and Services  
   
5.1 Generally  
5.2 Group Health Insurance  
5.3 COBRA  
5.4 Worker's Compensation  
5.5 Social Security Benefits (FICA)  
5.6 Unemployment Insurance  
   
Section 6 - Employee Leaves of Absence and Time Off  
   
6.1 Generally  
6.2 Vacation Days  
6.3 Holidays  
6.4 Pregnancy-Disability Leave  
6.5 Workers' Compensation Leave  
6.6 Voting Time  
 
Section 7 – Qualifications and Job Description 
 
7.1 Office Administrator 
7.2 Medical Director 
7.3 Agents 
 
Section 8 – Patient Records 
 
Section 9 – Inventory Control and Cultivation Site 
 
9.1 Acquiring Medical Marijuana from Qualifying Patient or Designated Caregiver 
9.2 Acquiring Medical Marijuana from Another Dispensary 
9.3 Each batch of Marijuana Cultivated 
9.4 Providing Medical Marijuana to Another Dispensary 
9.5 Receiving Edible Medical Marijuana from Another Dispensary 
 
Section 10 – Product Labeling – Analysis 
 
 
Section 11 – Edible Food Products (R9-17-319) 
 
Section 12 – Security (R9-17-318) 
 
Section 13 – Transporting Medical Marijuana 
 
13.1 Agent  
13.2 Dispensary 
 



4 
 

Section 14 – Cleaning and Sanitation 
 
14.1 The Company 
14.2 The Agents 
 
Section 15 – Performance Reviews 
 
 
 Emergency Contact Numbers 

 
Police Department of  Florence – Phone 520 868-7681 
425 N. Pinal Pkwy 
Florence, AZ  
 
 
 
Pinal County Sheriff Department – Phone 520 866-6800 
 
Florence Fire Department (Non-Emergency) – Phone 520 868-7609 
 
 
 
  





5 
 

   
Section 1  

Introduction  
   
1.1 Employee Handbook  
   
This Employee Handbook ("Handbook") is designed to summarize certain personnel policies and 
benefits of Ultra Health - Florence (the "Company") and to acquaint employees with many of the 
rules concerning employment with the Company. This Handbook applies to all employees, and 
compliance with the Company's policies is a condition of employment. This Handbook 
supersedes all previous employment policies, written and oral, express and implied. The 
Company reserves the right to modify, rescind, delete, or add to the provisions of this Handbook 
from time to time in its sole and absolute discretion. This Employee Handbook is not a binding 
contract between the Company and its employees, nor is it intended to alter the at-will 
employment relationship between the Company and its employees. The Company reserves the 
right to interpret the policies in this Handbook and to deviate from them when, in its discretion, it 
determines it is appropriate.  
   
1.2 Changes in Policy  
   
Since our business is constantly changing, the Company expressly reserves the right to revise, 
modify, delete, or add to any and all policies, procedures, work rules, or benefits stated in this 
handbook or in any other document, except for the policy of at-will employment as described 
below. Nothing in this employee handbook or in any other document, including benefit plan 
descriptions, creates or is intended to create a promise or representation of continued 
employment for any employee. Any changes to your at-will employment status, described below, 
must be in writing and must be signed by the Company.  
   
With respect to all other changes to Company policies, we will notify you of these changes in 
writing. No oral statements or representations can in any way alter the provisions of this 
Handbook. Changes will be effective on dates determined by the Company and you may not rely 
on policies that have been superseded.  
   
If you are uncertain about any policy or procedure, please check with your manager or Human 
Resources.  
   
1.3 Employment-At-Will  
   
Employment with the Company is on an at-will basis, unless otherwise specified in a written 
employment agreement. You are free to resign at any time, for any reason, with or without 
notice. Similarly, the Company is free to conclude the employment relationship at any time for 
any lawful reason, with or without cause, and with or without notice.  
   
Nothing in this Handbook will limit the right of either party to terminate an at-will employment. 
No section of this Handbook is meant to be construed, nor should be construed, as establishing 
anything other than an employment-at-will relationship. This Handbook does not limit 



6 
 

management's discretion to make personnel decisions such as reassignment, change of wages and 
benefits, demotion, etc. No person other than the CEO, President, or CFO has the authority to 
enter into an agreement for employment for any specified period of time or to make an 
agreement for employment other than at-will terms. Only the CEO, President, or CFO of the 
Company has the authority to make any such agreement, which is only binding if it is in writing 
and signed by the President of the Company.  
   

Section 2  
Employment Policies  

   
2.1 Employee Classifications  
   
The following terms are used to describe employees and their employment status:  
   

Exempt Employees - Employees whose positions meet specific tests established by the 
Federal Labor Standards Act ("FLSA") and Arizona state law. In general, exempt 
employees are those engaged in executive, managerial, high-level administrative and 
professional jobs who are paid a fixed salary and perform certain duties. In addition, 
certain commissioned sales employees and highly paid computer professionals are 
exempt. Exempt employees are not subject to the minimum wage and overtime laws.  

   
Nonexempt Employees - Employees whose positions do not meet specific tests 
established by the FLSA and Arizona state law. All employees who are covered by the 
federal or state minimum wage and overtime laws are considered nonexempt. Employees 
working in nonexempt jobs are entitled to be paid at least the minimum wage per hour 
and a premium for overtime.  

   
Regular Employee - Employees who are hired to work on a regular schedule. Such 
employees can be either full-time or part-time. The distinction between full-time and 
part-time depends upon the number of hours that an employee works.  

   
Full-Time - Employees who are not temporary employees, independent contractors, or 
independent consultants and who are regularly scheduled to work a schedule of 40 hours 
per work week.  

   
Part-Time - Employees who are not temporary employees, independent contractors, or 
independent consultants and who are regularly scheduled to work less than 40 hours per 
work week.  

   
Temporary Employees - Employees who are hired as interim replacements to 
temporarily supplement the workforce or to assist in the completion of a specific project. 
Employment assignments in this category are of limited duration and the temporary 
employee can be let go before the end of the defined period. Short term assignments 
generally are periods of three (3) months or less, however, such assignments may be 
extended. All Temporary employees are at-will regardless of the anticipated duration of 



7 
 

the assignment (see Employment-at-Will Policy). Temporary employees retain that status 
unless and until notified in writing of a change.  

   
Independent Contractor or Consultant - These individuals are not employees of the 
Company and are self-employed. An independent contractor or consultant is engaged to 
perform a task according to his/her own methods and is subject to control and direction 
only as to the results to be accomplished. Independent contractor or consultants are not 
entitled to benefits.  

   
Each employee will be advised of his or her status at the time of hire and any change in status. 
Regardless of the employee's status, the employee is employed at-will and the employment 
relationship can be terminated by the Company or the employee at any time, with or without 
cause.  
   
2.2 Equal Employment Opportunity & American with Disabilities Act 
   
It is the policy of the Company to provide equal employment opportunities to all employees and 
employment applicants without regard to unlawful considerations of race, religion, creed, color, 
national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, age, ancestry, physical or mental 
disability, medical condition including medical characteristics, marital status or any other 
classification protected by applicable local, state or federal laws. This policy prohibits unlawful 
discrimination based on the perception that anyone has any of those characteristics, or is 
associated with a person who has or is perceived as having any of those characteristics. This 
policy applies to all aspects of employment, including, but not limited to, hiring, job assignment, 
working conditions, compensation, promotion, benefits, scheduling, training, discipline and 
termination. Reasonable accommodation is available for qualified individuals with disabilities, 
upon request.  
   
The Company expects all employees to support our equal employment opportunity policy, and to 
take all steps necessary to maintain a workplace free from unlawful discrimination and 
harassment.  
   
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), the Company provides 
accommodation to the disabled to the full extent required by law. The Company may require 
medical certification of both the disability and the need for accommodation. Keep in mind that 
the Company can only seek to accommodate the known physical or mental limitations of an 
otherwise qualified disabled individual. Therefore, it is your responsibility to come forward if 
you are in need of an accommodation. The Company will engage in an interactive process with 
the employee to identify possible accommodations, if any will help the applicant or employee 
perform the job. We further recognize that employees with life threatening illnesses, including 
but not limited to cancer, heart disease and AIDS, may wish to continue engaging in as many of 
their normal pursuits as their condition allows, including work. As long as these employees are 
able to meet acceptable performance standards with or without reasonable accommodation, and 
medical evidence indicates that their working does not present a substantial threat to themselves 
or others, they will be permitted to do so.  
   



8 
 

2.3 Confidentiality  
   
In the course of employment with the Company, employees may have access to "Confidential 
Information" regarding the Company, which may include its business strategy, future plans, 
financial information, contracts, suppliers, customers, personnel information or other information 
that the Company considers proprietary and confidential. Maintaining the confidentiality of this 
information is vital to the Company's competitive position in the industry and, ultimately, to its 
ability to achieve financial success and stability. Employees must protect this information by 
safeguarding it when in use, using it only for the business of the Company and disclosing it only 
when authorized to do so and to those who have a legitimate business need to know about it. 
This duty of confidentiality applies whether the employee is on or off the Company's premises, 
and during and even after the end of the employee's employment with the Company. This duty of 
confidentiality also applies to communications transmitted by the Company's electronic 
communications. See Internet, Email and Computer Use policy, below.  
   
As a condition of employment with the Company, all employees must sign a Non-Disclosure 
Agreement. (Attached) 
   
2.4 Employment of Minors 
   
The Company does not employ minors.  Arizona Statutes requires you must be 21 years of age to 
work in a medical marijuana facility.   
   
2.5 Employment of Relatives 
   
The Company recognizes that the employment of relatives in certain circumstances, such as 
when they will work in the same department, or supervise or manage the other, or have access to 
confidential or sensitive information regarding the other, can cause problems related to 
supervision, safety, security or morale, or create conflicts of interest that materially and 
substantially disrupt the Company's operations. When the Company determines any of these 
problems will be present, it will decline to hire an individual to work in the same department as a 
relative of an existing employee. Relatives subject to this policy include: father, mother, sister, 
brother, current spouse or domestic partner, child (natural, foster, or adopted), current mother-in- 
law, current father-in-law, grandparent, or grandchild.  
   
If present employees become relatives during employment, the Company should be notified so 
that we may determine whether a problem involving supervision, safety, security or morale, or a 
conflict of interest that would materially and substantially disrupt the Company's operations 
exists. If the Company determines that such a problem exists, the Company will take appropriate 
steps to resolve the problem, which may include reassignment of one relative (if feasible) or 
asking for the resignation of one of the relatives.  
   
2.6 Introductory Period 
   
The first 30 days of employment are considered an introductory period for all newly hired 
employees. During this time, you will learn your new responsibilities, get acquainted with fellow 



9 
 

employees, and determine whether you are happy with the position. Also, during this time, your 
manager will monitor your performance. Upon completion of the introductory period, your 
manager will review your performance. If the Company finds your performance satisfactory and 
decides to continue your employment, you will be advised of any improvements expected. This 
is also an opportunity for you to make suggestions to improve the Company's efficiency and 
operations. Completion of the introductory period does not entitle you to remain employed by 
the Company for any definite period of time, but instead allows both you and the Company to 
evaluate whether or not you are right for the position. Your status as an at-will employee does 
not change-the employment relationship may be terminated with or without cause and with or 
without advance notice, at any time by you or the Company.  
   
2.7 Personnel Records and Employee References 
   
The Company maintains a personnel file and payroll records for each employee as required by 
law. Personnel files and payroll records are the property of the Company and may not be 
removed from Company premises without written authorization . Because personnel files and 
payroll records are confidential, access to the records is restricted. Generally, only those who 
have a legitimate reason to review information in an employee's file are allowed to do so. 
Disclosure of personnel information to outside sources will be limited. However, the Company 
will cooperate with requests from authorized law enforcement or local, state, or federal agencies 
conducting official investigations and as otherwise legally required.  
   
Employees may contact a Human Resources representative to request a time to review their 
payroll records and/or personnel file. With reasonable advance notice, an employee may review 
his or her own records in the Company's offices and in the presence of an individual appointed 
by the Company to maintain the records. No copies of documents in your file may be made, with 
the exception of documents that you have previously signed. You may add your comments to 
any disputed item in the file.  
   
By policy, the Company will provide only the former or present employee's dates of employment 
and position(s) held with the Company and eligibility for rehire, if asked. Compensation 
information may also be verified if written authorization is provided by the employee.  
   
2.8 Privacy  
   
The Company is respectful of employee privacy. All employee demographic and personal 
information will be shared only as required in the normal course of business. Healthcare 
enrollment information is kept in a separate folder from other human resources forms. Workers' 
Compensation information is not considered private healthcare information; however, this 
information will be released only on a need-to-know basis.  
   
The Company does not make or receive any private healthcare information through the course of 
normal work. If any employee voluntarily shares private healthcare information with a member 
of management, this information will be kept confidential. If applicable, the Company will set up 
guidelines for employees and management to follow to ensure that company employees conform 
to the requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA).  



10 
 

   
2.9 Immigration Law Compliance  
   
In compliance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, each new employee, as a 
condition of employment, must complete the Employment Eligibility Verification Form I-9 on 
day of hire and present documentation establishing identity and employment eligibility within 
three business days of date of hire. Former employees who are rehired must also complete an I-9 
form if they have not completed an I-9 form with the Company within the past three years, or if 
their previous I-9 form is no longer retained or valid. You may raise questions or complaints 
about immigration law compliance without fear of reprisal.  
   
2.10 Religious Accommodation  
   
The Company will make reasonable accommodations for employees' observance of religious 
holidays and practices unless the accommodation would cause an undue hardship on the 
Company's operations. If you desire a religious accommodation, you are required to make the 
request in writing to your manager as far in advance as possible. You are expected to strive to 
find co-workers who can assist in the accommodation (e.g., trade shifts) and cooperate with the 
Company in seeking and evaluating alternatives.  
   
2.11 Political Neutrality  
   
Maintenance of individual freedom and our political institutions necessitates broad scale 
participation by citizens concerning the selection, nomination and election of our public office 
holders. The Company will not discriminate against any employee because of identification with 
and support of any lawful political activity. Company employees are entitled to their own 
personal political position. The Company will not discriminate against employees based on their 
lawful political activity engaged in outside of work. If you are engaging in political activity, 
however, you should always make it clear that your actions and opinions are your own and not 
necessarily those of the Company, and that you are not representing the Company.  
   

 
Section 3  

Hours of Work and Payroll Practices  
   
3.1 Pay Periods and Paydays 
   
Employees are paid on the 5st and 20th of each month. All employees are paid by check or direct 
deposit on the above-mentioned payday. If the regular payday falls on a weekend or Company 
holiday, employees will be paid on the last business day before the holiday and/or weekend.  
   
 
 
 
 
 



11 
 

3.2 Overtime  
   
Nonexempt employees will be paid in accordance with Federal and Arizona state law. All 
overtime work by non-exempt employees must be authorized in advance by their manager. Only 
hours actually worked will be used to calculate overtime pay.  
   
3.3 Rest and Meal Periods  
   
All rest and meal periods will be in accordance with Arizona state law. To the extent Arizona 
state law does not require rest and meal breaks, nonexempt employees will be provided a 10-
minute rest break for every four hour period of work. This time is counted and paid as time 
worked. Nonexempt employees scheduled to work more than a five hour period will be provided 
a 30-minute unpaid meal period.  
   
3.4 Time Cards  
   
Nonexempt employees are required to keep an accurate and complete record of their attendance 
and hours worked. Time cards are official business records and may not be altered without the 
employee's supervisor's approval and may not be falsified in any way.  
   
3.5 Payroll Deductions 
   
Various payroll deductions are made each payday to comply with federal and state laws 
pertaining to taxes and insurance. Deductions will be made for the following: Federal and State 
Income Tax Withholding, Social Security, Medicare, State Disability Insurance & Family 
Temporary Disability Insurance, and other items designated by you or required by law (including 
a valid court order). You can adjust your federal and state income tax withholding by completing 
the proper federal or state form and submitting it to Accounting. At the start of each calendar 
year, you will be supplied with your Wage and Tax Statement (W-2) form for the prior year. 
This statement summarizes your income and deductions for the year.  
   
3.6 Wage Garnishment 
   
A garnishment is a court order requiring an employer to remit part of an employee's wages to a 
third party to satisfy a just debt. Once the Company receives the legal papers ordering a 
garnishment, we are required by law to continue making deductions from your check until we 
have withheld the full amount or until we receive legal papers from the court to stop the 
garnishment. Even if you have already paid the debt, we still need the legal papers to stop the 
garnishment.  
   
3.7 Direct Deposit 
   
All employees are encouraged, but not required, to use direct deposit and have their paychecks 
deposited into a bank account of an accredited participating bank or credit union.  
   

 



12 
 

 
Section 4  

Standards of Conduct and Employee Performance  
   
4.1 Anti- Harassment and Discrimination  
   
The Company is committed to providing a work environment free of sexual or any form of 
unlawful harassment or discrimination. Harassment or unlawful discrimination against 
individuals on the basis of race, religion, creed, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, 
gender identity, age, ancestry, physical or mental disability, medical condition including medical 
characteristics, marital status or any other classification protected by local, state or federal laws 
is illegal and prohibited by Company policy. Such conduct by or towards any employee, contract 
worker, customer, vendor or anyone else who does business with the Company will not be 
tolerated. Any employee or contract worker who violates this policy will be subject to 
disciplinary action, up to and including termination of his or her employment or engagement. To 
the extent a customer, vendor or other person with whom the Company does business engages in 
unlawful harassment or discrimination, the Company will take appropriate corrective action.  
   
Prohibited Conduct 
   
Prohibited harassment or discrimination includes any verbal, physical or visual conduct based on 
sex, race, age, national origin, disability or any other legally protected basis if:  
 

• Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition 
of an individual’s employment or engagement; 

• Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as a basis for 
decisions concerning that individual’s employment or engagement; or 

• It creates a hostile or offensive work environment. 
     
Prohibited harassment includes unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors and lewd, 
vulgar or obscene remarks, jokes, posters or cartoons, and any unwelcome touching, pinching or 
other physical contact. Other forms of unlawful harassment or discrimination may include racial 
epithets, slurs and derogatory remarks, stereotypes, jokes, posters or cartoons based on race, 
national origin, age, disability, marital status or other legally protected categories. Prohibited 
harassment might also be transmitted using the Company's electronic communications system, or 
through other on-line conduct.  
   
Complaint Procedure  
   
Employees or contract workers who feel that they have been harassed or discriminated against, 
or who witness any harassment or discrimination by an employee, contract worker, customer, 
vendor or anyone else who does business with the Company, should immediately report such 
conduct to their supervisor or any other member of management.  
   
Do not allow an inappropriate situation to continue by not reporting it, regardless of who is 
creating the situation. No employee, contract worker, customer, vendor or other person who does 



13 
 

business with this organization is exempt from the prohibitions in this policy. In response to 
every complaint, the Company will conduct an investigation and, if improper conduct is found, 
take appropriate corrective action.  
   
To the extent that an employee or contract worker is not satisfied with the Company's handling 
of a harassment or discrimination complaint, he or she may also contact the appropriate state or 
federal enforcement agency for legal relief.  
   
4.2 Attendance  
   
Punctuality and regular attendance are essential to the successful operation of the Company's 
business. If an employee is unable to report to work (or to report to work on time) for any reason, 
the employee must notify his or her supervisor before his or her starting time. If an employee 
desires to leave work for any reason during the workday, the employee must obtain the approval 
of his or her supervisor prior to leaving. In the event that the employee fails to call his or her 
supervisor or report for work for 3 consecutive workdays, the employee will be deemed to have 
voluntarily resigned from his or her employment with the Company and will be removed from 
the payroll. Excessive absenteeism or tardiness may subject the employee to disciplinary action, 
up to and including termination.  
   
4.3 Discipline and Standards of Conduct  
   
As an at-will employer, the Company may impose discipline whenever it determines it is 
necessary or appropriate. Discipline may take various forms, including verbal counseling, written 
warnings, suspension, demotion, transfer, reassignment or termination. The discipline imposed 
will depend on the circumstances of each case; therefore, discipline will not necessarily be 
imposed in any particular sequence. Moreover, at any time the Company determines it is 
appropriate, an employee may be discharged immediately.  
   
Every organization must have certain standards of conduct to guide the behavior of employees. 
Although there is no possible way to identify every rule of conduct, the following is an 
illustrative list (not intended to be comprehensive or to limit the Company's right to impose 
discipline for any other conduct it deems inappropriate). Keep in mind that these standards of 
conduct apply to all employees whenever they are on Company property and/or conducting 
Company business (on or off Company property). Engaging in any conduct the Company deems 
inappropriate may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination.  
 

• Dishonesty; 
• Stealing Company property; 
• Falsification of Company records; 
• Unauthorized use or possession of property that belongs to the Company, a coworker, 

or of the public; 
• Fighting, engaging in threats of violence or violence, use of vulgar or abusive 

language, horseplay, practical jokes or other disorderly conduct that may endanger 
others or damage property; 



14 
 

• Insubordination, failure to perform assigned duties or failure to comply with the 
Company’s health safety or other rules; 

• Unauthorized or careless us of the Company’s materials, equipment or property; 
• Unauthorized and/or excessive absenteeism or tardiness; 
• Lack of teamwork, poor communication, unsatisfactory performance, unprofessional 

conduct, or conduct improper for the workplace; 
• Sexual or other illegal harassment or discrimination; 
• Unauthorized use or disclosure of the Company’s confidential information; 
• Violation of any Company policy.   

     
4.4 Dress Code 
   
All Agents should use common sense when they dress for work.  Please dress appropriately for 
your position and job duties.  Please make sure you are neat and clean at all times.  
   
4.5 Safety  
   
The Company is committed to providing a safe workplace. Accordingly, the Company 
emphasizes "safety first." It is the employee's responsibility to take steps to promote safety in the 
workplace and work in a safe manner. By remaining safety conscious, employees can protect 
themselves and their coworkers. Employees are expected to promptly report all unsafe working 
conditions, accidents and injuries, regardless of how minor so that any potential hazards can be 
corrected.  
   
4.6 Substance and Abuse 
   
The Company is committed to providing its employees with a safe and productive work 
environment. In keeping with this commitment, it maintains a strict policy against the use of 
alcohol and the unlawful use of drugs in the workplace. Consequently, no employee may 
consume or possess alcohol, or use, possess, sell, purchase or transfer illegal drugs at any time 
while on the Company's premises or while using the Company vehicles or equipment, or at any 
location during work time.  
   
No employee may report to work with illegal drugs (or their metabolites) or alcohol in his or her 
bodily system. The only exception to this rule is that employees may engage in moderate 
consumption of alcohol that may be served and/or consumed as part of an authorized Company 
social or business event. "Illegal drug" means any drug that is not legally obtainable or that is 
legally obtainable but has not been legally obtained. It includes prescription drugs not being used 
for prescribed purposes or by the person to whom it is prescribed or in prescribed amounts. It 
also includes any substance a person holds out to another as an illegal drug.  
   
Any violation of this policy will result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of 
employment.  
   
Any employee who feels he or she has developed an addiction to, dependence upon, or problem 
with alcohol or drugs, legal or illegal, is strongly encouraged to seek assistance before a violation 



15 
 

of this policy occurs. Any employee who requests time off to participate in a rehabilitation 
program will be reasonably accommodated. However, employees may not avoid disciplinary 
action, up to and including termination, by entering a rehabilitation program after a violation of 
this policy is suspected or discovered. When, in the Company's sole and absolute discretion, the 
Company determines it is appropriate, an employee may be offered the option of participating in 
and satisfactorily completing a Company-approved drug and/or alcohol rehabilitation program in 
lieu of termination.  
   
4.7 Workplace Searches 
   
To protect Company property and to ensure the safety of all employees, the Company reserves 
the right to inspect and search any employee's office, desk, drawers, cabinets, files, locker, 
equipment, including computers, e-mail and voice mail, Company vehicles, and any area on 
Company premises. In this regard, it should be noted that all offices, desks, file drawers, 
cabinets, lockers, and other Company equipment and facilities are the property of the Company, 
and are intended for business use. Employees should have no expectation of privacy with respect 
to items brought onto Company property and/or stored in Company facilities. Inspection may be 
conducted at any time, without notice, at the discretion of the Company.  
   
In addition, when the Company deems appropriate, employees may be required to submit to 
searches of their personal vehicles, parcels, purses, handbags, backpacks, brief cases, lunch 
boxes or any other possessions or articles brought on to the Company's property.  
   
Persons entering the premises who refuse to cooperate in an inspection conducted pursuant to 
this policy may not be permitted to enter the premises. All employees must cooperate in an 
inspection; failure to do so is insubordination and will result in disciplinary action, up to and 
including termination.  
   
4.8 Cell Phone Policy 
   
The use of personal cell phones at work is discouraged because it can interfere with work and be 
disruptive to others. Therefore, employees who bring personal cell phones to work are required 
to keep the ringer shut off or placed on vibrate mode when they are in the office, and to keep cell 
phone use confined to breaks and meal periods. Conversations should be had away from areas 
where other employees are working. When cell phone use interferes with the satisfactory 
performance of an employee's duties or disturbs others, the privilege of using a personal cell 
phone at work may be taken away and other disciplinary action, up to and including termination, 
may be imposed.  
   
The Company may provide cell phone allowances to employees in certain positions in an effort 
to improve efficiency and effectiveness. When cell phones are used for Company business, 
employees must comply with all Company policies governing conduct, including our policies 
prohibiting discrimination, harassment, and violence in the workplace. When using the cell 
phone in a public place, please remember to maintain the confidentiality of any private or 
confidential business information. As a courtesy to others, please shut cell phones off or place on 
vibrate mode during meetings.  



16 
 

   
Section 5  

Employee Benefits and Services  
   
5.1 Generally  
   
Aside from those benefits required by state and federal regulations, the Company also offers 
additional benefits for its full-time employees. From time to time, benefits may be added or 
deleted from the benefits package. The Company reserves the right to make such changes.  
   
This Handbook does not contain the complete terms and/or conditions of any of the Company's 
current benefit plans. It is intended only to provide general explanations. For information 
regarding employee benefits and services, employees should contact Human Resources.  
   
5.2 Group Health Insurance  
   
The Company offers a group health plan for eligible employees. For more information, refer to 
the Company's benefits booklet for complete details and benefits.  
   
5.3 COBRA 
   
Under the provisions of the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) of 
1986, if you are covered under the Company's group health insurance plan(s) you are entitled to 
continue your coverage in the event that your employment with the Company ends. Under 
COBRA, the Company must offer each qualified beneficiary (the employee and any covered 
dependents) who would otherwise lose coverage under the plan as a result of a qualifying event 
an opportunity to continue their insurance coverage. A qualifying event is defined as termination 
of employment, a reduction in the number of hours of employment, death of covered employee, 
divorce or legal separation, a dependent child ceases to be dependent, eligibility of the covered 
employee for Medicare, or an employer's bankruptcy.  
   
 
5.4 Worker's Compensation  
   
All states have Workers' Compensation laws whose purpose is to promote the general welfare of 
people by providing compensation for accidental injuries or death suffered in the course of 
employment. These laws are designed to provide protection to workers suffering occupational 
disabilities through accidents arising out of, and in the course of employment. The Company 
carries Workers' Compensation Insurance for all employees and pays the entire cost of the 
insurance program. An employee who suffers an injury or illness in connection with the job is 
usually eligible to receive payment through the insurance company for lost wages. In addition to 
disability payments, necessary hospital, medical and surgical expenses are covered under 
Workers' Compensation, with payments being made directly to the hospital or physician. 
Workers' Compensation benefits to injured workers also includes assistance to help qualified 
injured employees return to suitable employment.  
   



17 
 

5.5 Social Security Benefits (FICA)  
   
During your employment, you and the Company both contribute funds to the Federal 
government to support the Social Security Program. This program is intended to provide you 
with retirement benefit payments and medical coverage once you reach retirement age.  
   
5.6 Unemployment Insurance 
 
The company pays a state and federal tax to provide employees with unemployment insurance 
coverage in the event they become unemployed through no fault of their own or due to 
circumstances described by law. This insurance is administered by applicable state agencies, who 
determine eligibility for benefits, the amount of benefits (if any), and duration of benefits.  
   

Section 6  
Employee Leaves of Absence and Time Off  

   
6.1 Generally 
   
While regular attendance is crucial to maintain business operations, the Company recognizes 
that, for a variety of reasons, employees may need time off from work. The Company has 
available a number of types of leaves of absence. Some are governed by law and others are 
discretionary. For all planned leaves, however, employees must submit a request at least 3 days 
in advance; in case of emergencies, employees should submit the request as soon as they become 
aware of the need for leave. All leaves must have the approval of the Company management. If, 
during a leave, an employee accepts another job, engages in other employment or consulting 
outside of the Company, or applies for unemployment insurance benefits, the employee may be 
considered to have voluntarily resigned from employment with the Company.  
   
All requests for a leave of absence will be considered in light of their effect on the Company and 
its work requirements, as determined by the Company management, which reserves the right to 
approve or deny such requests in its sole discretion, unless otherwise required by law. For 
disability-related leave requests, the Company will engage in an interactive process with the 
employee to determine if a leave is the most appropriate accommodation. The employee must 
provide a certification from his or her health care provider to the Company to support a leave for 
medical reasons. Failure to provide the required certification to the Company in a timely manner 
will result in delay or denial of leave. If an employee requires an extension of leave, the 
employee must request such extension and have it approved before the expiration of the currently 
approved leave.  
   
While the Company will make a reasonable effort to return the employee to his or her former 
position or a comparable position following an approved leave of absence, there is no guarantee 
that the employee will be reinstated to his or her position, or any position, except as required by 
law.  
   
 
 



18 
 

6.2 Vacation Days  
   
Eligible employees are entitled to 10 paid vacation days per year. Vacation days' pay for regular 
full-time employees will be calculated based on the employee's base pay rate times the number 
of hours the employee would otherwise have worked on that day. Regular part-time employees 
will be paid on a pro-rata basis.  
   
6.3 Holidays  
   
The Company observes the following paid holidays:  
   

• New Year's Day  
• Independence Day  
• Thanksgiving Day  
• Christmas Day  
• New Year's Eve  
• Floating Holiday  

   
The Company will provide a floating holiday each year. This day will be designated by the 
Company at the beginning of each year.  
   
The Company will grant paid holiday time off to all eligible employees. Holiday pay for regular 
full-time employees will be calculated based on the employee's base pay rate (as of the date of 
the holiday) times the number of hours the employee would otherwise have worked on that day. 
Regular part-time employees will be paid on a pro-rata basis.  
   
If an eligible non-exempt employee works on a recognized holiday with Company approval, he 
or she will receive holiday pay plus wages at his or her straight-time rate for the hours worked on 
the holiday.  
   
6.4 Pregnancy-Disability Leave 
   
Employees who are disabled on account of pregnancy, childbirth, or a related medical condition 
may request an unpaid leave of absence. Such leave will be granted for the period of disability, 
up to a maximum of four months. Time off may be requested for prenatal care, severe morning 
sickness, doctor-ordered bed rest, childbirth, and recovery from childbirth.  
   
Leave provided for pregnancy disability is treated separately from leaves required by the state 
family and medical leave law. However, the first 12 work weeks of a pregnancy disability leave 
will be treated concurrently as a leave pursuant to the federal Family and Medical Leave Act 
("FMLA") for all eligible employees.  
   
Employees who wish to take a pregnancy disability leave must notify Human Resources of the 
date the leave is expected to commence and the estimated duration of the leave. Notice should be 
given as indicated above. The employee must also provide a medical certification of disability to 
the Company. Failure to provide the required medical certification to the Company in a timely 



19 
 

manner will result in delay or denial of leave. Before returning to work, the employee must 
provide a medical certification that she is able to resume her original job duties. Appropriate 
forms may be obtained from Human Resources.  
   
Employees who return to work immediately following the expiration of an approved pregnancy 
disability leave will generally be reemployed in their former position or a comparable job, as 
required by law.  
   
Employees who are affected by pregnancy may also be eligible to transfer to a less strenuous or 
hazardous position or duties, provided certain prerequisites are met. Reasonable accommodations 
may be requested with the advice of the employee's health care provider. In addition, lactation 
accommodation is also available, upon request. For more information on pregnancy disability 
leave or transfer and its effect on the terms, conditions or benefits of employment, please contact 
Human Resources.  
   
6.5 Workers' Compensation Leave  
   
Any employee who is unable to work due to a work related injury or illness and who is eligible 
for Workers' Compensation benefits will be provided an unpaid leave for the period required. 
The first 12 weeks will be treated concurrently as a family and medical leave under the federal 
Family Medical Leave Act ("FMLA") for eligible employees.  
   
6.6 Voting Time  
   
Employees who are registered voters and who lack sufficient time outside of work to vote in any 
local, state, and national election may take up to two hours off work with pay at the beginning or 
end of the day for this purpose. Employees should provide at least two working days' notice 
when time off is required.  
   
 

Section 7 
Qualifications and Job Descriptions 

 
7.1 Office Administrator (R9-17-310) 
 
The Office Administrator Agent has a very intricate and compliance role with the Company.  
The Office Administrator Agent is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Company, as 
well as overseeing compliance with state and federal laws and regulations with regard to Agents, 
company policies and patient record keeping and cultivation information.  In addition, the Office 
Administrator Agent will work closely with the Medical Director, to oversee compliance with 
Company policies as a non-profit corporation. The Administrator Agent will ensure that the 
dispensary is operating and available to dispense medical marijuana to qualifying patients and 
designated caregivers at least 30 hours weekly between  the hours of 8:00 AM and 8:00 PM, 
Monday through Sunday. 
 
 



20 
 

Qualifications 
 
The Office Administrator Agent must have clerical and office administration experience with a 
minimum of five (5) years’ experience.  It is equally important to the Company that the person 
who holds this position be compassionate and possesses the ability to work well with other 
Agents, the Medical Director, patients and caregivers.  Knowledge of computers and software 
used by the Company or a willingness and ability to learn the software in a timely manner is 
mandatory.  Experience in the medical marijuana industry is not required, but helpful.  The 
Office Administrator Agent must have no criminal record and must have a good driving record.  
Flexibility in hour regarding their schedule is required.  They must be at least 21 years old.  The 
initial Office Administrators will be Valera Knight. 
 
Authority/Responsibilities/Personnel Duties 
 
Responsibilities and duties include, but are not limited to, personnel duties, authority, 
responsibilities and qualifications, personnel supervision, training in and adherence to 
confidentiality requirements programs and procedures of Agents; disciplinary actions and 
software training.  Together with the Medical Director, shall oversee and be responsible for 
maintaining and training for all business records, such as a manual or computerized records of 
assets and liabilities, monetary transactions, journals, ledgers, and supporting documents, 
including agreements, checks, invoices and vouchers (Quick Books Online edition).  Also, 
including tracking, packaging, designated caregivers and patients, tracking of medical marijuana, 
packaging, disposing of unusable marijuana, which may include submitting nay unusable 
marijuana to a local law enforcement agency; qualifying patient record keeping, including 
purchases, denials of sale, any delivery options, confidentiality and retention; effects of different 
strains, purported effectiveness of various methods, forms and routes of medical marijuana 
administration (MJ Freeway), marijuana; and public places.  The Office Administrator Agent 
will oversee the security and compliance and functioning of the same. 
 
The Office Administrator Agent will also be responsible for obtaining and initializing paperwork 
and documentation from hired agents, including submitting fingerprint cards and paperwork to 
the ADHS for volunteers and potential Agents. 
 
The Office Administrator Agent will ensure that each Agent or volunteer has the dispensary 
agent’s registry identification card in their immediate possession at all times when the Agent: 

 
• Is working or providing volunteer services at the Company, or  
• Is transporting marijuana for the Company. 

 
Either the Office Administrator Agent or Medical Director is to ensure that an Agent 
accompanies any individual other than another Agent associated with the Company when the 
individual is present in the enclosed, locked facility where marijuana is cultivated by the 
Company. 
 



21 
 

The Office Administrator Agent will oversee and ensure that an individual who does not possess 
a dispensary agent registry identification card issued under the dispensary registration certificate 
will not: 
 

• Serve as principal officer or board member for the Company; 
• Serve as the Medical Director for the Company; 
• Be employed by the Company, or 
• Provide volunteer services on behalf of the Company 

 
It is the Office Administrator Agent’s responsibility to provide written notice to the ADHS, 
including the date of the event, within ten (10) working days after the date when an Agent no 
longer is employed by the Dispensary as an Agent, principal officer or board member, serving as 
the medical Director or volunteer on behalf of the Company. 
 
The Office Administrator Agent, along with the Medical Director, will report all loss due to theft 
of marijuana from the dispensary to the appropriate law enforcement agency; 
 
The Office Administrator Agent will maintain copies of any and all documentation for at least 
twelve (12) months after the date on the documentation and prove copies of the documentation to 
the ADHS immediately for review upon request; 
 
The Office Administrator Agent will be responsible for posting the following: 
 

• The Company’s Approval to Operate, 
• The Company’s Registration Certificate 
• The Company’s Medical Director and the Medical Director’s license number on a 

sign at least 20 cm x 30 cm, 
• The Company’s hours of operation during which the Company will dispense medical 

marijuana to qualifying patients or caregivers (which will be no less than 30 hours per 
week). 

 
The Office Administrator Agent will oversee, with the Medical Director that the following action 
will not occur by the Company: 
 

• Does not lend any part of the Company’s income or property without receiving 
adequate security and a reasonable rate of interest, 

• Does not purchase property for more than adequate consideration to money or cash 
equivalent; 

• Does not pay salaries or other compensation for personal services that is in excess of 
a reasonable allowance; 

• Does not sell any part of the Company’s property or equipment for less than adequate 
consideration in money or cash equivalent; 

• Does not engage in any other transaction that results in a substantial diversion of the 
Company’s income or property; 

• Oversees that the location of the Company is not within 500 feet from a private or 
public school; 



22 
 

• Oversees the compliance of parking adjacent to the building used as the Dispensary; 
and 

• Oversees that each commercial device used at the Company or the dispensary’s 
cultivation site is licensed or certified pursuant to A.R.S. Section 41-2091, maintains 
documentation of the commercial device’s license or certification, and provides a 
copy of the commercial device’s license or certification to the ADHS for review upon 
request. 

 
Along with the Medical Director, the Office Administration Agent oversees that cultivation takes 
places only in a locked, enclosed facility. 
 
The Office Administrator Agent or Medical Director shall produce documentation in an audit of 
the Company’s inventory that is accounted for according to generally accepted accounting 
principles at least once every thirty (30) calendar days. 
 
The Office Administrator Agent must work closely with accountants to oversee Company 
procedures to ensure that: 
 

• The Company is operated on a not-for-profit basis; and 
• The Company provides no compensation for medical marijuana acquired from 

qualified patients and designated caregivers. 
 
It is the responsibility of the Office Administrator Agent to review our Company’s policies and 
procedure every 6 months and no later than the date of issuance of the Dispensary Registration 
Certificate. 
 
The Office Administrator Agent is responsible for immediately providing qualifying patient’s 
record to the ADHS for review upon request and the Office Administrator Agent is responsible 
for overseeing that qualifying patient records are maintained for five (5) years from the date of 
the qualifying patient’s or, if applicable, the qualifying patient’s designated caregiver’s last 
request for medical marijuana from the Company.   
 
 
7.2 Medical Director (R9-17-313) 
 
The Medical Director for the Company has a very important role to ensure the success of our 
patients and caregivers in providing necessary support and education regarding medical 
marijuana. 
 
Qualifications 
 
The Medical Director must be either a Naturopath, Doctor of Osteopathy or Medical Doctor who 
is in good standing with their governing board.  The medical Director must also be willing to act 
as an Agent within the Company as well as oversight of the cultivation site.  An ability to work 
well with other Agents and show compassion for patients and caregivers is a must. 
 



23 
 

The Company’s Medical Director currently is Dr. Alexander De Soler, Doctor of Naturopath. He 
will be working closely with patients and caregivers to assist with support and education.   He 
will be onsite at least one day a week and will be available 24/7 for the Company by telephone to 
assist patients and caregivers as needed.   
 
 
Authority/Responsibility/Personnel Duties 
 
The Medical Director must stay in compliance with their governing authority/medical board.  
The Medical Director shall comply with all federal and state rules and regulations regarding 
his/her position with the Company.  The Medical Director, or a doctor appointed by the medical 
Director in his/her absence, agrees to be available onsite or by telephone for all patients and 
caregivers 24/7.  The Medical Director shall be available onsite on dates and times to be agreed 
upon or by appointment for the needs of a particular patient or caregiver.  The Medical Director 
is also responsible for the following pursuant to the ADHS Rules and Regulations: 
 
The Medical Director is responsible for and agrees to prepare and make available for patient and 
caregiver information and educational materials including the following: 
 

• Alternative medical options for the patient’s debilitating medical condition; 
• Information about possible side effects of and contraindications for medical 

marijuana including possible impairment with use and operation of a motor vehicle or 
heavy machinery, when caring for children, or of job performance; 

• Guidelines to the patient or caregiver for notifying the physician who provided the 
written certification/recommendations of medical marijuana if side effects or 
contraindications occur; 

• A description of the potential for differing strengths of medical marijuana strains and 
products; 

• Information about potential drug-drug interactions, including interactions with 
alcohol, prescription drugs, non-prescription drugs, and supplements; 

• Techniques for the use of medical marijuana and marijuana paraphernalia; 
• Information about different methods, forms, and routes of medical marijuana 

administration; 
• Signs and symptoms of substance abuse programs and referral information. 
• Guidelines for refusing medical marijuana to an individual who appears to be 

impaired or abusing medical marijuana. 
 
The Medical Director shall also provide Agent education and training at least once every twelve 
(12) months from the initial date of the dispensary’s registration certificate on all of the above 
mentioned duties. 
 
The Medical Director, pursuant to the ADHS Rules and Regulations, agrees not to provide 
written certifications/recommendations for medical marijuana for any qualifying patient. 
 
The Medical Director, along with the Office Administrator Agent, oversees the Inventory 
Control System of the cultivation site with the use of secured software, MJ Freeway. 



24 
 

 
The Medical Director oversees and is responsible for any Agents working in the cultivations site.  
Along with the Agents in the cultivation site, The Medical Director will be responsible for 
overseeing the cleaning and sanitation of the cultivation site and strict adherence to the rules and 
requirements of attire and procedures to be followed by Agents in the cultivation site. 
 
Agents are to report to the Medical Director any health condition experienced by an Agent that 
may adversely affect the safety or quality of any medical marijuana with which the dispensary 
Agent may come into contact.  It is the Medical Director’s responsibility at the time of reporting 
to determine if a dispensary Agent has a health condition that may adversely affect the safety or 
quality of the medical marijuana, is prohibited from direct contact with any medical marijuana or 
equipment or materials for processing medical marijuana until the Medical Director determines 
that the Agent’s health condition will not adversely affect the medical marijuana. 
 
The Medical Director is appointed by the Company and employed by the Company.  The 
Medical Director agrees to sign an Employment Agreement and abide by the terms stated 
therein.  The Medical Director can be replaced for any reason. 
 
Refer to subsections under Agents below for additional authority and responsibilities for the 
Medical Director. 
 
7.3 Agents/Dispensers (R9-17-314)  
 
Agents are important to the success of the Company in how well they work closely with eligible 
patients, caregivers and the Medical Director.  They have a lot of responsibility and their duties 
are quite diverse within the Company.  It is their responsibility to see that the experience by the 
patients and caregivers is a positive one.  They must be knowledgeable of medicinal marijuana 
and be able to work well with patients, caregivers, the Medical Director and other Agents.  They 
will be required to complete an extensive orientation with the Office Administrator Agent 
regarding confidentiality requirements, office procedures, job requirements, training on computer 
software for verifying patient eligibility, input of patient records and point of sale transactions 
for medicine, overview of Company policies and procedures regarding periodic performance 
evaluations and disciplinary actions. 
 
Agents are required to successfully complete an initial training course and receive training every 
12 months with the Medical Director consisting of the following: informing patients and 
caregivers of the risks, benefits, side effects of recognizing signs/symptoms of substance abuse 
and refusing medication to a patient who appears impaired or abusing the medication. The 
Agents will verify the validity of the qualifying patient’s or designated caregiver’s registry 
identification card and verify the amount the qualifying patient or designated caregiver is 
requesting. 
 
Agents must be knowledgeable of the ADHS Rules and Regulations as well as the Arizona 
Revised Statutes concerning medical marijuana and agree to abide by them to the fullest extent.  
All Agents are held to a high standard.  Any rule or law breaking will result in a disciplinary 



25 
 

action and immediate termination.  Termination will be reported to the ADHS within ten (10) 
days of termination.  They will not be eligible for rehire at any time.   
 
 
Qualifications 
 
Agents must be willing to abide strictly by the ADHS Rules and Regulations and Arizona 
Revised Statutes as they relate to patient and caregiver interaction and the dispensing of 
medicinal marijuana.  A willingness to work closely with other Agents and the Medical Director 
to learn the risks, benefits, side effects of medical marijuana, providing support related to 
assessment (including rating scale), recognizing signs/symptoms of substance abuse and refusing 
medication to a patient who appears impaired or abusing the medication is a must.  They must be 
able to pass a background check and possess a clean driving record.  They must have a 
willingness to be flexible with work hours.  A compassionate disposition and a genuine care and 
concern for others are requirements for this position with the Company.   
 
Authority/Responsibilities/Personnel Duties 
 
Agents will work with patients and caregivers to assist with support and education regarding 
medical marijuana.  They will also be responsible for dispensing medical marijuana.  They must 
agree to the responsibilities and personnel duties outlined below in compliance with the ADHS 
Rules and Regulations, and work closely with the Office Administrator Agent and/or Medical 
Director in the following:      
 
Each and every Agent of the Company agrees to follow the following procedures concerning 
dispensing medical marijuana pursuant to the Company policies, the Rules and Regulations of 
the ADHS and Arizona Revised Statutes.  Any variance by an Agent to the following procedures 
are required by the ADHS will result in a disciplinary action and immediate termination and 
possible prosecution if the law is broken and reported to law enforcement if applicable.  All 
Agents will have an access code to access any patient information. 
 
All Agents of the Company must submit:  Copy of their driver’s license, a current photograph, 
two original sets of fingerprint cards and a signed Attestation to the Office Administrator Agent 
to be submitted to the ADHS, along with required fees for employment.  Upon the completion of 
no more than 30 days of uninterrupted employment, the Company will reimburse the Agent for 
fees and costs paid for employment. 
 
All Agents must go through a training process by the Medical Director.  More details for the 
training process specified in the Medical Director section.   
 
All Agents must meet with the Office Administrator Agent to fill out necessary employment 
paperwork and go over the risks, responsibility benefits and requirements associated with their 
employment. 
 
All Agents must be trained on software systems used by the Company regarding patient and 
cultivation records, including, but not limited to the following duties and responsibilities:  



26 
 

 
Patient card information, tracking of medical marijuana, packaging, disposing of unusable 
marijuana, which may include submitting any usable marijuana, which may include submitting 
any unusable marijuana to a local law enforcement agency; qualifying patient record keeping, 
including purchases, denials of sale, and delivery options, confidentiality and retention; effects of 
different strains;  purported effectiveness of various methods, forms, and routes of medical 
marijuana administration, including the effects on a qualifying patient of different strains and 
forms of marijuana; and public places. 
 
Patient card information, tracking of medical marijuana, packaging, disposing of unusable 
marijuana, which may include submitting any unusable marijuana to a local law enforcement 
agency; qualifying patient record keeping,  including purchases, denials of sale, any delivery 
options, confidentiality and retention; effects of different strains; purported effectiveness of 
various methods, forms, and routes of medical marijuana administration, including the effects on 
a qualifying patient of different strains and forms of marijuana; and public places.  The currently 
used by the Company are:  MJ Freeway and Quick Books. 
 
Before dispensing medical marijuana to a qualifying patient or a designated caregiver, upon 
arrival the Agent is responsible to: 
 

• Require the patient or caregiver to provide their State issued driver’s license and 
Arizona medical marijuana card to verify the qualifying patient’s or the designated 
caregiver’s identity.  If they are not presented, they will be required to leave the 
Company and not be permitted to proceed further; 

• Upon verification of their identity, the Agent must offer any appropriate patient 
education or support materials which are prepared and available on site by the 
Medical Director; 

• Enter the qualifying patient’s or designated caregiver’s registry identification number 
on the qualifying patient’s or designated caregiver’s registry identification card into 
the medical marijuana electronic verification system with the ADHS and into MJ 
Freeway software; 

• Verify the validity of the qualifying patient’s or designated caregiver’s registry 
identification card with ADHS; 

• Enter the qualifying patient’s name; 
• Enter the qualifying patient’s date of birth; 
• Verify through ADHS’s electronic patient record keeping that the amount of medical 

marijuana the qualifying patient or designated caregiver is requesting would not cause 
the qualifying patient to exceed the limit on obtaining no more than 2.5 ounces of 
medical marijuana during any 14 calendar day period.  If they have exceeded their 
limit, they are to make note that they were denied additional medication and ask them 
to return at a later date and no medication is to be dispensed to them; 

• If eligible for medication, the following information will be entered into the medical 
marijuana electronic verification system and MJ Freeway for the qualifying patient or 
designated caregiver which will also be included on the label , which will be printed 
and attached to the medication when dispensed; 

 



27 
 

1. The amount of medical marijuana dispensed, 
2. Whether the medical marijuana was dispensed to the qualifying patient or to the 
qualifying patient’s designated caregiver, 
3. The date and time the medical marijuana was dispensed, 
4. The dispensing agent’s registry identification number, and  
5. The dispensary’s registry identification number.  

 
In addition, Agents are required to adhere and agree to the following policy upon dispensing 
medication:  The medication will be dispensed in a medical vial or plastic bag (whatever is the 
preference of the patient) and placed in a white pharmacy bag marked with appropriate warnings.  
The bag will be sealed prior to the patient or caregiver leaving the Company with a label 
indicating that the bag or medication is not to be opened prior to reaching their destination. 
 
Agent is required to learn the procedures for and adhere to the following: (Pursuant to R9-
17-315) 
 

 
Section 8 

Patient Records 
 
A.  In addition to the Office Administrator Agent and Medical Director, Agents hired by the 
Company are authorized pursuant to these policies and procedures are required to do the 
following: 
 

• A qualifying patient completes the initial intake paperwork upon arrival and a record 
is established in MJ Freeway and Virtual Office that will be maintained for each 
qualifying patient who obtains medical marijuana from out Company; 

• An entry in a qualifying patient record in MJ Freeway 
 

1.  Is recorded only by an Agent authorized by the Company to make an entry, 
2.  Is dated and signed by the Agent, 
3.  Includes the Agent’s registry identification number, and 
4.  Is not changed to make the initial entry illegible; 
 
• If an electronic signature is used to sign an entry, the Agent whose signature the 

electronic code represents is accountable for the use of the electronic signature; and 
• A qualifying patient record is only accessed by an Agent authorized by the 

Company’s policies and procedures to access the qualifying patient record; 
• A qualifying patient record is provided to the Department for review upon request; 
• A qualifying patient record is maintained for five (5) years from the date of the 

qualifying patient’s or qualifying patient’s caregiver’s last request for medical 
marijuana from the dispensary. 

 
B.  If the Company maintains qualifying patient records electronically, the Company and the 
Agent shall ensure that: 
 



28 
 

• There are safeguards to prevent unauthorized access (i.e., secured sites which the 
Company has set up through Virtual Office and MJ Freeway), and  

• The date and time of an entry in a qualifying patient record is recorded electronically 
by an internal clock. 

 
C.  The Company and Agent ensure that a qualifying patient’s record for the qualifying patient 
who requests or whose designated caregiver on behalf of the qualifying patient requests medical 
marijuana from the Company contains qualifying patient information that includes: 
 

• The qualifying patient’s name; 
• The qualifying patient’s date of birth; and 
• The name of the qualifying patient’s designated caregiver, if applicable; 

 
D.  The Company Agents will document any patient education and support materials provided to 
the qualifying patient or the qualifying patient’s designated caregiver, including a description of 
the materials and the date the materials were provided.  If documentation is requested and the 
qualifying patient or qualifying patient’s caregiver does not receive it, the Agent will record; 
 

•  The date 
• The name and registry identification number of the individual who requested the 

medical marijuana, and 
• The Company’s reason for refusing to provide the medical marijuana. 

 
Section 9 

Inventory Control System and Cultivation Site (R-17-316) 
 
The Company will designate in writing a dispensary agent who has oversight of the dispensary’s 
medical marijuana inventory control system. 
 
The Company’s policy, which is overseen by the Office Administrator Agent and the Medical 
Director, is in compliance with the ADHS Rules and Regulations and Arizona revised Statutes, 
permitting the Company to only acquire marijuana from: 
 

• The Company’s cultivation site, 
• Another dispensary or another dispensary’s cultivation site, 
• A qualifying patient authorized by the AHDS to cultivate marijuana, or 
• A designated caregiver authorized by the ADHS to cultivate marijuana. 

 
All Agents are trained on an inventory control system using MJ Freeway for the Company’s 
medical marijuana patient records and inventory control that documents the items listed below.  
All Agents are required to use this software and have training and a full understanding of it.  
Training is available from the Office Administrator Agent upon hire and from JF Freeway for 
additional training. 
 
The Company’s policy as well as the responsibility of the Office Administrator Agent to oversee 
compliance of our Agents and ensure there is a record of the following concerning the 



29 
 

medication and inventory control system, using MJ Freeway, to show each day’s beginning 
inventory, acquisitions, harvests, sales, disbursements, disposal of unusable marijuana, and 
ending inventory. 
 
 
9.1    When acquiring medical marijuana from a qualifying patient or designated      
caregiver; 
 

• A description of the medical marijuana acquired including the amount and strain, 
• The name and registry identification number of the qualifying patient or designated 

caregiver who provided the medical marijuana, 
• The name and registry identification number of the dispensary agent receiving the 

medical marijuana on behalf of the dispensary, and 
• The date of the acquisition, 

 
 
9.2    When acquiring medical marijuana from another dispensary; 
 

• A description of medical marijuana acquired including the amount, strain, and batch 
number; 

• The name and registry identification number of the dispensary and the dispensary 
agent who provided the medical marijuana; 

• The name and registry identification number of the dispensary agent receiving the 
medical marijuana on behalf of the dispensary; and 

• The date of acquisition. 
 
 

 
 
9.3   Each batch of marijuana cultivated must include the following: 
 

• The batch number; 
• Whether the batch originated from marijuana seeds or marijuana cuttings; 
• The origin and strain of marijuana seed or marijuana cutting planted; 
• The number of marijuana seeds or marijuana cuttings planted 
• The date the marijuana seeds or cuttings were planted; 
• A list of all chemical additives, including nonorganic pesticides, herbicides, and 

fertilizers used in the cultivation; 
• The number of female plants grown to maturity; 
• Harvest information including, date of harvest, final processed usable marijuana yield 

weight, and name and registry identification number of the dispensary agent for the 
harvest; 

• The disposal of medical marijuana that is not usable marijuana including, description 
of and reason for the marijuana being disposed of, if applicable, the number of any 



30 
 

failed or other unusable plants, date of disposal, method of disposal and name and 
registry identification number of the dispensary agent responsible for the disposal. 

 
9.4    When providing medical marijuana to another dispensary: 
 

• The amount, strain, and batch number of medical marijuana provided, 
• The name and registry identification number of the other dispensary, 
• The name and registry identification number of the dispensary agent who received the 

medical marijuana on behalf of the other dispensary, and 
• The date the medical marijuana was provided. 

 
9.5    When receiving edible food products infused with medical marijuana from another 
dispensary:    
 

• A description of the edible food products received from the dispensary, including 
total weight of each edible food product, estimated amount and batch number of the 
medical marijuana infused in each edible products; 

• Total estimated amount and batch number of medical marijuana infused in the edible 
food products; 

• The name and registry identification number of the dispensary and the dispensary 
agent providing the edible food products to the receiving dispensary, 

• Dispensary agent receiving the edible food products on behalf of the dispensary; 
• The date the edible food products were provided to the dispensary. 

 
The Company will establish and implement an inventory control system for the dispensary’s 
medical marijuana that documents each day’s beginning inventory, acquisitions, harvests, sales, 
disbursements, disposal of unusable marijuana, and ending inventory; 
 
To be in compliance with ADHS Rules and Regulations and the Arizona Revised Statutes, R9-
17-316) the Medical Director, with the assistance of the Office Administrator Agent, is 
responsible for conducting and documenting an audit of the dispensary’s inventory that is 
accounted for according to generally accepted accounting principles on the 30th day of each 
month (at least once every thirty (30) calendar days).   
 
If the audit identifies a reduction in the amount of medical in the Company’s inventory not due 
to documented causes, the Company will determine where the loss occurred and document the 
corrective action. 
 
If the reduction in the amount of medical marijuana in the Company’s inventory is due to 
suspected criminal activity by a dispensary agent, the dispensary will report the dispensary agent 
to the ADHS and to local law enforcement authorities. 
 
The Company’s policy and the responsibility of the Office Administrator Agent is to maintain all 
documentation at the Company for five (5) years from the date on the document regarding the 
inventory control system; and 
 



31 
 

The Company’s policy, the Office Administrator Agent, is to provide the documentation related 
to the inventory control system to the ADHS immediately for review upon request. 
 
 
 

Section 10 
Product Labeling and Analysis (R9-17-317) 

 
The Company’s policy is to ensure that the Agents employed with the Company, with oversight 
by the Medical Director, ensure that medical marijuana provided by the Company to a qualifying 
patient or a designated caregiver is labeled with: 
  

• The Company’s registry identification number; 
• The amount, strain, and batch number of medical marijuana; 
• The following statement “ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH SERVICES’ 

WARNING: Marijuana can be addictive and can impair and contains 
carcinogens and can lead to an increased risk for cancer, tachycardia, 
hypertension, heart attack and lung infections.  KEEP MARIJUANA OUT OF 
REACH OF CHILDREN AND ANY UNAUTHORIZED INDIVIDUAL”; 

• If not cultivated by the Dispensary, whether the medical marijuana was obtained from 
a qualifying patient, a designated caregiver, or another dispensary. 

• The date of manufacture, harvest, or sale. 
• A list of all chemical additives, including nonorganic pesticides, herbicides, and 

fertilizers, used in the cultivation and production of the medical marijuana; and  
• The registry identification number of the qualifying patient. 

 
It is the Company’s policy, and in compliance with the ADHS Rules and Regulations and 
Arizona Revised Statutes, that if the Company provides medical marijuana cultivated by the 
Company to another dispensary, the Company’s agents, overseen by the Medical Director, shall 
ensure that the medical marijuana is labeled with: 
 

• The dispensary’s registry identification number;  
• The amount, strain, and batch number of the medical marijuana; 
• The date of harvest or sale; and 
• A list of all chemical additives, including nonorganic pesticides, herbicides, and 

fertilizers, used in the cultivation of the medical marijuana. 
 

Section 11 
Edible Food Products (R9-17-319) 

 
It is the Company’s policy in compliance with the ADHS Rules and Regulations and the Arizona 
Revised Statutes that if medical marijuana is provided as part of an edible food product, the 
Company and our Agents, overseen by the Medical Director, that in addition to the information 
above, include on the label the total weight of the edible food product.   
 



32 
 

If the Company prepares, sells or dispenses marijuana-infused edible food products the Company 
will obtain written authorization from ADHS.  The Company will ensure that the marijuana-
infused edible food products are prepared according to the applicable requirements in 9 A.A.C. 
8, Article 1.   
 
If the Company does not prepare edible foods, the Company will obtain and maintain a copy of 
the current written authorization to prepare marijuana-infused edible food products from the 
dispensary that prepares the edible products. 
 
The Company will ensure that the marijuana-infused edible food products are sold or dispensed 
according to applicable requirements in 9 A.A.C.8, Article 1.   
 
The Company is responsible for the content and quality of any edible food product sold or 
dispensed by the dispensary. 
 
It is the Company policy in compliance with the ADHS Rules and Regulations and the Arizona 
Revised Statutes, that the Company and by the Office Administrator Agent or Medical Director a 
sample will be provided to the ADHS upon request of the Company’s marijuana-infused edible 
products inventory of sufficient quantity to enable the AHDS to conduct an analysis of the 
medical marijuana. 
 
The Company will supply notice of warning to all patients who purchase edible products to keep 
products away from some children. 

 
Section 12 

Security (R9-17-318) 
 
The Company will have the following security for the dispensary: 
 

• Devices to detect unauthorized intrusion,  
• Exterior lighting to facilitate surveillance; 
• Electronic monitoring including at least one 19-inch or greater call-up monitor, a 

video printer capable of immediately producing a clear still photo from any video 
camera image, and video cameras.  The video cameras  will provide coverage of all 
entrances to and exits from limited access areas and all entrances to and exits from 
the building, and capable of identifying any activity occurring in or adjacent to the 
building.  The cameras will have a recording resolution of a least 704 x 480. 

• A video camera will be at each point of sale, allowing for the identification of any 
qualifying patient or designated caregiver purchasing medical marijuana 

• A video camera will be in each grown room, capable of identifying any activity 
occurring with the grow room in low light conditions, 

• Storage of video recordings from the video cameras for at least 30 calendar days, 
• Failure notification system that provides an audible and visual notification of any 

failure in the electronic monitoring system, and 
• Sufficient battery backup for video cameras and recording equipment to support at 

least five minutes of recording in the event of a power outage; 



33 
 

• Panic buttons in the interior of each building. 
 
All Employees will be trained in restricted access to the areas of the dispensary and cultivation 
site to authorized individuals only.    

 
 
 
 

Section 13 
When Transporting Medical Marijuana 

 
The transporting Agent must complete a trip plan that includes: 
 

• The name of the Dispensary Agent in charge of transporting the marijuana; 
• The date and start time of the trip 
• A description of the marijuana, marijuana plants or marijuana paraphernalia being 

transported 
• Anticipated route of transportation; and 
• Provide a copy of the trip plan to the Dispensary. 

 
If the Dispensary transports marijuana as listed above, during transportation, the Agent shall: 
 

• Carry a copy of the trip plan with the Agent for the duration of the trip; 
• Use a vehicle without any medical marijuana identification; 
• Has a means of communication with the Dispensary, and 
• Ensure that the marijuana,  marijuana plants, or marijuana paraphernalia are not 

visible; 
 
At the completion of the trip, the Dispensary Agent shall enter the end time of the trip and any 
changes to the trip plan. 
 

Section 14 
Cleaning and Sanitation 

 
The Company will ensure that any building or equipment used by the dispensary for cultivation, 
harvest, preparation packaging, storage, infusion or sale of medical marijuana is maintained in a 
clean and sanitary condition.   
 

• Medical marijuana in the process of production, preparation, manufacture, packing, 
storage, sale, distribution or transportation is protected from flies, dust, dirt and all 
other contamination; 

• Refuse or waste products incident to the manufacture, preparation, packing, selling 
distributing, or transportation of medical marijuana are removed form the buildings 
used as a dispensary and, if applicable, a building at the dispensary’s cultivation site 
at least once every 24 hours or more often as necessary to maintain a clean condition. 



34 
 

• All trucks, trays, buckets, other receptacles, platforms, racks, tables, shelves, knives, 
saws, cleavers, other utensils, or the machinery used in moving, handling, cutting, 
chopping, mixing, canning, packaging, or other processes are cleaned daily. 

• All edible food products are securely covered. 
 
The Agents in the dispensary and cultivation site will clean their hands and any exposed portions 
of the Agent’s arms in a hand washing sink: 
 

•  Before preparing medical marijuana including working with food, equipment and 
utensils; 

• During preparation, as often as necessary to remove soil and contamination and to 
prevent cross-contamination when changing tasks; 

• After handling soiled equipment or utensils; 
• After touching bare human body parts other than the dispensary Agent’s clean hands 

and exposed portions of arms; 
• After using the toilet room 

 
When the Agent is working directly with the preparation of medical marijuana or the infusion of 
marijuana into non-edible products:  
 

• The Agent’s fingernails will be trimmed, filed, and maintained so that the edges and 
surfaces are cleanable; 

• Unless wearing intact gloves in good repair, will not have fingernail polish or 
artificial fingernails on the Agent’s fingernails; and 

• Wears protective apparel such as coats, aprons, gowns, or gloves to prevent 
contamination; 

 
The Agents will wear clean clothing appropriate to assigned tasks.  All Agents will report to the 
medical director any health condition experienced by the dispensary Agent that may adversely 
affect the safety or quality of any medical marijuana with which the dispensary Agent may come 
in contact.  If the Medical Director determines that a dispensary Agent has a health condition that 
may adversely affect the safety or quality of the medical marijuana, is prohibited from direct 
contact with any medical marijuana or equipment or materials for processing medical marijuana 
until the medical director determines that the dispensary agent’s health condition will not adverly 
affect the medical marijuana. 
 
In the physical plant, the dispensary is located at least 500 feet from a private or public school.  
The dispensary provides on-site parking or parking adjacent to the building used in the 
dispensary.  The building used as the dispensary’s cultivation site has: 
 

•  At least one toilet room with flushable toile, mounted toilet tissue, a sink with 
running water, soap contained in a dispenser and disposable, single-use paper towels 
in a mounted dispenser or a mechanical air hand dryer. 

• At least one hand washing sink not located in a toilet room; 



35 
 

• Designated storage areas for medical marijuana or materials used in direct contact 
with medical marijuana separate from storage areas for toxic or flammable materials; 
and 

• If preparation or packaging of medical marijuana is done in the building, a designated 
area for the preparation or packaging that includes work space that can be sanitized 
and is only used for the preparation or packaging of medical marijuana. 

 
For each commercial device used the dispensary will:  A.R.S. 36-2806 
 

• Ensure commercial device is licensed or certified pursuant to A.R.S. 41-2091; 
• Maintain documentation of the commercial device’ license or certification, and 
• Provide a copy of the commercial device’s license or certification to the Department 

for review upon request. 
 
The Company is operated on a not-for-profit basis.  The dispensary and cultivation have a single 
secure entrance.  The dispensary provides no compensation for medical marijuana acquired from 
qualifying patients and designated caregivers.  The dispensary does not permit any person to 
consume marijuana on the property of the dispensary or cultivation site. 

 
Section 15 

Performance Reviews 
 
Because our Agents’ performance is vital to our success, we conduct periodic reviews of 
individual Agent performance.  We hope that, through these reviews, our Agents will learn what 
we expect of them, and we will learn what they expect of us. 
 
We require all Agents to participate in the review process.  Failure to participate could lead to 
discipline, up to and including termination. 
 
Employee evaluations will be conducted once a year on the employee’s employment 
anniversary.  Evaluations will include attitude, productivity, quality of work, knowledge of the 
product, initiative, communication, cooperation, punctuality and attendance, goals and objectives 
with recommendations for future development with the Company. 
 
To learn more about our performance review system, contact the Office Administrator Agent. 
 
 



36 
 

   
At-Will Employment Agreement and  

Acknowledgement of Receipt of Employee Handbook  
   
   
Employee:  
   
I acknowledge that I have been provided with a copy of the Ultra Health - Florence (the 
"Company") Employee Handbook, which contains important information on the Company's 
policies, procedures and benefits, including the policies on Anti-Harassment/Discrimination, 
Substance Use and Abuse and Confidentiality. I understand that I am responsible for 
familiarizing myself with the policies in this handbook and agree to comply with all rules 
applicable to me.  
   
I understand and agree that the policies described in the handbook are intended as a guide only 
and do not constitute a contract of employment. I specifically understand and agree that the 
employment relationship between the Company and me is at-will and can be terminated by the 
Company or me at any time, with or without cause or notice. Furthermore, the Company has the 
right to modify or alter my position, or impose any form of discipline it deems appropriate at any 
time. Nothing in this handbook is intended to modify the Company's policy of at-will 
employment. The at-will employment relationship may not be modified except by a specific 
written agreement signed by me and an authorized representative of the Company. This is the 
entire agreement between the Company and me regarding this subject. All prior or 
contemporaneous inconsistent agreements are superseded.  
   
I understand that the Company reserves the right to make changes to its policies, procedures or 
benefits at any time at its discretion. However, the at-will employment agreement can be 
modified only in the manner specified above. I further understand that the Company reserves the 
right to interpret its policies or to vary its procedures as it deems necessary or appropriate.  
   
I have received the Company Employee Handbook. I have read (or will read) and agree to abide 
by the policies and procedures contained in the Handbook.  
   
   
   
By: ___________________________________  Date: __________________  

Employee 
   
   
   
By: ___________________________________  Date: __________________  

Administrative Agent 
   
 



























































































































































































































































































































	   2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit D 
	   	  



	   	  



	   1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit E 
	   	  



	   3 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit F 
 
 
 
 



 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
9a. 

MEETING DATE:  March 17, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Utilities Department  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  John V. Mitchell, Utilities Director 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of a professional service agreement   
                   with Southwest Ground-water Consultants, Inc.,  
                   for the siting and design of a new production  
                   well in North Florence. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Southwest Ground-water Consultants, Inc. Agreement                         Meeting Date: March 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve a professional service agreement with Southwest Ground-water 
Consultants, Inc., (SWG) for the siting and design of a new production well in North 
Florence. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
SWG has been selected to site and design a new production well in North Florence, 
north of the Gila River.  The new production well will alleviate substandard conditions 
and deficiencies and provide for future growth. 
 
This project has three phases: Phase 1 is well siting, spacing, permitting and technical 
specifications, and contractor selection; Phase 2 is pilot borehole drilling, logging and 
testing; and Phase 3 is well construction and testing.  Approval of this item authorizes 
SWG to complete Phase 1 only, with the remaining two phases to be completed once 
the final well construction has been bid and approved by Council.   Siting and design will 
be completed this fiscal year with construction of the well completed in FY 2014-2016.   
 
This new production well is listed in the FY 2013/2014 CIP (U-23). 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The CIP identifies $45,000 available for this project in the FY 13/14 CIP.  The amount 
obligated in the professional services agreement is $48,765.  The increase will be paid 
from the Water Fund, Account No. 51-574-217 (Professional Services). 
 
 
 
 



Subject: Southwest Ground-water Consultants, Inc. Agreement                         Meeting Date: March 17, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the professional service agreement with Southwest 
Ground-water Consultants, Inc. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Agreement  
Scope of Work 























mariah
Typewritten Text

mariah
Typewritten Text

mariah
Typewritten Text

mariah
Typewritten Text

mariah
Typewritten Text
Attest:___________________________________Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk

mariah
Typewritten Text

mariah
Typewritten Text

mariah
Typewritten Text

mariah
Typewritten Text

mariah
Typewritten Text
     

mariah
Typewritten Text

mariah
Typewritten Text

mariah
Typewritten Text

mariah
Typewritten Text



























 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
9b.  

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                      Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Acceptance of Mr. John L. Anderson’s  
                     resignation from the Planning and Zoning  
                     Commission. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  John L. Anderson’s Resignation   Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to accept the resignation of John L. Anderson from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
In response to the letter of resignation of John L. Anderson from the Planning and 
Zoning Commission, action is recommended to accept his resignation and to fill his 
vacated position. 
 
With John L. Anderson’s departure from the Planning and Zoning Commission due to 
personal reasons, that leaves the following active members on the Commission: 
 
Jeff Wooley   (term expiring 12/31/14) 
 
Barry B. Reed  (term expiring 12/31/15) 
 
James Petty  (term expiring 12/31/15) 
 
Larry Putrick  (term expiring 12/31/15) 
 
Currently, the Town of Florence has no alternate members available for the position of 
Planning and Zoning Commission seat. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
No fiscal impact with this request. 
 
 



Subject:  John L. Anderson’s Resignation   Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the resignation of John L. Anderson from the Planning and 
Zoning Commission be accepted. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resignation letter  







 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
9c. 

MEETING DATE:  March 17, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manger/ 
                                     Town Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:  Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce Special 
                    Event License Application 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Special Event License   Meeting Date: March 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Ratification of the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce’s application for a Special 
Event License for an After-Hours Mixer on April 3, 2014.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce submitted a request for a Special Event 
License to hold an After-Hours Mixer with alcohol.   Staff processed the late application 
in order for the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce to be able to receive their 
license in time for the event.  Town Code requires Council approval so this item is for a 
ratification of staff’s actions.  
 
The purpose of a Special Event License is to allow charitable, civic, fraternal, political, 
or religious organizations to sell and serve spirituous liquor for consumption as a 
fundraiser.  Special event licenses may be issued for no more than a cumulative total of 
ten (10) days in a calendar year.  The fee for a Special Event License is $25 per day, 
payable to the Arizona Department of Liquor License and Control.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff recommends the Council ratify the recommendation of approval. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Application 











MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 
JANUARY 6, 2014, AT 5:30 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, LOCATED AT 775 
NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
Vice-Mayor Smith called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present: Rankin, Smith, Celaya, Hawkins, Montaño, Walter, Woolridge. 
 
ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION  
For the purpose of discussion of the public body with the Town Attorney in accordance 
with A.R.S 38-431.03(A)(4) for discussion and consideration of Town’s position with 
regard to pending litigation. 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 4, 2014 
Page 1 of 17 

 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Walters, and carried to 
adjourn to Executive Session.  
 
ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
  
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Vice-Mayor Smith, and carried to adjourn 
from Executive Session.   
 
 INVOCATION 
 
Councilmember Woolridge performed the invocation.  
  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 
Mayor Rankin led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Town 
Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to 
review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, 
members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter during an open 
call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal 
action. 
 
There were no public comments.   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS & PRESENTATIONS 
Public Hearing on Annexation No. 2013-03, more commonly known as the Redstone 
Ranch Annexation. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 4, 2014 
Page 2 of 17 

Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated that the annexation encompasses 
one owner, GH Capital, LLC., is approximately thirty acres and is located within the southeast 
portion of the Town’s Planning Area.  The site is undeveloped and the owners are requesting 
to place R-16 residential zoning on the property when it is included in the Town.      
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the Town is required by Arizona Revised Statutes to hold a public 
hearing within the last ten days of the thirty day waiting period.  He said this public hearing, 
which purpose is to obtain public comment regarding the proposed annexation, was noticed 
per State Statute.   
 
Mayor Rankin opened the public hearing.  There was no public comment; Mayor Rankin 
closed the public hearing.   
 
Public Hearing on an application received from Lisa Whitten, Big Quick’s BBQ, LLC or 
Big Quick’s B.B.Q, located at 727 Gressinger Street, Florence, Arizona, for a new Series 
12 restaurant license; and for Council recommendation for approval or disapproval of 
said license.  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, stated that the Clerk’s Office received 
and properly posted the application at 727 Gressinger Street.  The application remained 
posted for 20 days, as required.  The Clerk’s Office did not receive any comments.  Staff is 
recommending to Council to forward a favorable recommendation to the Arizona Department 
of Liquor License and Control.   
 
Mayor Rankin opened the public hearing.   
 
There were no public comments.   
 
Mayor Rankin closed the public hearing.  
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Smith, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried to forward 
a favorable recommendation to the Arizona Department of Liquor License and Control on 
behalf of the application received from Lisa Whitten, Big Quick’s BBQ, LLC or Big Quick’s 
BBQ. 

 
Public Hearing on an application for PZC-34-13-ORD. First reading of Ordinance No. 
606-14 

 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Ordinance No. 606-14 by title only. 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE CODE OF ORDINANCES, TITLE XV LAND USAGE, CHAPTER 
150 DEVELOPMENT CODE, SECTION 150.031 DEFINED WORDS, SECTION 150.047 
DISTRICT USE REGULATIONS TABLES (A) AND ESTABLISHING A NEW RURAL 
RESIDENTIAL EQUESTRIAN SUBDIVISION (RRES) ZONING DISTRICT SECTION (PZC-
34-13-ORD). 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 4, 2014 
Page 3 of 17 

Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated that the request is for a text 
amendment for the annexation area known as Wild Horse Estates.  He said the property is 
currently in Pinal County and zoned for manufactured homes, small lots, and for two horses.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the area has been constructed differently than what the Pinal County 
zoning would imply.  Most of the homes are site built and not manufactured homes.  There are 
some deviations from Pinal County’s zoning with regards to how many animals can be kept on 
the property.  He said all of the lots are closer to one acre in size, which is much larger than 
what Pinal County zoning indicates.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the goal is to have a new Town Zoning District in place to apply to the 
Wild Horse Estates area should the Arizona Farms Annexation be successful.  Staff has 
worked diligently to ensure the new zoning requirements for this area will help preserve the 
semi-rural lifestyle, while also complying with State Statutes pertaining to comparable zoning 
requirements for annexed areas.  He said if they applied comparable zoning to Pinal County, 
they would end up with several non-conformities, which is something staff does not want to do.  
The RRES Zoning District is intended to provide comparable zoning for the residents of Wild 
Horse Estates.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that per the direction of the Planning and Zoning Commission, staff held a 
work session to give Wild Horse Estates property owners an additional opportunity to assist in 
formulating the framework of the proposed Zoning District.  
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that after two Planning and Zoning Commission (PZC) meetings and one 
worksession, the Commission recommended the proposed ordinance because it most closely 
follows the original Zoning District that was adopted in Pinal County.  The intent for the Wild 
Horse Estates subdivision was to provide an area that would allow horses and similar animals.  
Furthermore, this proposed district better reflects existing conditions in this subdivision and 
avoids or minimizes the creation of non-conformities upon annexation.   

 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that staff has complied with all applicable Town requirements and Arizona 
Revised Statutes regarding public participation.  Exceeding statutory requirements, public notices 
for the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing was mailed to all property owners who 
reside within the Wild Horse Estates subdivision.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that staff pursued community input on this case in several different ways, 
including: 
 

 A PZC public hearing was held on November 7, 2013, and continued to December 5, 
2013.  The original ordinance was mailed out to all Wild Horse Estates subdivision 
property owners and from the November 7, 2013, meeting, five different versions of 
proposed ordinance were created (A-E) and distributed by US mail to property owners; 

 A PZC executive session pertaining to this matter was conducted 
 A PZC worksession was held on November 21, 2013, to discuss the five ordinance 

options 
 Staff met with concerned property owners and there were additional exchanges via 

email and phone  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 4, 2014 
Page 4 of 17 

 Advertisements for establishing the new Rural Residential Equestrian Subdivision 
(RRES) Zoning District were posted in the local Town paper, per Town requirements  

 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that through the outreach, he believes they came to a consensus; however, 
there are a few individuals that are not completely satisfied with what is being proposed.  He 
said the compromise is that the lot sizes that are being proposed are consistent with what 
currently exists so there are no non-conforming lots.  Pinal County’s zoning is carried that they 
are allowed two horses and interpreted that a llama and alpaca would be comparable animals.  
There are also provisions for a conditional use permit where there could be an additional two 
horses or chickens on the property, which Pinal County does not have.  He said the law does 
not allow for zoning to be more intense that what currently exists.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that it was his understanding that the zoning was to remain 
consistent with what currently exists with Pinal County.  The Town was not going to add 
anything additional.  He said it appears that the Town will allow up to four horses.  He said that 
there are only 27 out of the 84 homeowners who have signed in favor; which is not the 
majority.  He is concerned as to why the Town is proceeding forward with adding two more 
horses per lot.  There are also CCRs for those homes that need to be considered.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the Town is required, at a minimum, to maintain comparable zoning if 
the parcels are annexed into the Town.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins reiterated that the majority of the homeowners do not want four 
horses, as the majority of the property owners did not sign in favor of it.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the homeowner would only allowed four horses with a conditional 
use permit.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the property owners were notified on two separate occasions.  He said 
the most active group showed up for the worksession.  The Planning and Zoning Commission 
Chairman asked everyone to voice their opinion on the options, and the consensus is the 
ordinance that is before the Council for consideration.  He said they did apply comparable 
zoning to what exists with Pinal County; however, they encountered a road block because the 
Pinal County zoning is not consistent with what exists at Wild Horse Estates.  He reiterated 
that the lot sizes are different, the homes are site built and not manufactured and there is some 
deviation with regards to the number of animals.  He said they are trying to come up with a 
comparable zoning, per State Statute, as well as addressing the concerns with the property 
owners.  He said property owners wishing to have more than two horses may be allowed to do 
so through a conditional use permit providing they have adequate acreage and their neighbors 
do no object.  It appears to be a fair compromise that was agreed upon.   
 
Discussion occurred on the conditional use permit process.   
 
Discussion occurred on the current enforcement of the zoning by Pinal County.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins wants to ensure that Florence will enforce the zoning.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 4, 2014 
Page 5 of 17 

Mr. Eckhoff stated that Pinal County is enforcing the zoning.  There are very few residents who 
have horses, and even fewer who have more than two horses.   
 
Mayor Rankin opened the public hearing.   
 
Ms. Kelly Nevis, Wild Horse Estates Resident, stated that at the worksession, there were six 
votes in favor of Option C, which allowed the homeowner to exchange a mule or donkey in 
addition to an alpaca or llama.  There were only five votes for Option E.  She said the majority 
of the votes were for opposite.    
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that there were several people who were against the four 
animals at the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting; this was not at the worksession.   
 
Ms. Nevis said that she collected 29 signatures that were in favor of the four animal units, 
along with an additional 17 that have not yet been submitted to the Town, for a total of 46 in 
favor of the four animal units.  There are also six vacant parcels, which brings the total to 52.  
She said there are 16 homeowners that are out of state owners, so there is no one there in 
which to obtain signatures.  She said of the 84 parcel owners, 46 have signed in favor of the 
four animals, which is a majority.     
 
 Councilmember Hawkins stated that the Town has not received the signatures that Ms. Nevis 
is referring to, and can only go by what the Town has received thus far.  
 
Ms. Nevis stated that she will submit the signatures to the Town as soon as she receives them 
from the individual who has them.  He was not able to come to the Council meeting due to 
being ill. 
 
Ms. Nevis stated that there have been discussions about non-confirming uses based on Pinal 
County zoning requirements.  She said she lives in a site built home, which makes her home 
non-conforming.  She said her house should be torn down as well as not being able to have 
the animals because they are non-conforming. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated the Town is not discussing non-conforming issues with Pinal 
County zoning that occurred in the past.  The Town is addressing comparable zoning should 
they be annexed into the Town.     
 
Ms. Nevis stated that Pinal County did not have accurate zoning in the past for the parcels that 
are in Wild Horse Estates.  The zoning that used to be in place before the homes were 
constructed was CR1A, which allowed multitudes of animals of all different kinds.  She said the 
residents should not be penalized because Pinal County is not enforcing the zoning.  She said 
if they want to enforce the issues with animals, they should also enforce all the issues with the 
site built homes, which are 15, and require that they be torn down so they can conform to the 
zoning.  She said there are always exceptions to the rules.   
 
 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 4, 2014 
Page 6 of 17 

She said there was a complaint regarding an individual who was placing the manure in the 
wash.  She visited with individual and inspected the area.   She said when you walk into his 
back property, there is a delineation where the manure starts and stops.  It does not extend 
beyond his property in either direction.  She said staff was given misinformation of manure 
running down the wash.   
 
Ms. Nevis stated that she is favor of the four animal units.  She is not in favor of the conditional 
use permit because they already pay property taxes in order to have their property and they 
will be required to pay an additional tax in order to use the property in a certain manner.  She 
requested that the conditional use permit be waived from the ordinance and to allow up to four 
animal units.  She asked for the size of the animals to be clarified with regards to exchanging 
one animal unit out for another.  She said she does not want to be part of the Town if her 
animals are going to be kicked-out.  There are 46 other property owners who feel the same 
way as she does.   
 
Mr. James Mavis, Wild Horse Estates Resident, requested that they maintain four animal units.  
He said he moved from California to Arizona.  His residence in California was ¾ acre across 
the street from a lake and they had five horses, one goat, and twenty chickens.  They moved 
to Wild Horse Estates because they saw various animals in the subdivision.  He loves where 
they live, they do not have children and his wife’s children are her pets.  They are asking for 
four animal units.  They currently have one horse, two goats, and fifteen chickens.   
 
Barbara Hitcher, Wild Horse Estates Resident, stated that they bought the property because it 
was advertised as horse property.  She owns three miniature horses, with the tallest being 34 
inches.  She said she checked around Pinal County and found Quail Hollow, which are one-
acre properties having multiple horses, site built homes, and manufacture homes.  Sun Valley 
Farms also has site built houses, manufactured homes, and even a mobile home.  She 
inquired what the zoning is for those subdivisions and why they do not have issues like Wild 
Horse Estates.  She has heard of CCRs being mentioned; however, she never received CCRs 
and doesn’t know what CCRs means.  She said the horses were therapeutic horses for her 
husband and she has kept them for sentimental reasons, but cannot see paying for a 
conditional use permit for them.  She said when she bought the property it was with the 
understanding that they could have horses on their property.  She said when you buy horse 
property, it is with the understanding that you can have horses on your horse property.     
 
Mayor Rankin inquired about the use of the words “animal units” and “horse” used within the 
ordinance. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that there were five separate versions of the ordinance and a couple of 
versions utilized the “animal unit” concept.  The current version which was the consensus and 
that the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended, did not utilize the option of animal 
units.  The animal units section is in the ordinance but is not being utilized in this current 
zoning district.  It may be beneficial to utilize in zoning districts in the future and is not a bad 
concept to have included. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 4, 2014 
Page 7 of 17 

Mayor Rankin stated that he disagreed with including the animal units by definition and not 
utilizing it.  He said if they are going to include the wording animal units under defined words it 
should be used throughout because various animals could be classified under animal units.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated the entire section of 150.031 Defined Words can be stricken from the 
ordinance should Council wish.  He said it was utilized for other versions of the ordinance, and 
has no benefit to the current ordinance.    
 
Mayor Rankin inquired about oxen. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the proposed ordinance is for two horses on the property, which can be 
substituted with a llama or alpaca, and an option to extend it to four of those types of animals 
by obtaining a conditional use permit.  He stated they are not taking anything away by doing 
this.  The Pinal County zoning allows you to have a manufactured home and two horses.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the two horses fall under the large animal. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that a horse, under the defined words, would be considered a large animal. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if animal unit is defined as a number of agricultural animals.  
 
Mr. Eckhoff responded yes, an animal unit is defined as a number of agricultural animals. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that horses are the only animals allowed in the ordinance with the 
exception of alpaca or llamas that can be substituted for the horses.  He inquired about oxen, 
mules, and donkeys, or similar animals.    
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the additional animals are not allowed.  He said there was initial 
consideration, and based on the feedback received, they were very firm on the two horses, 
and there was no substitute of animals.  He said the CCRs are not being enforced because the 
Homeowners Association dissolved.  
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if cattle, oxen, donkeys and mules are outlawed.  
 
Mr. Eckhoff said the only animals allowed beyond the domestic pets, by the Pinal County 
zoning today, is two horses.   
 
Mayor Rankin said the zoning has to be comparable to the County, not identical.  He said he 
sees problems down the road with this ordinance.  Wagons are normally pulled by mules in 
hay rides and someone may want mules but will not be able to do so under the proposed 
ordinance.  
 
Councilmember Celaya stated that everyone that lives there understands that they are not 
allowed to have other animals, based on the current Pinal County ordinance.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if this is what the Town wants.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 4, 2014 
Page 8 of 17 

Councilmember Hawkins said that the Council told the public that they would keep the zoning 
as close as possible to what the current zoning is.  He said two horses are as close as 
possible. 
 
Councilmember Celaya said regardless of which direction the Council decides, there will be 
pros and cons for either side.  He said the best alternative is to have the zoning be as close to 
what they currently have and let them vote if they want to be annexed or not.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he would like the ordinance to reflect four animal units rather than 
two horses.  He said under the proposed ordinance, mules and donkeys are not allowed 
unless you get a conditional use permit, which the resident would have to pay for. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired about the cost for the conditional use permit. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff said the conditional use permit would cost approximately $400. 
 
Mayor Rankin said if the wording is included in the ordinance, they wouldn’t have to pay $400 
for the additional animals.  He inquired how many of the lots in Wild Horse Estates are over the 
42,000 square feet.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that they all meet the 42,000 square feet so there are no lots that would be 
non-conforming.  He said all of the lots are non-conforming with Pinal County zoning.  There 
are several problems with the Pinal County zoning.  He said if their zoning was for large lots 
and included several types of animals, there would be no problems as the Town would 
establish comparable zoning.  Staff is trying to build something that is reflective of the Pinal 
County zoning, per State Statute, as well as address the existing conditions so they do not 
become non-conformities once they are incorporated into the Town.    
 
Mayor Rankin stated that two horses are restrictive if you do rodeos.  On one acre parcels of 
land, you can build corrals far away from the homes. He said horses attract flies, which come 
with owning horses.  Animal units, by definition in the ordinance is referred to as agricultural 
animals, which includes everything being discussed under the large animals definition.  He 
said the Town is being very restrictive with regards to various types of horses.  He said the four 
animal units is the way to go and is not as restrictive.  He inquired how many people have 
more than four horses. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff said there is one owner who has eight horses, and may be boarding horses.  The 
majority of the lots show no visible sign of having any horses or livestock on the property.  
Those who do have horses, is typically two horses.  They haven’t gone into everyone’s back 
yard and have driven throughout the neighborhood several times;  and  have noted 
approximately four lots that appear to be out of conformance in that they have animals that are 
excessive to what Pinal County allows now and would be out of conformance with number of 
animals that the Town would permit.    
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired if Mr. Eckhoff said there were two or three lots that have 
horses.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 4, 2014 
Page 9 of 17 

Mr. Eckhoff stated that there are more lots that actually have horses but the majority of horse 
properties out there have two horses on the property and are in conformance with Pinal 
County zoning and the CCRs.  There are only a couple of properties where it is very obvious 
that they have more than two horses.  
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that the Council needs to go with the majority.  He doesn’t 
agree with creating an ordinance for a couple of homeowners.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired what the Town is allowing under the medium units. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that under the definition of medium livestock and small livestock, all that 
would be allowed would be additional chickens.  There would be no sheep, goats, rabbits, 
ducks, geese etc.  The zoning of such animals would not reflect Pinal County zoning or the 
present conditions in the subdivision.  He said the area isn’t zoned to be a farm or general 
rural, and 98% of the lots do not have those types of animals.   
 
Councilmember Montaño asked Mr. Eckhoff to identify in the ordinance which animals are 
authorized and not authorized.  
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated that the ordinance only needs to identify that horses and 
chickens are allowed.  There is no reason to list out which animals are not allowed.   
 
Mayor Rankin reminded the Council that there are FFA and 4-H units throughout the area that 
raise sheep, goats, chickens, rabbits and pigeons.  He said the Town is being too restrictive by 
the ordinance.  He said the ordinance does not show any consideration for FFA, 4-H, or the 
hobbyist who like to raise fowl.   
 
Mayor Rankin read the comments that were submitted. He said he wished Florence had more 
subdivisions like Wild Horse Estates.   
 
Councilmember Montaño stated that Mayor Rankin feels the ordinance is too restrictive; 
however, the ordinance is a result of what came out of the worksession.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he feels that the ordinance is too restrictive to the Council.  He said 
the ordinance eliminates a lot of things in the rural area.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that proposed ordinance is based on the discussion at the 
worksession.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he does not want to pass the ordinance only to have to tell a resident 
that there are things that they cannot do.  He said the ordinance affects 4-H and rural.  He said 
he asked how many complaints have been filed against the homeowners; and there haven’t 
been any filed until the Town started the annexation process. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins asked for discussions to remain on the ordinance. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 4, 2014 
Page 10 of 17 

Councilmember Woolridge stated that the ordinance reflects what the Wild Horse Estates 
residents want and what they asked for.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the only way to have additional animals is to apply for a conditional 
use permit.  He is trying to avoid the necessity for a conditional use permit later on.   
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated that those who reside in Wild Horse Estates already know 
what is required, and those who move there will find out. 
 
Councilmember Celaya stated that if a citizen comes back later on regarding this matter, the 
Council can state that the public was given an opportunity to voice their opinion at the time of 
consideration.   
 
Mayor Rankins stated that he was elected to represent the people. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated he too was elected to represent the people. 
 
Councilmember Celaya called for the question. 
 
Ms. Nevis stated that she will submit the signatures to the Council tomorrow, for a total of 46 
signatures.  She said 46 signatures is a majority.  She said many of the residents are elderly 
and cannot drive at night, which is why they are not in attendance.  She said some of the 
residents do not have horses right now but want to maintain their rights to have them.   
 
Ms. Nevis said the Council cannot be more restrictive than what the current zoning currently 
allows; however they can be more lenient.  She said the residents are asking the Council to be 
more lenient.  She said they are called Wild Horse Estates for a reason; and there are several 
horses across the street from the subdivision.  She said there are wildlife animals in that area 
that leave manure, which no one picks up, and causes an abundance of flies in the area.   
 
Ms. Nevis said with regards to CCRs and HOA, they are not existent, and there aren’t any 
active now, so no one has lived by them.  She said with regards to the complaints filed with the 
County did not exist until the annexation process started.   
 
Ms. Nevis stated that she moved to the area in January 2010 and has had five horses, goats, 
chickens, and guinea hens.  She said no one complained.  Her neighbors aren’t opposed to 
her animals and one even spoke at the meeting.  She said many of the residents have horses 
for various reasons.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that the Council was told that there are only two residents that 
have more than two horses. 
 
Ms. Nevis stated that it is not true.  She can show the Council on the parcel map which 
residents have more than two horses.  She said the residents are in agreement to have four 
animal units.   
 
Mayor Rankin closed the public hearing.   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 4, 2014 
Page 11 of 17 

 
CONSENT: All items indicated by an (*) will be handled by a single vote as part of the 
consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the time 
the agenda item is called. 

 
*Approval of a Special Event Liquor License for a Coolige-Florence Elk’s Lodge #2350 
and Pinal Mounted Posse fundraiser on February 9, 2014 from 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. for 
an event at the Charles Whitlow Rodeo Grounds.  
 
*Approval of a Special Event Liquor License for Florence Gardens Mobile Home 
Association for three dances held on January 18, February 15, and March 15, 2014 from 
7:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m.; and for a Prime Rib Dinner held February 8, 2014 from 4:00 p.m. 
to 8:00 p.m. 
 
*Approval of a Special Event Liquor License for the Greater Florence Chamber of 
Commerce for the February 6, 2014 First Thursday Event, from 4:30 p.m. to 6:30 p.m. 
 
*Approval of accepting the register of demands ending November 30 2013, in the 
amount of $1,940,801.71.  
 
*Approval of the September 3, September 9, September 16, October 7, October 21, 
October 28, November 4, November 18, and December 2, 2013 Town Council minutes. 
 
*Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 
July 31, August 28, and October 30, 2013 Historic District Advisory Commission 
minutes. 

September 18, 2013 Library Advisory Board minutes. 
September 5, September 19, and October 17, 2013 planning and Zoning Commission 
minutes. 

 
On motion of Councilmember Walter, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried to 
approve the Consent Agenda, as written.   

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 605-13:  

 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Ordinance No. 605-13 by title only.  

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
AMENDING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE CODE OF ORDINANCES, TITLE XV LAND 
USAGE, CHAPTER 150 DEVELOPMENT CODE, SECTION 150.013 DESIGN REVIEW 
(PZC-38-13-ORD) (FIRST READING December 2, 2013). 

 
Mr. John L. Anderson, Resident, stated that he was a member of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission who opposed the ordinance because he questioned staff as to why Pulte was 
allowed to construct a multi-million dollar park without obtaining approval from the Planning 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 4, 2014 
Page 12 of 17 

and Zoning Commission.  Only the softball park potion was submitted for a design review 
approval.  He said that staff responded that the soccer fields, practice fields, dog park and 
parking lots were not vertical constructions and did not require design review.   
 
Mr. Anderson stated that Section 150.013 be reviewed at  the Planning and Zoning 
Commission meeting because section B.4, B.5, B.6, and B.7 of the current code were not 
being enforced by staff.  He said instead of a review of the existing code as requested, staff 
submitted the subject ordinance change.   He said they never reviewed the code.  The new 
code will take away a lot of the authority of the Planning and Zoning Commission, and gives 
staff the authority to do what they want to.  He said if the item does not go before the Planning 
and Zoning Commission, it will not go before the Council.  He asked Council to carefully 
consider the ordinance before it is approved.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that the ball park is the only thing that would go before the 
Planning and Zoning Commission or the Council.  He said there are many issues such as 
parking, lighting, sewer, fences, etc., that would be included.  He said the staff shouldn’t be 
given the authority to make those types of decisions.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff clarified that design review items never come before Council; they are handled by 
staff or the Planning and Zoning Commission.  He said it is routine for communities to have 
minor or major site plan review process.  He said a smaller scale project can be done 
administratively versus every single development going before the Planning and Zoning 
Commission.  He said regardless if the project goes before the Planning and Zoning 
Commission, or staff, the project must still adhere to the code and PUD requirements.  He said 
this would also take some of the complication out of the process.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that there were discussions with Mr. Anderson regarding items that he 
wanted to go before the Planning and Zoning Commission that do not go before the 
Commission, such as improvement plans that are approved by the Town Engineer.  He said a 
small scale utility project, such as the park had, would not go before the Commission, and 
projects similar to that have never gone to the Commission before either.    
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the proposed ordinance reflects the operating procedures that have 
been in place for years.  The Town has various procedures in place for various types of 
reviews such as construction permitting process, civil improvement process, and utility 
installation process.  He stated that there are other public bodies, such as the Historic District 
Advisory Commission, that get involved in some projects.  He said there is a very robust 
regulatory environment within the Town, and staff is trying to streamline the less complex 
projects.  He said for appeals, they would go before the Planning and Zoning Commission and 
beyond them to the Council.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if a park were to be built with some type of structure, would it have to 
go before the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff explained the review process for various types of parks.  He explained that public 
facilities normally would go through Planning and Zoning Commission and HOA parks would 
not.   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 4, 2014 
Page 13 of 17 

 
Councilmember Montaño inquired what is considered reasonable in that it does not have to go 
to the Planning and Zoning Commission mean.  He inquired if the Town is doing what they 
saying what they’re doing.  He gave an example of the lighted historical sign on Main and 
Butte, which did not go before the Historic District Advisory Commission, Planning and Zoning 
Commission, or Council as a lighted sign.  He said he concurs with Mr. Anderson and would 
be upset as well. He does not agree with staff having authority to approve those types of items.  
He said the staff is an extension of the Council and needs to follow the outlined procedures.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the lighted historical sign on Main and Butte is the exact sign that was 
approved by the Mayor and Council.  He said the sign was not required to go before Council; 
however, staff took the extra step and brought it before Council because the sign was 
significant because it was the gateway into the Historic District and were contemplating doing 
something a little different.  He explained the various discussions that took place with regards 
to the sign.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that there has never been a single instance that staff has done anything 
outside of conformance with the Code or the operating procedures.   
 
Councilmember Montaño stated that he is the liaison for the Planning and Zoning Commission 
as well, and does not recall any conversations regarding a lighted sign.  He said if so, he 
stands corrected.  He said projects need to go before the appropriate board or commission, 
and does not see where staff is forwarding the projects to the board or commission.      
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that all projects have followed Town Code and have gone before the 
appropriate board or commission and Council, if required.   He said staff follows the rules and 
works has the highest professional standards and ethics.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that Mr. Anderson has mentioned a few cases that he wanted more 
opportunity to review things that were already being reviewed through a legitimate process.  
He said staff saw an opportunity to better streamline the process and is forwarding the 
proposed ordinance for Council’s consideration.  He said the public has asked if there is a way 
to not require every single project that is done in Florence go before a board or commission.  
He said staff prepared the ordinance and four out of the five Planning and Zoning 
Commissioners trusted and had confidence in the staff to continue to do their jobs with the 
upmost integrity. Pulte also supports what the staff is doing.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the Code could stay status quo and remain stagnant.  The Town wants 
to move forward and be more business friendly.  He said the Community Development 
Department does not gain anything, it only streamlines the process.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the Town is trying to streamline the process and making it more 
business friendly.  He stated that he supports the Community Development Department and its 
staff.  They work to ensure that the projects follow the Code.  He said the majority of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission supports the proposed ordinance.   
  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 4, 2014 
Page 14 of 17 

On motion of Mayor Rankin, seconded by Councilmember Celaya, to adopt Ordinance No. 
605-13. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Mayor Rankin:  Yes 
Councilmember Celaya:  Yes 
Councilmember Walter:  No 
Councilmember Hawkins:  No 
Councilmember Woolridge:  Yes 
Councilmember Montaño:  No 
Vice-Mayor Smith:  No 
 
Motion Failed:  (Yes:  3; No: 4) 
  
NEW BUSINESS 

 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of purchasing playground equipment and park 
renovations of Main Street Park from Play and Park Systems through TCPN (The 
Cooperative Purchasing Network) in the amount of $119,772.62. 
 
Mr. Ray Hartzel, Parks and Recreation Director, stated that the project was approved in the 
13/14 CIP budget.  He said the Town is listed as part of the CO-OP and is requesting Council’s 
approval for the purchase of the playground equipment.  He said the budgeted amount for the 
project is $125,000. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the pictures of the playground equipment depicted in the handout the 
same equipment that the Town is purchasing.   
 
Mr. Hartzel said the playground equipment pictured is what the Town is purchasing; however, 
there may be some slight modifications, based on positioning of the equipment.  He explained 
that the Town is in control of Main Street Park through a lease agreement with Pinal County.  
He said staff is excited to do something with the park, specifically since there isn’t a 
playground on the south end of Town.  He said the total cost includes rehabilitating the 
property to make it a safe, conducive area.  The playground will include a swing set, benches, 
and shade structures. The company is the same company who installed the playground 
equipment at Heritage Park.   
 
Vice-Mayor Smith inquired if there will be some type of barrier between the park and Main 
Street, specifically because this park is geared for small children. 
 
Mr. Hartzel stated that there will be some barrier fencing to prohibit small children from exiting 
the park onto Main Street.  The fence will not inhibit pedestrian flow on the sidewalk.  The only 
access into the park will be from the north side.  He explained what the modifications will be 
including, removal of crumbling fence and installation of wrought-iron fencing, other minor 
modifications.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 4, 2014 
Page 15 of 17 

Councilmember Hawkins inquired what large tree will be removed. He would hate to lose 
shade trees.  They will also be removing stumps as well.   
 
Mr. Hartzel said the tree is a large pistachio tree that is located in the southwest corner of the 
property that died several years ago.    
 
Councilmember Celaya inquired if the property for playground is the dirt area, and if so, the 
property is part of the lease that Pinal County has with the State.   
 
Mr. Hartzel said it is his understanding that the Town is in control of the portion of property 
between the lease agreement between Pinal County and the State.   
 
Councilmember Celaya stated that he has spoken with the Pinal County Manager, and he 
doesn’t have an issue with it.  He said he would prefer the equipment in the dirt area.   
 
Mr. Hartzel said the area is ideal because there can be some type of containment as well as it 
not getting in the way of others utilizing the park.   
 
Councilmember Celaya inquired if the remaining monies from the budgeted amount could be 
used to clean up some of the park equipment at Heritage Park.   
 
Mr. Hartzel stated that they could utilize the remaining funds for graffiti abatement at Heritage 
Park.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and carried to 
purchase playground equipment and park renovations of Main Street Park from Play and Park 
Systems through TCPN (The Cooperative Purchasing Network) in the amount of $119,772.62 
and for the installation of the equipment; contingent upon the property being under the control 
of the Town of Florence through an intergovernmental agreement with Pinal County. 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 
Manager’s Report 
Department Reports 

Community Development  
Courts 
Finance 
Fire 
Library 
Parks and Recreation 
Police 
Public Works 
Utilities 

 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that he thought the crosswalks that are being installed on 
Main Street would be done in a visible color.  The color looks gray and blends with the 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 4, 2014 
Page 16 of 17 

sidewalks.  He said the stamping job looks great; however, he would like a stain to be added to 
differentiate from the rest of the concrete. 
 
Wayne Costa, Public Works Director, explained what colors and techniques are being used to 
differentiate the crosswalks from the streets.  They are antiquing the boardwalks which will 
bring out the texture and are using a contrasting color for the band of the crosswalk borders.  
They are also darkening the indentations.  Raised pavement markers will also be added.  He 
said when completed, you will notice a distinctive color between the crosswalk, sidewalk and 
roadway.  He said he will look at lightening the border of the boardwalk.      
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
There were no public comments.  

 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 
Councilmember Montaño stated that the Florence Unified School District will begin the public 
meetings regarding the override and the deficit.   
 
Councilmember Walter wished everyone a happy new year and thanked everyone for their 
hard work and effort.  She encouraged everyone to visit the website to see the upcoming 
activities and events.  The Town has expanded their Before the Bell, After the Bell program to 
the Anthem K-8 school.   
 
Councilmember Woolridge asked everyone to be careful when out in the evening.  There was 
a loose coyote running down Main Street.  There have also been skunks in the area.  
 
Vice-Mayor Smith stated that all the departments are doing a great job.  He said the boards 
and commissions are valuable.  The more items that go before the boards and commissions 
with recommendations to Council will result in a better vote from the Council.  He is in favor of 
having items go before boards and commissions at all times.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated there are a lot of things happening in Florence in 2014.  He said the 
Council wants to continue with movement in Florence.  Please remember to keep our thoughts 
on one of our police officers for a speedy recovery.   
 

 
ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
For the purpose of discussion of the public body with the Town Attorney in accordance 
with A.R.S 38-431.03(A)(4) regarding negotiations for the purchase of water and 
wastewater infrastructure; pursuant to A.R.S 38-431.03(A)(7) to consider the purchase 
of real property; and pursuant to A.R.S 38-431.03(A)(4) for discussion with the Town 
Attorney regarding contract negotiations with the Florence Unified School District. 

 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Walter, and carried to 
adjourn to Executive Session.   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 4, 2014 
Page 17 of 17 

 
ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
On motion of Councilmember Walter, seconded by Councilmember Celaya, and carried to 
adjourn from Executive Session.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
On motion of Councilmember Celaya, seconded by Councilmember Walter, and carried to 
adjourn the meeting at 9:25 pm. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on January 6, 2014, and that the meeting was duly called to order and 
that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
  



MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY, 
JANUARY 21, 2014, AT 5:30 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, LOCATED 
AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Vice-Mayor Smith called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present:  Rankin, Smith, Celaya, Hawkins, Montaño, Walter 
Absent:  Woolridge   
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 21, 2014 
Page 1 of 10 

    
INVOCATION 
 
A Moment of Silence was observed. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Vice-Mayor Smith led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  
However, members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter 
during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for 
discussion and legal action. 
 
Ms. Judy Hughes, Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce Executive Director, invited 
the public to McFarland State Park on January 24, 2014, for the second round of Floor 
Director Series, beginning with the historical and archeological preservation services.   
 
WORK SESSION  
 
Discussion on Agenda Item No. 9a. Ordinance No. 606-14. 
 
Mr. Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, stated that the Mr. James E. Mannato, Town 
Attorney, was asked to provide a legal opinion on the Covenants, Conditions, and 
Restrictions (CCRs).  The Town has received additional information from Ms. Nevis, 
Wild Horse Estates, Resident, which has not been forwarded to the Planning and 
Zoning Commission as of yet.  The Planning and Zoning Commission is requesting that 
the item be returned to them so they may be able to re-address the issues, have public 
hearings, and forward a clean document to the Council.    
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 21, 2014 
Page 2 of 10 

Discussion occurred on the reasons for the ordinance to be referred back to the 
Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
Mr. James E. Mannato, Town Attorney, explained his legal opinion.  He explained how 
the CCRs are administered, enforced, and amended.  He stated the CCRs are viable 
and can be enforced.  The Town does not have the authority to change them by 
enacting a zoning ordinance.  The only legislative body that can make changes is the 
State Legislature.       
 
Discussion occurred regarding the homeowner’s association.    
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired why the Council is returning the item to the Planning 
and Zoning Commission if it must legally remain status quo. 
 
Mr. Mannato stated that in an event of the annexation, the Town is required to enact 
zoning that is no more restrictive than what current exists.  
 
Councilmember Montaño stated that he would like it to be referred back to the Planning 
and Zoning Commission so that they may clarify the definition of acceptable animals.  
He said they did not discuss project animals for 4-H or FFA animal. 
 
Councilmember Celaya stated that the animals are clearly defined in the CCRs, with the 
exception of pigs.  He said the CCRs dictate what is allowed or not allowed.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the zoning cannot be more restrictive than the CCRs.      
 
Discussion occurred on Pinal County zoning and what the CCRs allowed.   
 
Mr. Mannato stated that the Town’s zoning must be comparable to what currently exists 
with Pinal County.  The CCRs are binding and may prohibit what the zoning allows.   
 
Councilmember Celaya stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission has requested 
to review the ordinance again and forward a new recommendation to Council. 
 
Discussion on ORDINANCE NO. 605-13:  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk read Ordinance No. 606-14 by title 
only.   
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
AMENDING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE CODE OF ORDINANCES, TITLE XV LAND 
USAGE, CHAPTER 150 DEVELOPMENT CODE, SECTION 150.013 DESIGN 
REVIEW (PZC 38-13-ORD) (First reading held on December 2, 2013, second 
reading held on January 6, 2014).  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 21, 2014 
Page 3 of 10 

Mr. Montoya stated that several projects have come forth through the Town in the last 
six to eight months.  Currently, the Town Code requires that many of those items go 
before the respective Board or Commission.  The Code also requires that those looking 
for commercial businesses utilize professional engineers without the staff being able to 
assist them.  Council has asked staff to streamline and simplify the process for our 
residents and customers.  He said many of the projects will still go before the respective 
Board or Commission, as well as the Council; however, staff is trying to streamline the 
process for those individuals that are not major developers and small types of projects.   
 
Mr. Montoya stated that in six months, staff will continue to evaluate the Town Code to 
better streamline some of the processes.  He said staff could provide a quarterly report 
to the Council and the Planning and Zoning Commission on items that were 
administratively approved through development review. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that streamlining the process would be a good thing.  
He would prefer that the appeal process be provided to the customer in writing if they 
did not agree with staff’s decision.   
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated that there is a section in the 
design review application that informs the applicant of the appeal process to the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and to the Town Council.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins requested that a pamphlet be provided to the applicant on the 
onset.   
 
Mayor Rankin concurred with Councilmember Hawkins and agrees with streamlining the 
process.  He said the projects would be able to start much sooner.   
 
Vice-Mayor stated that the Town has boards and commissions for a reason.  He 
understands that it is important to simply the process; however, he would like Council to 
be kept abreast of projects in the community.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that there have been instances where businesses have not been 
able to move forward because the engineering costs exceeded the project cost.  
Council requested staff to streamline its processes, and staff has moved forward with 
the Council’s request.   
 
PRESENTATIONS 
  
Presentation by Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce recognizing the 
Business of the Month. 
 
Ms. Shawn Gibson, Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce Boardmember, 
recognized the Happy Adobe, LLC, as the Business of the Month.  She recognized their 
efforts and congratulated them for their great work.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 21, 2014 
Page 4 of 10 

Councilmember Celaya stated that he has visited the business and it is very 
inspirational for home projects.   
 
CONSENT: All items indicated by an (*) will be handled by a single vote as part of 
the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects 
at the time the agenda item is called. 
 
*Approval of a Professional Services Agreement with Sunrise Engineering, Inc., 
for design of waterline in Bailey Street. 
 
*Approval of Task Order No. 3 with Water Works Engineers, LLC, for bidding and 
construction administrative services for Well 3B. 
 
*Ratification of the Assumption of Blessed Virgin Mary Catholic Church Special 
Event License for a Saturday, February 8, 2014, from 10:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.   
 
*Approval of the Town of Florence 2014 General Plan Amendment application and 
hearing schedule.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Celaya, and 
carried to approve the Consent Agenda, as written. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 606-14: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of AN ORDINANCE 
OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE CODE OF ORDINANCES, TITLE XV LAND USAGE, 
CHAPTER 150 DEVELOPMENT CODE, SECTION 150.031 DEFINED WORDS, 
SECTION 150.047 DISTRICT USE REGULATIONS TABLES (A) AND 
ESTABLISHING A NEW RURAL RESIDENTIAL EQUESTRIAN SUBDIVISION 
(RRES) ZONING DISTRICT SECTION (PZC-34-13ORD) (First reading held on 
January 6, 2014). 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Celaya, and 
carried to table Ordinance No. 606-14; and to return to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission for further review.   
 
 NEW BUSINESS 
 
Resolution No. 1418-14:  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Resolution No. 1418-14 by 
title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE PRE-ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 21, 2014 
Page 5 of 10 

DQCRESTFIELD, LLC., an ARIZONA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, AND 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF SUCH PRE-ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT (Annexation No. 2013-02 – “CRESTFIELD MANOR” PROPERTY). 
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated that DQCrestfield, LLC, has 
approximately 53 acres, and 360 lots within the Crestfield Manor subdivision.  He 
explained the development that has taken place within that subdivision and stated some 
lots are ready to go vertical.   He said the owners realize that they will need to spruce up 
the area and address the retention basin, which has issues.  He said as soon as the 
market improves, they will be ready to build on the lots.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that Mr. James Mannato, Town Attorney, developed the model pre-
annexation and development agreement.  He said the agreement is similar to others 
that have come before Council. He said the agreement has been routed to all the 
parties, which may be slightly different from one another based on each owner’s 
circumstances.   
 
Councilmember Montaño inquired about the area of annexation. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff explained the areas that may be annexed. He explained what the pre-
annexation and development agreement would entail. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the property owners already have a development agreement 
with Pinal County.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that there are development agreements with Pinal County, and the 
Town’s agreement will supersede the existing agreements they have with Pinal County 
upon annexation.  Those who enter into the agreements will have certainty on what the 
fees will not exceed within the first five years of the annexation.   
 
Discussion occurred on issues with the Magma Flood Dike, improvements in the area, 
and if Florence will have to accept responsibility for improvements if needed.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff explained the present issues with the Magma Dam and improvements that 
are needed. 
 
Mr. Wayne Costa, Public Works Director, explained what is currently being done to 
address some of the issues with Magma Dam and the middle Magma channel.  He also 
explained what work has been completed thus far.   
 
Councilmember Celaya is concerned that the annexation pays for itself coming in to the 
Town and that the financial burden does not fall on the responsibility of the Town.   
 
Mr. Costa stated that the Town would not pay for the improvements as it is currently not 
part of the Town.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 21, 2014 
Page 6 of 10 

Mr. James E. Mannato, Town Attorney, explained what the assessment for the Magma 
Flood District entails.  He explained that they raised the assessment on the property 
owners to raise the funds needed for improvements.   
 
Councilmember Celaya said it is the financial responsibility of the person developing the 
property to pay for the necessary improvements.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Walter, and 
carried to adopt Resolution No. 1418-14. 
 
Resolution No. 1419-14:  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Resolution No. 1419-14 by 
title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
ADOPTING REVISIONS TO THE TOWN OF FLORENCE FY 2013-2014 EMPLOYEE 
CLASSIFICATION PLAN.   
 
Mr. Scott Barber, Human Resources Director, stated that the request is for two new 
positions that currently do not exist in the current classification plan. The positions are 
for Management Analyst – Pay Range 47, and Parks Maintenance Superintendent – 
Pay Range 45. 
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Smith, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and carried to 
adopt Resolution No. 1419-14. 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of authorizing the Town Manager to accept the 
award for Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Staffing for Adequate 
Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) grant program funds in the amount of 
$463,902. 
 
Mr. Ernie Feliz, District Manager, stated that on August 19, 2013, the Council authorized 
the submission of the grant, and on January 10, 2014, the Town was notified of receipt 
of the award a SAFER grant in the amount of $463,902.   
 
Mr. Feliz stated the monies will be used to pay for the hiring of three additional 
firefighters.  The funding amount is based on the salaries for the three firefighters for 
two years.  The Town has until February 10, 2014, to accept the award.  
 
Mayor Rankin inquired how many SAFER grants have been awarded in Arizona.  
 
Mr. Feliz stated that he is not aware of any other SAFER grants that have been 
awarded.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 21, 2014 
Page 7 of 10 

Mayor Rankin inquired if the Town is to absorb the costs after two years, if the Town 
chooses to retain the employees. 
 
Mr. Feliz responded yes, the Town would absorb the costs after two years for the three 
individuals.   
 
Councilmember Celaya inquired if the staff will be notified that there positions are grant 
funded and may not be funded after the grant funding is gone.   
 
Mr. Feliz stated that the Town is not required to retain the employees after the funding is 
gone.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Celaya, seconded by Councilmember Walter, and carried 
to authorize the Town Manager to accept the award for Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response 
(SAFER) grant program funds in the amount of $463,902. 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of Task Order No. 2 with Water Works 
Engineers, LLC, for bidding and construction administration of effluent pump 
station, chlorine system upgrades and administration building improvements at 
the South Wastewater Treatment Plant. 
 
Mr. John Mitchell, Utilities Director, stated that in October 2013, Council approved a 
professional services agreement with Water Works Engineers, LLC, in order to capture 
various tasks currently being performed by them.  Staff informed Council that each task 
would be covered in separate task orders. 
 
Mr. Mitchell stated that the Town entered into a Consent Order with Arizona Department 
of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) because of exceedences in chlorine residuals out of 
the plant.  He said the projects will fix the consent order.  The Town has a work plan 
that has been negotiated and approved with ADEQ covering the projects.   
 
Mr. Mitchell said the effluent pump station and the chlorine system design have already 
been completed.  He said the administration lab building and expansion is at 90% 
completion.    He said the engineering needs to be completed and assembling the bid 
packets and sending the project out to bid.  Staff will present the lowest bidder to 
Council for authorization to award the bid.  Water Works will perform the inspections.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Walter, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and 
carried to approve Task Order No. 2 with Water Works Engineers, LLC, for bidding and 
construction administration of effluent pump station, chlorine system upgrades and 
administration building improvements at the South Wastewater Treatment Plant.  
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of Task Order No. 4 with Water Works 
Engineers, LLC, for construction of a new water storage tank, booster station and 
site improvements in North Florence. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 21, 2014 
Page 8 of 10 

 
Mr. Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, pulled this item from the agenda and it will be 
brought back to a future agenda.  
 
MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
There is no Manager’s Report.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
Mr. Terry McDadd, Wild Horse Estates Resident, stated that he is disappointed that 
Ordinance No. 606-14 is being referred back to the Planning and Zoning Commission.  
He said they have had numerous meetings, evidence has been submitted, and several 
discussions have taken place. On November 21, 2013, there was a very large Planning 
and Zoning Work Session and he is disappointed that those making the decision to 
return it to the Commission were not at the work session.  He said numerous options 
were presented at the Work Session, discussions were held and they were voted upon. 
The final two options were forwarded to the Commission and they chose from those two 
options.   
 
Mr. McDadd stated that the Town Attorney explained the CCRs. He said everyone who 
purchased property, by virtue, has agreed to the covenants.  He said the Town should 
put in the two horse restriction the same as what Pinal County has and the same that is 
in the CCRs.  He does not understand why they want to waste time by going over it 
again.  It is an inconvenience to the public to have to come to so many meetings when 
there was already a resolution.        
 
Nancy Cincotta, Wild Horse Estates Resident, stated that there are CCRs and everyone 
agreed when they purchased their property.  She said the neighbors like each other and 
do not want any fighting amongst themselves.  She said that is not right for the Town of 
Florence or for any government to say they are going to change the zoning, which is a 
direct conflict with the current CCRS, and then expect the neighbors to sue one another 
because they have too many animals.  She said that the Council is making the 
neighbors do the Council’s job. She said they should have a zoning that is not in conflict 
with the CCRS so they don’t have to do the Council’s job.  She said they can pay their 
taxes so the Council can do their job and they can live happily in their neighborhood.  
They all understand they are only allowed to have two horses.  They want their 
neighborhood to look nice and don’t want neighbors with too many animals.  She is 
asking Council to do their job.   
 
Ms. Kelly Nevis, Wild Horse Estates Resident, thanked the Council on behalf of the 50 
residents who have Council to reconsider making it animal units versus horses.  She 
said at the Planning and Zoning Commission Work Session there were a majority of 
votes in favor of the two options that were forwarded to the Commission.  One of the 
options included allowing donkeys and mules.  The Planning and Zoning Commission 
put forward the other option that did not include as many votes.  She is requesting that 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 21, 2014 
Page 9 of 10 

their voices be heard, even though they are not part of Florence yet.  She would like to 
believe that the Council will listen to the people.  She said there are those who are in 
favor of four animal units.  She thanked the Council for reconsidering.  She asked if the 
Town Attorney’s legal opinion on CCRs is available to the public.  With regards to the 
CCRs, there is no current board and has been disbanded for several years.  There is no 
one to govern or manage the CCRs.  Those who were on the original board have 
moved away.   
 
Ms. Denise Kollert, Florence Resident, said that after listening to all the discussion, it 
appears that those who are living out there are breaking the law.  She doesn’t 
understand why the Planning and Zoning Commission should have to go over the same 
information that they have had to make the decision they made to allow them to keep 
breaking the law.  She said if they have CCRs with Pinal County, whether there is a 
board or not, it is enforceable.  Pinal County also has rules regarding animals, and 
those residents are breaking those laws.  She stated what the Planning and Zoning 
Commission recommended was less harsh than what Pinal County has, so she doesn’t 
understand why there needs to be further discussion and waste Council and Planning 
and Zoning Commission meeting time to continually reiterate people breaking the law.   
 
Person unknown, Wild Horse Estates Resident, stated she purchased property in Wild 
Horse Estates, continually is hearing about CCRs; however, she never received them 
nor does she know what they are.  She said she doesn’t even know how to comply with 
them since she doesn’t even know where she can obtain a copy of the CCRs.  She 
owns three small horses and purchased the property specifically because you could 
have horses on your property.  She said there are dairy farms in close proximity that 
emit smells; however no one complains about the waste that the dairies and other farms 
generate.  She said in the four states that she has lived in, you were never allowed to 
commit waste on your property and doesn’t understand why this is being addressed.   
 
 CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that the funeral for Charles Bussey will be Thursday, 
January 23, 2014, at 9:00 am for visitation and 11:00 am for services.   
 
Councilmember Celaya stated that returning the annexation item back to the Planning 
and Zoning Commission will provide more clarification to the Wild Horse Estates 
residents as to what is within the Council’s ability to offer them.  What they may find is 
that regardless of what they are authorized or what the Council grants, their CCRs are 
still in effect and will be held by those.  He said people may expect the Council to 
increase their ability to have animals; however, that is not within the Council’s ability to 
do. 
 
Councilmember Montaño stated that the Florence Unified School District is completing 
their community forums regarding their budget reductions.  Their deficit is $1.7 million 
so they are trying to work with the community on things that they can do to make a 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 21, 2014 
Page 10 of 10 

determination on what they are going to do regarding the cuts.  He said it is a good 
opportunity to get involved.     
 
ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
For the purpose of discussion of the public body with the Town Attorney in 
accordance with A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(4) for discussion and consideration of 
Town’s position with regard to pending litigation. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Walter, and 
carried to adjourn to Executive Session.   
 
ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
On motion of Councilmember Celaya, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to adjourn from Executive Session. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
On motion of Councilmember Celaya, seconded by Vice-Mayor Smith, and carried to 
adjourn the meeting at 7:35 pm. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on January 21, 2014, and that the meeting was duly called to 
order and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
  
 



MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY, 
JANUARY 28, 2014, AT 5:30 P.M., IN THE FIRE DEPARTMENT TRAINING ROOM, 
LOCATED AT 72 E. 1ST STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 5:32 pm.  

 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present:  Rankin, Smith, Celaya, Hawkins, Montaño, Walter, Woolridge.  
 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 28, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
For the purpose of discussion of the public body in accordance with A.R.S §38-
431.03(A)(7) to consider the purchase of water and wastewater infrastructure.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Walter, and 
carried to adjourn to Executive Session. 
 
ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to adjourn from Executive Session. 
 
 ADJOURNMENT 
 
On motion of Councilmember Walter, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and 
carried to adjourn the meeting at 8:30 pm.   
 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on January 28, 2014, and that the meeting was duly called to 
order and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 



 

MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC ON 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 3, 2014, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, 
LOCATED AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 
Vice-Mayor Smith called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present:  Smith, Celaya, Hawkins, Montaño, Woolridge  
Absent:  Rankin, Walter 
 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2014  
Page 1 of 9 

 INVOCATION 
 
Councilmember Wooldridge led the invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Vice-Mayor Smith led the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Town 
Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to 
review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, 
members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter during an open 
call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal 
action. 
 
There were no public comments.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Public Hearing for submission of application(s) for FY 2014 State Community 
Development Block Grant Funds and Discussion/Approval/Disapproval on Resolution 
No. 1420-14. 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Resolution No. 1420-14 by title only.   
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF APPLICATION(S) FOR FY 2014 STATE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUNDS, CERTIFYING THAT SAID 
APPLICATION(S) MEETS THE COMMUNITY'S PREVIOUSLY IDENTIFIED HOUSING AND 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT NEEDS AND THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE STATE CDBG 
PROGRAM, AND AUTHORIZING ALL ACTIONS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT AND 
COMPLETE THE ACTIVITIES OUTLINED IN SAID APPLICATION. 



 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2014  
Page 2 of 9 

 
Mr. Ernie Feliz, Grants Coordinator, said the public hearing is for the Community Development 
Block Grant for regular account and State Special Project Applications for Fiscal Year 2014.  
The amounts to be applied for are $224,015 for the regional account fund, and $300,000 for 
the State Special Project Fund.  He said that in December 2013, a public hearing was 
conducted, as required by the Arizona Department of Housing, to discuss potential projects for 
which the Town could apply.  At that hearing, the only viable project discussed for the two 
grant funds was owner-occupied housing rehabilitation.  
 
Mr. Feliz said that Town staff is proposing housing rehabilitation project for selection by Town 
Council because it represents the best opportunity to be awarded funding.  It meets criteria for 
state and national priority and local need.  It is a Department of Housing/HUD high priority as 
well as being shovel ready.  Staff has created guidelines for this project that Council has 
approved.  He said they have obtained applications from 14 homeowners who wish to be part 
of this program.  He said they estimate that they will spend an average of $50,000 to repair 
each home.  They will try to do as many homes as possible.  He said the funding would be 
guaranteed with a forgivable loan to each homeowner.  He said under the regional account, 
staff wants to repair at least four homes, and if they receive State Special Project Funds, they 
could repair an additional five homes.   
 
Mr. Feliz stated that they submitted a State Special Project Application last December, and are 
still waiting a response on this funding, which is very competitive.  He said this hearing is the 
last opportunity for the public to make any final comments regarding the proposed project or to 
propose an additional project.  He said once the hearing is over, Council will be asked to make 
a decision in regards to the project that will be submitted to the State.  He said they have 
stated throughout the public participation process, the Town Council makes the final decision 
regarding the application to be submitted.      
 
Vice-Mayor Rankin opened the public hearing.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired if those requesting to participate in the project are required 
to be present at this public hearing.  
 
Mr. Feliz stated they are not required to attend the public hearing.  He said all of the applicants 
were notified of the public hearing.   
 
Councilmember Celaya inquired if all 14 applicants are able to receive funding, or if the 
process will be competitive.  
 
Mr. Feliz stated that the project is set up to be where assistance will be provided on a first-
come first-serve basis.  Once funding is exhausted, the remaining applicants will be placed on 
a waiting list until the Town receives additional funding.  He said the Town previously 
submitted an application for $300,000 and were planning to assist five homeowners with that 
application.  He said conceivably, if all the funding is approved, they could do 14 homes.   
 
Councilmember Celaya inquired if Council has no decision as far as the selection of the 
applicants.  Council’s role is to only approve the process and what the funding is used for.   



 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2014  
Page 3 of 9 

 
Mr. Feliz responded yes, that Council has no decision as far as the selection of the applicants.  
Council’s role is to only approve the process and what the funding is used for.   
  
Ms. Margaret Valdez, 174 Poston Circle, Florence, Arizona, stated that she was born and 
raised in Florence, and has resided here her entire life.  She attended school, got married, and 
is still married for 61 years.  She is speaking on behalf of her friend, Teddy Ruiz.  Ms. Ruiz 
lives on the corner of Ruggles and University.  They have been trying to get her house fixed for 
seven years.  Every year is a bad summer and a bad winter for her.  She doesn’t have heat in 
her home and is in need of a new roof.  She has burnt out two stoves because she uses her 
oven for heat.  Ms. Ruiz cannot afford the needed repairs.  She would like Ms. Ruiz to be able 
to enjoy the time she has left.  She is a widow. 
 
Vice-Mayor Smith inquired if she has submitted an application.  
 
Ms. Valdez responded that she submitted an application.  She inquired how long the process 
will take. 
 
Mr. Feliz explained the funding process and said they would expect construction to begin in the 
beginning of next year.   
 
Ms. Valdez stated that Ms. Ruiz will go through another summer and winter without heat and 
cool.  She said it would be nice if Council would approve this so the applicants can get the 
needed repairs.         
  
Councilmember Celaya inquired if Mr. Feliz will be making the list available.  
 
Mr. Feliz inquired what listing Councilmember Celaya referring to. 
 
Councilmember Celaya stated that he was referring to the applicant list.  He asked if it was 
public information.  
 
Mr. Feliz said he has the lists and it includes eight applicants whom they feel are qualified; the 
other six they are attempting to qualify.   
 
Councilmember Celaya inquired if the list is something that will be publicized, or if it will be 
available on inquiry. 
 
Mr. Feliz said that he has not publicized the list in the past and doesn’t know if it is something 
that the Town can or cannot do.  He said if possible, he could release the list.  They do have 
the waiting list by the dates that the applications were submitted.   
 
Vice-Mayor Rankin closed the public hearing.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and carried 
to adopt Resolution No. 1420-14 to approve Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation in the 
Town of Florence.   



 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2014  
Page 4 of 9 

 
CONSENT: All items indicated by an (*) will be handled by a single vote as part of the 
consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the time 
the agenda item is called. 
*Approval of Special Event Liquor License applications for various events for Caliente 
Casa Del Sol held on February 22, February 25, February 26, February 28, and March 2, 
2014 for various times.   
 
*Approval of purchasing fitness equipment for Fire Station 542 from Commercial 
Fitness, in an amount not to exceed $33,108.73. 
 
*Acceptance of donation from Florence Industrial Development Authority for annual 
Historic Home Tour. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Woolridge, and carried 
to approve the Consent Agenda, with the exception of Item 7b. and 7c.  
 
*Approval of purchasing fitness equipment for Fire Station 542 from Commercial 
Fitness, in an amount not to exceed $33,108.73. 
 
Vice-Mayor Smith stated the dollar amount was not listed in the budget when it was approved.  
He inquired if anyone spoke to Pulte/Anthem to see if their equipment could be used.   
 
Mr. Peter Zick, Fire Chief, stated that the crews are currently using the equipment at the 
Anthem Fitness Center.  He said when the fire station was passed; they specifically put in a 
fitness room in the fire station to avoid them having to go to the community center.  He said it 
limits their time that they can go work out.  It also delays response times because of the size of 
the truck.  They normally have to park further out in the parking lot.  Having the fitness center 
in the fire station will significantly cut down on response times.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired if they will work out while on duty.  He inquired if they are 
able to work out while they are off duty.   
 
Chief Zick stated that the staff often works out off duty as well.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins expressed his concern in spending $33,000 for exercise equipment.  
He explained his reasons for the concern and inquired if it would not be cost effective to pay 
for a membership at the Anthem fitness center instead.  He stated that he does not see where 
the taxpayers are obligated to pay for the fitness of any of the departments.  He understands 
that firefighters need to be in great shape; however, the Town has spent a lot of money on the 
Fire Department in the last 1-1/2 years, and the expenses continue.  He said the Town is in the 
process of building a new library and community center and the funding could be used for 
equipment at those facilities.   
 
Chief Zick explained the reasons for having exercise equipment at the fire station.  He said it is 
standard across the valley.  He said part of his plan will require that the firefighters pass a 
physical fitness test each year.  The equipment will help enable them to ensure that they are in 



 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2014  
Page 5 of 9 

good physical condition and able to pass the test.  It provides them the opportunity to work out 
and to stay physically fit to maintain the demands of the position.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins said there are many jobs that require physicals every year and the 
companies do not normally pay for the individuals to stay in shape.  It is up to the employee to 
remain in shape if they want to keep their job.  He said he is not anti-safety.   
 
Chief Zick said another thing to consider is that standard wide in the service for the last ten 
decades, 55% of those killed in the line of duty are cardiac related and stress and exertion 
related.   He said when the standards came out for physical fitness performance and physical 
conditioning, it was all based on those statistics and how do we take a proactive approach to 
keep the firefighters in the best physical condition they can.  He said it is very important that 
the firefighters have access every time they work so they know that they are in good physical 
condition when they go out to do what they have to do.   
 
Discussion continued on the need of the equipment and the associated costs for the 
equipment.   
   
Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, stated that the Town requires that the fire fighters work 
three complete 24 hour days on their schedules.  They need to have the equipment to be able 
to work out because they cannot leave the station.  They are on duty all of the time. 
 
Councilmember Montaño explained that a fire fighter has to have a way to release the 
emotional stress of the job and provided information he read from a book called “Emotional 
Survival” written by Dr. Kevin Gilmartin.   He explained that firefighters tend to turn themselves 
on and off while on and off a call and physical fitness is way to help release the stress. 
 
Vice-Mayor Smith inquired what equipment currently exists at the fire station and how much it 
cost.   
 
Chief Zick stated that there is equipment in the bay; however, he does not know the cost as he 
wasn’t with the Town when it was purchased.   
 
Councilmember Montaño stated that the cost is not very much for the equipment they are 
purchasing.  He said some treadmills can cost approximately $10,000.  He said the Town is 
savings because they are purchasing through Mesa’s procurement. 
 
Chief Zick stated that the equipment is industrial grade and made for firemen.   
 
Mr. Montoya said the equipment at the current fire station is old and has been donated by 
other fire department and people in the community. He said the Town had to discard of a few 
pieces because they were deemed hazardous.  They do not have a full set of equipment at this 
time.   
 
Councilmember Celaya stated it is important for the fire fighters to remain as physically fit as 
possible.  He said it has an effect on risk management and injury during work hours.  They 
operate in strenuous conditions.    



 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2014  
Page 6 of 9 

On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Celaya, and carried to 
purchase fitness equipment for Fire Station 542 from Commercial Fitness, in an amount not to 
exceed $33,108.73. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 605-13:  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Ordinance No. 605-13 by title only.  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE CODE OF ORDINANCES, TITLE XV LAND USAGE, CHAPTER 
150 DEVELOPMENT CODE, SECTION 150.013 DESIGN REVIEW (PZC-38-13-ORD) (First 
reading  December 2, 2013, second reading January 3, 2014 ). 
 
Mr. Montoya said the goal is to streamline the processes that are currently in place as well as 
speed up some of the applicants that are coming through Community Development.  Council 
did ask that any administrative processes that were done in house be put on their monthly 
report so Council can be kept abreast of what is happening.  Staff will place this information on 
their monthly reports.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated there are a few businesses that are trying to start businesses 
and are coming across some issues with staff.  He said information needs to be provided to 
them on the appeal process.  He doesn’t agree with some of the requirements.  He would like 
the appeal process to be provided to the applicant on the onset.   
 
Mr. Montoya stated that staff will continue evaluate the Town Code and see what other 
processes can be simplified.  He said there are limitations on what staff has because of the 
limitations in the Town Code.  There is one applicant that is waiting for this to be approved so 
that he can utilize the new process.   
 
Councilmember Woolridge appreciates the staff for going through the Code and finding ways 
to streamline the process.  It will help the applicant move forward on their projects sooner.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried 
to adopt Ordinance No. 605-13. 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of Task Order No. 4 with Water Works Engineers, 
LLC, for construction of a new water storage tank, booster station and site 
improvements in North Florence. 
 
Mr. Mitchell, Utilities Director, stated that Task Order 4 is a project on the CIP.  It is for a one 
million gallon storage tank in North Florence and a booster station.   Water Works will first 
complete the design and produce the bid specifications.  The total cost of the project is 
estimated at $2.6 million.  The current approved budget and CIP identify a total of $1.4 million 
for this project. The next CIP will be updated to reflect the total cost of this necessary project. 
 



 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2014  
Page 7 of 9 

On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Celaya, and carried to 
approve Task Order No. 4 with Water Works Engineers, LLC, for construction of a new water 
storage tank, booster station and site improvements in North Florence. 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of a motion directing staff to proceed with the 
demolition process or the restoration process on the Cuen building. 
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, provided a brief synopsis of what has 
transpired with regards to the Cuen building since the Town has accepted the building.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the Town agreed to match donations contributed to this project up to 
$50,000 amount. This action was based on verbal understandings from the Florence Industrial 
Development Authority (IDA) that implied their interest in donating between $30,000 and 
$40,000 to the Town towards the Cuen restoration project. This donation would have provided 
the seed money needed to encourage other financial contributions for this project. However, 
the IDA committed to providing $2,000 in financial assistance for the stabilization of the 
building.   Funding would likely come from the Town budget or the Town could try to obtain 
funding from other sources.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the Town has two options: pursue the demolition of the building based 
on the deteriorating condition of the building and for cost-benefit reasons; or decide that it is in 
the best interest of the Historic District and Main Street to preserve the subject building. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff said with the current condition of the building, something needs to be done.  He 
said per the Town Code, the decision to demolish the building in the Historic District is one that 
has to be made by the Historic District Advisory Commission (HDAC).  Council would need to 
send a recommendation to them for demolition.  Should the HDAC disagree, the decision 
could come back to Council to be appealed.   
 
Discussion occurred as to why the recommendation has to be sent to the HDAC and why it 
came before Council prior to going to HDAC first.   
 
Vice-Mayor asked for assurances that HDAC’s recommendation will come before Council.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff explained the processes that will transpire based on HDAC’s recommendation.  
 
Discussion occurred on the other projects that the Town is doing and where the funding will 
come from if the HDAC’s decision is to keep the building.   
 
Councilmember Celaya stated that this situation is unique because the Town is the owner of 
the building, and as the owner, the Town has to go before the HDAC with their 
recommendation to demolish to building.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that if the Council forwards a recommendation to the HDAC to demolish the 
building, as the owner of the building, and if HDAC agrees, the item will not come back before 
Council.   
 



 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2014  
Page 8 of 9 

On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and carried 
to demolish the building and to forward this item to the Historic District Advisory Commission 
for recommendation to Council.   
 
7c. *Acceptance of donation from Florence Industrial Development Authority for annual 
Historic Home Tour. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried to 
accept the donation from Florence Industrial Development Authority for the annual Historic 
Home Tour. 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
Manager’s Report 

Department Reports 
Community Development  
Courts 
Finance 
Fire 
Library 
Parks and Recreation 
Police 
Public Works 
Utilities 

 
Councilmember Montaño inquired about the vacant positions listed in the Police Department 
Report.   
 
Mr. Montoya stated that one police officer resigned and elected to no longer be a police officer 
and a sergeant resigned to relocate.   
 
The Department Reports were received and filed.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
There were no comments.   
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 
Councilmember Hawkins said the economy is holding its own and the Town has spent a lot of 
money.  He wants to ensure that the money is well spent.  He wants to be fiscally 
conservative.   
 
Councilmember Montaño reminded everyone that the Prison Run will be Sunday, February 9, 
2014. 
 
Vice-Mayor Smith invited everyone to participate in the events that are planned for the Home 
Tour. 



 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2014  
Page 9 of 9 

 
Councilmember Hawkins invited everyone to participate in the Chili Cook-Off at the 
Assumption of the Blessed Virgin Mary Catholic Parish.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the purpose 
of obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the agenda items 
pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Vice-Mayor Smith, and carried to adjourn 
the meeting at 6:48 p.m.  
 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on February 3, 2014, and that the meeting was duly called to order and 
that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 



MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY, 
FEBRUARY 18, 2014, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, 
LOCATED AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 6:03 pm.  

 
ROLL CALL: 

 
Present:  Rankin, Smith, Celaya, Hawkins, Montaño, Walter, Woolridge  
 
 INVOCATION 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
February 18, 2014 
Page 1 of 8 

 
Councilmember Wooldridge led the invocation. 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Rankin led the Pledge of Allegiance.   

 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  

Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  
Individual Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those 
commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter 
be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council shall not 
discuss or take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless 
the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 

Mr. Jerry Ravert, Florence Resident, stated they he and his family have lived in the JB 
Michea home, which is in the Historic District for approximately 30 years.  He is retired 
and has worked with State Parks for 34 years.  Three of the six parks that he managed 
were historical buildings, and one of them was McFarland State Park.   
 
Mr. Ravert explained his interest in seeing Florence prosper and explained his reasons 
for wanting to preserve the Historic District and the surrounding environment. He would 
also like to keep the surrounding desert free of development and explained his reasons 
as to why it is important to retain the surrounding desert.  He said it is important to keep 
visitors in town. 
 
Mr. Ravert stated that the Florence Copper Project is going to test this new and 
innovative method of mining, on a limited basis, if there is no fracking and tests show 
that there are no ill effects on water quality.  Florence may serve as a shining example 
for the future of mining and may attract visitors to tour the site and the Town.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
February 18, 2014 
Page 2 of 8 

Mr. Ravert said the Town is ready to spend money on useless treatments on Main 
Street and fight an industry which could benefit the future of Florence.  He inquired why 
the Council would even suggest tearing down the Cuen building because it might cost 
money to preserve it.  He stated there are enough park areas on Main Street.  The IDA 
is willing to pay $4,000 towards the restoration.  He asked Council why they didn’t 
match their donation and use the money to protect the building.  He said he doesn’t 
believe enough time was spent in trying to obtain funding from other sources.  He said 
the hotel and Clark House would not be here today if people thought it would cost too 
much to restore them.   
 
Mr. Ravert said the Town should be working to get businesses on Main Street, and not 
expanding the troubled business district.   
 
Mr. Ruth Harrison, Resident, read her letter that she submitted to the local newspaper 
regarding the location of the library on Main Street.  She said 7462 people visited the 
library in December 2013.  If the library were to be housed in the Pinal County building 
on the corner of Main and 6th Street, it would generate a lot of foot traffic.  It would be 
easily accessible to many, and they could visit the eatery, get a haircut, pick up their 
mail and use Padilla Park.  She said it would help Main Street.   
 
A San Tan Valley Resident, stated that she is a customer of Johnson Utilities.  She said 
in light of the potential purchase of Johnson Utilities, she inquired the following: 
 

 What type of customer service can they expect to receive from their call center 
agent? 

 Will current Johnson Utilities employees be retained? 
 Will they be considered Town of Florence employees and go through the process 

as identified on the Town’s website? 
 Will qualified field technicians be required to maintain a certification and work 

only in the areas where their certifications are applicable? 
 What training will customer service representatives also receive? 
 Will they be expected to be helpful and courteous in their interactions with 

customers? 
 Will calls regarding billing errors and other questions be handled with upmost 

professionalism and respect? 
 How will the Town of Florence communicate with the residents about 

infrastructure problems such as utility system pipe breaks, environmental 
concerns, and water quality? 

 Will the residents receive notification within 24 hours of the potential violation or 
system problem? 

 How will the residents be assured of the overall water quality in their service 
area? 

 How will the Town of Florence address smells that currently come from existing 
sewage plants, and who do they contact for the smells? 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
February 18, 2014 
Page 3 of 8 

 What, if any type of inserts, bulletins, or newsletters are included in the water 
bill? 

 Will any inserts include useful information about water conservation methods or 
issues involving water replenishment, recycling, or other environmental concerns, 
or can they expect to see the inserts used to make politically charged statements 
or controversial assertions about various individuals or groups in their 
community? 

 What resources are available if they are not satisfied with the service provided to 
them by the Town of Florence? 

 
The San Tan Valley Resident stated that she knows they are to contact ADEQ for water 
issues; however, she wants to know who to contact if they are dissatisfied with the 
services that Florence provides.  She said the residents want the Council to be aware 
that they will hold Florence accountable as well.  She said the residents are trusting and 
supporting the Town as long as the Town provides them the assurance that the Town 
will treat the residents with the upmost respect and provide them the answers when 
they need them.     
 
PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENTATION 
 

Presentation of a Service Award to Cynthia Clark for 15 years of dedicated 
service to the Town of Florence.   
 

Ms. Cynthia Clark was unable to attend the Town Council meeting and the award will be 
presented to her at the Public Works Department.   

 
Presentation by Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce recognizing the 
Business of the Month. 

 
Ms. Judy Hughes, Executive Director, Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce, 
recognized the Florence Reminder and Blade Tribune as the Business of the Month for 
their service to the Town since 1892.  She said the newspaper actively promotes and 
celebrates Florence’s incredible history.  The company restored the William Clark 
House and uses the restored building for their office.  The staff is local people and 
recognized all of those who are employed with Florence Reminder.   
 
Mr. Mark Cowling, Florence Reminder and Blade Tribune Editor, thanked Ms. Hughes 
and the Chamber for their recognition.  He said they enjoy serving the community and 
its residents.   

 
Public Hearing on an application received from Robert E. Barker, Valentino’s, 
located at 3385 N. Hunt Highway, Florence, Arizona, for a new Series 12 
restaurant license; and for Council recommendation for approval or 
disapproval of said license.  

 
Mayor Rankin opened the public hearing.  Mayor Rankin closed the public hearing.  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
February 18, 2014 
Page 4 of 8 

 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, stated that the application was 
received by the Clerk’s Office on January 28, 2014, and was posted for 20 days.  The 
Clerk’s Office has not received any complaints.  The applicant was advised of the public 
hearing, and was unable to attend.  The business will be located in the former location 
of Mama’s Restaurant in the Anthem Plaza.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Walter and 
carried to forward a favorable recommendation for approval on an application received 
from Robert E. Barker, Valentino’s, located at 3385 N. Hunt Highway, Florence, 
Arizona, for a new Series 12 restaurant license 

 
CONSENT: All items indicated by an (*) will be handled by a single vote as part of 
the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects 
at the time the agenda item is called. 
 
*Approval of a Special Event Liquor License for the Pinal County Mounted 
Posse’s Annual Eddie Martinez Benefit, on Saturday, March 29, 2014, from 11:00 
am to 10:00 pm.    

 
*Approval of a Special Event Liquor License for Paladin Sports Outreach, Anthem 
Spring Festival, on Saturday, March 8, 2014, from 11:00 am to 6:00 pm.  

 
*Reappointment of Judy Hughes, Barbara J. Kelly, and Ty Schraufnagel to the 
Industrial Development Authority with terms to expire December 31, 2019.  

 
*Reappointment of Donald L. Woolridge to the Parks and Recreation Board with a 
term to expire December 31, 2016. 

 
*Reappointment of Denise Kollert to the Library Advisory Board with a term to 
expire December 31, 2015. 

 
*Approval of accepting the register of demands ending December 31, 2013, in the 
amount of $2,201,094.82.  

 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Walter, and 
carried to approve the Consent Agenda, as written.  

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of entering into a purchase agreement with 
Pinal County Federal Credit Union (PCFCU) to purchase property located at 200 
W. 20th Street, Florence, Arizona, in an amount not to exceed $335,000 or $72.54 
per square foot of building. 

 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
February 18, 2014 
Page 5 of 8 

Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, stated that the building is 
approximately 4,618 square feet and has eight executive offices, one conference room, 
one break room, two restrooms, and the outside has 12 covered parking spaces and 20 
open parking spaces.  The building is approximately 25 years old.  She said staff is 
recommending that the Town of Florence purchase the building.  The PCFCU is 
currently under contract to go to a new location.  The contract allows for PCFCU to 
make modifications to the building and the Town would take control over the building 
July 1, to August 30, 2014.   The cost for the purchase would be allocated in the next 
fiscal year’s budget.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated the Town will be building a new building by Town Hall, and 
inquired what will go in the new building.   
 
Mr. Charles Montoya, Town Manager, stated that the library and other recreational 
facilities and an aquatic center were planned for the building; however, in light of the 
County Recorder building burning down, the Town is engaged with conversations 
regarding the purchase of the area, or possibly a land swap.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired if the $72.54 per square foot the average price for a 
commercial building.  
 
Mr. Montoya stated that the $72.54 is the current price offered by PCFCU because 
there is commercial on residential property.  The cost was not measured against other 
areas because that was the lowest offer they were willing to accept.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Vice-Mayor Smith, and carried to 
approve of entering into a purchase agreement with Pinal County Federal Credit Union 
to purchase property located at 200 W. 20th Street, Florence, Arizona, in an amount not 
to exceed $335,000 or $72.54 per square foot of building. 

 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of entering into an Intergovernmental Library 
Agreement between the Town of Florence (“Town”) and the Florence Unified 
School District (“District”). 
 
Mr. Jasper Halt, Librarian, stated the District elected not to renew the IGA with the 
Town.  The agreement under discussion will be for a shorter term and will allow the 
library to remain at the current location for up to fifteen months, or up to May 31, 2015.  
It is projected that the Town will have a new library facility completed and ready for 
move in by that time.  During the interim period, the Town and District would continue to 
act as a joint use facility serving both the public and the high school.  The Town will now 
lease the facility for $25,000, payable over the 15 month period in five installments.  The 
Town will also agree to vacate the current location upon completion of the new facility 
with no penalty for moving out early.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
February 18, 2014 
Page 6 of 8 

On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Celaya, and 
carried to approve of entering into an Intergovernmental Library Agreement between the 
Town of Florence (“Town”) and the Florence Unified School District (“District”). 

 
Resolution No. 1421-14 Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of adopting A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
ORDERING AND CALLING, A SPECIAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON MAY 20, 2014, 
IN AND FOR THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA, TO SUBMIT TO THE 
QUALIFIED ELECTORS OF THE TOWN THE QUESTION OF THE ACQUISITION OF 
THE WATER AND WASTEWATER UTILITIES OWNED BY JOHNSON UTILITIES, 
LLC, AND SOUTHWEST ENVIRONMENTAL UTILITIES, LLC.   
 
Ms. Garcia stated the Town has contact the Pinal County Elections Department, and 
has determined that the Town can do an election on May 20, 2014, if the Council calls 
the election.  The election will be to place this particular question before the voters, not 
to determine if the Town of Florence is going to purchase or not purchase, but to place 
the question to the voters if the voters wish for the Town of Florence to purchase.   
 
Ms. Garcia said the resolution will allow the Town Clerk to take all actions necessary to 
facilitate the election.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Walter, to adopt 
Resolution No. 1421-14. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Councilmember Montaño: Yes 
Councilmember Walter:  Yes 
Councilmember Woolridge:  Yes 
Councilmember Hawkins:  Yes 
Councilmember Celaya:  Yes 
Vice-Mayor Smith:  Yes 
Mayor Rankin:  Yes 
 
Motion passed (Yes: 7; No: 0) 

 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of authorization to enter into an 
Intergovernmental Agreement for provisions of services with the Pinal County 
Recorder for elections and voter registration services. 

 
Ms. Garcia stated that the Town has spoken with Pinal County Voter Registration, and 
they are willing to allow the Town to do an election.  Typically, cities have to call an 
election 120 days prior to.  She said today is the 91st day prior to the election.  She said 
the Town will be doing a ground election that will take place at the Town of Florence.  
There will be one polling site.  Those who have signed up for permanent early ballots 
will receive their permanent early ballots.  The Town has 52% of the Town’s voters 
receive early ballots.   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
February 18, 2014 
Page 7 of 8 

 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Walter, to enter 
into an Intergovernmental Agreement for provisions of services with the Pinal County 
Recorder for elections and voter registration services. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Councilmember Montaño: Yes 
Councilmember Walter:  Yes 
Councilmember Woolridge:  Yes 
Councilmember Hawkins:  Yes 
Councilmember Celaya:  Yes 
Vice-Mayor Smith:  Yes 
Mayor Rankin:  Yes 
 
Motion passed (Yes: 7; No: 0) 

 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
Ms. Denise Kollert, Florence Resident, thanked the Council for her re-appointment to 
the Library Board.  She enjoys serving and is looking forward to the new library.   
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 
Councilmember Walter invited everyone to the fishing event the first weekend in March.  
The free dump day will be on March 15, 2014.   
 
Councilmember Celaya thanked all of the Board and Commission members for their 
time and efforts. 
 
Councilmember Montaño acknowledged the Florence High School Basketball Team for 
going to the playoffs.   
 
Vice-Mayor Smith thanked everyone who assisted with the Home Tour.  It was a great 
and successful event.   
 
Mayor Rankin thanked all those who volunteer in Florence.  The Council would like to 
see more participation.  He also thanked the Council for taking the appropriate steps in 
the evaluation on the acquisition of Johnson Utilities.  The resolution prepares the Town 
Council to ask the general public permission to purchase the utility once the evaluation 
is completed.  
 
Mayor Rankin thanked the Pinal County Recorder for assisting the Town with the May 
election.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that there was a letter in the paper that said the Town 
should have used the money from the Main Street project on the Cuen place instead. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
February 18, 2014 
Page 8 of 8 

He stated the project has been in the works for quite some time because of issues with 
ADOT.  He said the Cuen Building is such a small building and the cost for restoration is 
cost prohibitive.  The Town did solicit for private funding.  The Town is on a time frame 
due to safety because the walls are separated and it is ready to collapse.   

 
ADJOURNMENT 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the 
purpose of obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the 
agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and 
carried to adjourn the meeting at 6:40 pm. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on February 18, 2014, and that the meeting was duly called to 
order and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 





































 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
10a.  

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst 
 
SUBJECT:   Adoption of Resolution No. 1428-14 approving  
                     the proceedings of the Industrial Development  
                     Authority of the Town of Florence, Inc. for the  
                     issuance of not to exceed $75,000,000 of  
                     education revenue bonds (Legacy Traditional  
                     Schools Project) Series 2014a. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

 
Subject: Resolution No. 1428-14 IDA Revenue Bond for Legacy Traditional School  
Meeting Date: March 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1428-14: A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL TO 
THE ISSUANCE OF ONE OR MORE SERIES OF THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, INC. TAX-EXEMPT AND/OR 
TAXABLE EDUCATION REVENUE BONDS (LEGACY TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS 
PROJECT), SERIES 2014A, IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO 
EXCEED $75,000,000 TO FINANCE THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, 
IMPROVEMENT AND EQUIPPING OF EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES FOR ATHLOS 
TRADITIONAL ACADEMY AND ITS AFFILIATES, LEGACY TRADITIONAL SCHOOL 
– AVONDALE, LEGACY TRADITIONAL SCHOOL – LAVEEN AND LEGACY 
TRADITIONAL SCHOOL – NORTHWEST TUCSON. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
This resolution will allow Legacy Traditional Schools to issue, through the IDA, up to 
$75,000,000 of bonds for the acquisition, construction, and equipping of four schools 
consisting of Athlos Traditional Academy in Gilbert, and Legacy Traditional Schools in 
Tucson, Avondale, and Laveen.  Currently, Legacy Traditional Schools operates charter 
school facilities in Maricopa, Queen Creek, Casa Grande, Avondale, Chandler, Tucson, 
and Laveen.  The Florence Industrial Development Authority will give final approval to 
issue the bonds on March 17, 2014.  The Town of Florence approved a similar IDA 
bond issue for Legacy Traditional Schools in December 2012. 
 
There is no liability incurred by issuing these bonds. By issuing these bonds, the Town 
or the IDA is not precluded from making other issues now or in the future. The issuance 



 

 
Subject: Resolution No. 1428-14 IDA Revenue Bond for Legacy Traditional School  
Meeting Date: March 17, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

of industrial development bonds is contingent on the borrower’s strength and the 
comfort that the underwriter has with the applicant.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
There is no fiscal impact to the Town of Florence or any liability through issuing these 
bonds. Per ARS Statues, the risk is borne by Legacy Traditional Schools and those that 
purchase the bonds.  
 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 1428-14 for the approval of the of the 
Industrial Development Authority bonds for Legacy Traditional Schools.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1428-14 
IDA Resolution  
Letter dated March 5, 2014 
 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1428-14 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL TO THE ISSUANCE OF ONE 
OR MORE SERIES OF THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, INC. TAX-EXEMPT 
AND/OR TAXABLE EDUCATION REVENUE BONDS (LEGACY 
TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS PROJECT), SERIES 2014A, IN AN 
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED $75,000,000 
TO FINANCE THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, IMPROVEMENT 
AND EQUIPPING OF EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES FOR ATHLOS 
TRADITIONAL ACADEMY AND ITS AFFILIATES, LEGACY 
TRADITIONAL SCHOOL – AVONDALE, LEGACY TRADITIONAL 
SCHOOL – LAVEEN AND LEGACY TRADITIONAL SCHOOL – 
NORTHWEST TUCSON. 

 

WHEREAS, The Industrial Development Authority of the Town of Florence, Inc. (the 

“Authority”), is an Arizona nonprofit corporation designated as a political subdivision of the 

State of Arizona empowered under the Industrial Development Financing Act, A.R.S. §§35-701 

through 761 inclusive (the “Act”), to issue revenue bonds for the purposes set forth in the Act, 

including the making of secured and unsecured loans for the purpose of financing the 

acquisition, construction, improvement or equipping of a “project” (as defined in the Act) 

whenever the Board of Directors of the Authority finds such loans to be in the public interest; 

and 

WHEREAS, the term “project” includes within its meaning any land, any building or 

other improvements, and all real and personal properties which are suitable for an educational 

institution or organization established under the provisions of Title 15, Chapter 1, Article 8, 

Arizona Revised Statutes, and owned by a nonprofit organization; and 

WHEREAS, Athlos Traditional Academy (the “Borrower”), an Arizona nonprofit 

corporation designated as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue 

Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), has requested the Authority to issue its revenue bonds 



 

2 

for the purpose of assisting the Borrower and its affiliates, Legacy Traditional School – 

Avondale, Legacy Traditional School – Laveen and Legacy Traditional School – Northwest 

Tucson, each of which is an Arizona nonprofit corporation, in financing the costs of acquiring, 

constructing, renovating, improving and equipping land and buildings located in Chandler, 

Avondale, Laveen and Tucson, Arizona (the “Facilities”), for use by the Borrower or one of its 

affiliates, as applicable, in connection with its respective charter school operations; and 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the purposes of the Act, the Authority proposes to issue 

one or more series of its tax-exempt and/or taxable Education Revenue Bonds (Legacy 

Traditional Schools Project), Series 2014A (the “Bonds”), in an aggregate principal amount of 

not to exceed $75,000,000, the proceeds of which will be loaned to the Borrower to (i) finance 

the costs of the Facilities, (ii) fund a debt service reserve fund for the Bonds, and (iii) pay certain 

expenses relating to issuance of the Bonds (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority, by a resolution duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the 

Authority at a lawful meeting called and held on March 17, 2014 (the “Authority Resolution”), 

granted final approval to the issuance and sale of the Bonds in aggregate principal amount not to 

exceed $75,000,000; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 35-721.B of the Act, the proceedings of the Authority 

under which the Bonds are to be issued require the approval of this Council; and 

WHEREAS, approval of the Bonds is not made in consideration of any bribe, gift, 

gratuity, or direct or indirect contribution to any political campaign; and 

WHEREAS, this Council has had presented to it information regarding the Project and 

the Bonds and is informed and advised regarding the Project and the Bonds. 



 

3 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN OF FLORENCE as follows: 

SECTION I. APPROVAL OF PROCEEDINGS.  The proceedings of the Authority 

under which the Bonds are to be issued in aggregate principal amount not to exceed $75,000,000 

are hereby approved, subject, however, to all the terms and conditions contained in the Authority 

Resolution. 

SECTION II. CERTIFICATION.  It is hereby CERTIFIED under penalty of perjury that 

the approval of the proceedings is not made in consideration of any bribe, gift, gratuity, or direct 

or indirect contribution to any political campaign. 

 



 

4 

PASSED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona, this 17th day of March, 2014. 

 

 

   
 Tom Rankin - Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

   
 Lisa Garcia - Town Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

   
 James E. Mannato - Town Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PHX 331026086v3 



 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, INC. 
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE, SALE AND DELIVERY OF ONE OR 
MORE SERIES OF ITS TAX-EXEMPT AND/OR TAXABLE EDUCATION 
REVENUE BONDS (LEGACY TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS PROJECT), 
SERIES 2014A, IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO 
EXCEED $75,000,000; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY 
OF AN INDENTURE OF TRUST, A LOAN AGREEMENT AND A BOND 
PURCHASE AGREEMENT; APPROVING THE TERMS OF SUCH 
DOCUMENTS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS TO BE EXECUTED BY THE 
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, INC.; APPROVING THE FORM OF A LIMITED OFFERING 
MEMORANDUM WITH RESPECT TO SUCH BONDS; RATIFYING 
CERTAIN ACTIONS HERETOFORE TAKEN IN CONNECTION WITH THE 
BONDS; AND AUTHORIZING OTHER ACTIONS NECESSARY IN 
CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS. 

WHEREAS, The Industrial Development Authority of the Town of Florence, Inc. (the 
“Issuer”), a non-profit corporation designated a political subdivision of the State of Arizona (the 
“State”), incorporated with the approval of the Town of Florence, Arizona (the “Town”), 
pursuant to the provisions of the Constitution of the State and under Title 35, Chapter 5, Arizona 
Revised Statutes, as amended (the “Act”), is authorized and empowered, among other things (a) 
to issue its revenue bonds to pay costs of a “project” (as defined in Section 35-701 of the Act); 
(b) to make loans of the proceeds from the sale of its revenue bonds to any person to provide for 
financing or refinancing the cost of acquiring, improving, equipping and maintaining one or 
more projects and to pledge all or any part of the revenues and receipts to be received by the 
Issuer from or in connection with such loans, and to mortgage, pledge or grant security interests 
in such loans or other property of the Issuer in order to secure the payment of the principal or 
redemption price of and interest on such bonds; (c) to enter into contracts and execute any 
agreements or instruments and do any other act necessary or appropriate to carry out its 
purposes; and (d) to enact this Resolution and to enter into the Loan Agreement, the Bond 
Indenture and the Bond Purchase Agreement, all as hereafter defined, upon the terms and 
conditions provided herein and therein; and 

WHEREAS, Athlos Traditional Academy (the “Borrower”), Legacy Traditional School – 
Avondale (“LTS-Avondale”), Legacy Traditional School – Laveen (“LTS-Laveen”) and Legacy 
Traditional School – Northwest Tucson (“LTS-Northwest Tucson” and, collectively with the 
Borrower, LTS-Avondale and LTS-Laveen, the “Obligated Group”), each a duly organized and 
validly existing Arizona nonprofit corporation operated exclusively for charitable and 
educational purposes as a charter school under Arizona Revised Statutes Title 15, Article 1, 
Chapter 8, as amended (the “Charter School Act”), will enter into a Master Indenture of Trust, to 
be dated as of the first day of the month in which the Bonds (as defined below) are issued (the 
“Master Trust Indenture”), among the Obligated Group and Zions First National Bank, as master 
trustee (the “Master Trustee”), pursuant to which the Borrower, as Obligated Group 
Representative (as defined in the Master Trust Indenture), is permitted to issue obligations from 
time to time (the “Obligations”) secured equally by the revenues and other collateral pledged by 
the Obligated Group to the Master Trustee for the benefit of the holders of the Obligations in 



 

2 

order to provide for the financing or refinancing of the acquisition, construction, renovation, 
equipping or improvement of charter school facilities or for other lawful and proper corporate 
purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the Borrower has requested the Issuer to issue its revenue bonds for the 
purpose of assisting the Borrower in financing the cost of acquiring, constructing, improving and 
equipping a charter school facility located in Chandler, Arizona (the “Athlos Campus”), a charter 
school facility located in Avondale, Arizona (the “Avondale Campus”), a charter school facility 
located in Laveen, Arizona (the “Laveen Campus”), and a charter school facility located in 
Northwest Tucson, Arizona (the “Northwest Tucson Campus” and, collectively with the Athlos 
Campus, the Avondale Campus and the Laveen Campus, the “Facilities”), for use by the 
Borrower, LTS-Avondale, LTS-Laveen and LTS-Northwest Tucson, respectively, in each of 
their respective charter school operations; and 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the purposes of the Act, the Issuer proposes to issue one or 
more series of its tax-exempt and/or taxable Education Revenue Bonds (Legacy Traditional 
Schools Project), Series 2014A (the “Bonds”), in an aggregate principal amount of not to exceed 
$75,000,000, the proceeds of which will be loaned to the Borrower to (i) finance or refinance, as 
applicable, costs of acquiring, constructing, renovating, improving and equipping, as applicable, 
the Facilities (the “Project”), (ii) fund a debt service reserve fund for the Bonds, and (iii) pay 
certain expenses relating to issuance of the Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the Bonds will be issued pursuant to an Indenture of Trust, to be dated as of 
the first day of the month in which the Bonds are issued (the “Bond Indenture”), between the 
Issuer and Zions First National Bank, as trustee (the “Bond Trustee”), and the proceeds of the 
Bonds will be loaned to the Borrower pursuant to a Loan Agreement, to be dated as of the first 
day of the month in which the Bonds are issued (the “Loan Agreement”), between the Issuer and 
the Borrower; and 

WHEREAS, the Bonds will be payable from the Trust Estate (as defined in the Bond 
Indenture) (the “Trust Estate”), which Trust Estate will include the reserve fund, payments owed 
by the Obligated Group on Legacy Traditional Schools Obligation No. 1 (“LTS Obligation 
No. 1”), to be issued and executed by the Borrower pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture, as 
supplemented by Supplemental Master Indenture for Obligation No. 1, to be dated as of the first 
date of the month in which the Bonds are issued (the “Supplemental Master Indenture for 
Obligation No. 1”), to secure the Borrower’s obligations under the Loan Agreement, all of which 
will be assigned to the Bond Trustee; and 

WHEREAS, the Bonds will be sold by Piper Jaffray & Co., as underwriter (the 
“Underwriter”), pursuant to a bond purchase agreement (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”), 
among the Issuer, the Borrower and the Underwriter, and the Underwriter will distribute to 
investors a Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum (the “Preliminary Limited Offering 
Memorandum”), which, together with certain changes thereto, will become the final Limited 
Offering Memorandum, relating to the Bonds and describing the transaction (the “Limited 
Offering Memorandum”); and 



 

3 

WHEREAS, there have been prepared and presented at this meeting and there are on file 
with the Secretary of this Board of Directors (the “Board”) proposed substantially final forms of 
the following documents: 

(a) the Bond Indenture, including the initial form of the Bonds; 

(b) the Loan Agreement; 

(c) the Master Trust Indenture and the Supplemental Master Indenture for Obligation 
No. 1, including the form of the LTS Obligation No. 1; 

(d) the Bond Purchase Agreement; and 

(e) the Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum; and 

WHEREAS, the documents identified in paragraphs (a), (b) and (d) of the previous 
WHEREAS clause are collectively referred to herein as the “Issuer Documents”; and 

WHEREAS, this Board determines hereby that the execution and delivery of the Issuer 
Documents and the issuance and sale of the Bonds by the Issuer as contemplated by such 
documents and the effect thereof will each be in furtherance of the purposes of the Issuer and the 
Act, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, INC. AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Authority. 

(a) The Bonds herein authorized shall be issued pursuant to the laws of the 
State, the Act and the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and all applicable regulations 
(whether temporary or final) (the “Code”) and other applicable provisions of law. 

(b) It is hereby determined that the property comprising the Facilities to be 
financed with the Bonds constitute a “project,” as defined in and permitted by the Act, and the 
financing of the Project is in the public interest and is consistent with the purposes of the Act. 

Section 2. Authorization and Terms of Bonds.   

(a) Pursuant to the Act and the terms of the Bond Indenture, there is hereby 
authorized the issuance and sale of the Bonds of the Issuer to be known as “Education Revenue 
Bonds (Legacy Traditional Schools Project), Series 2014” in an original aggregate principal 
amount of not to exceed $75,000,000, for the purpose of paying costs of the Project, funding a 
debt service reserve fund and paying certain costs of issuance related to the Bonds.  The Bonds 
shall be issued in the forms and on the terms set forth therein and in the Bond Indenture.  The 
Bonds shall be dated as of the first day of the month in which they are issued or such other date 
as set forth therein and in the Bond Indenture. 



 

4 

(b) The Bonds shall mature on such date or dates as set forth in the final 
executed Bonds and the Bond Indenture, provided that the final maturity of the Bonds shall be 
not later than 40 years after the date upon which there is an exchange of the Bonds for proceeds 
representing the purchase price thereof from the Underwriter (the “Closing Date”).  The Bonds 
shall bear interest at the fixed rate or rates of interest per year as set forth in the final executed 
Bonds and in the Bond Indenture and the Bond Purchase Agreement provided that such rate or 
rates of interest shall not exceed 10 percent per year.  Interest on the Bonds shall be payable 
semiannually on each interest payment date and at such other times as set forth in the final 
executed Bonds and the Bond Indenture until the principal sum is paid or duly provided for, and 
shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months. 

(c) The Bonds shall be payable solely out of the payments, revenues and 
receipts received by the Issuer pursuant to the Loan Agreement, including the payments to be 
paid by the Obligated Group pursuant to LTS Obligation No. 1, and other security provided in 
the Bond Indenture, and such payments, revenues and receipts as shall be pledged and assigned 
to the Bond Trustee as security for the payment of the Bonds as provided in the Bond Indenture, 
subject to the limitations and reservations prescribed in the Bond Indenture and the Loan 
Agreement with respect to the Issuer’s Unassigned Rights (as defined in the Bond Indenture).  
The approval of the Issuer of the final terms of the Bonds as set forth in the Bond Indenture shall 
be conclusively evidenced by execution of the Issuer Documents by the authorized officers of the 
Issuer executing the Issuer Documents. 

(d) The Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity as provided in 
the Bond Indenture and in the final executed Bonds; shall be payable, shall be executed and 
authenticated in such manner, shall be in such forms and denominations, shall be of such tenor 
and effect, shall be payable from such sources and shall have such transfer restrictions, all as 
provided in the Bond Indenture. 

Section 3. Execution of the Bonds.  The form, terms and provisions of the Bonds, in 
the form contained in the Bond Indenture, are hereby approved, with only such changes therein 
as are not inconsistent herewith.  The President and the Secretary of the Issuer are each hereby 
authorized to execute the Bonds and are each hereby authorized to cause them to be delivered.  
The signatures of the President and the Secretary on the Bonds may be by manual or facsimile 
signature.  No Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose or shall be entitled to any 
security or benefit under this Resolution or the Bond Indenture unless and until the certificate of 
authentication printed on the Bonds is signed by the Bond Trustee. 

Section 4. Execution of Documents.  The forms, terms and provisions of the Issuer 
Documents, in the forms of such documents (including the exhibits thereto) presented at this 
meeting, are hereby approved, with such insertions, deletions and changes as are not inconsistent 
herewith and as are permitted by the Act and the Code, as shall be approved by those officers 
executing and delivering the same on behalf of the Issuer, and such execution and delivery or 
approval shall constitute conclusive evidence of their approval and of this Board’s approval of 
any such changes from the respective forms thereof presented to this meeting.  Any officer of the 
Issuer is hereby authorized to execute and deliver the Issuer Documents on behalf of this Board.  
The authorization of the issuance of the Bonds is expressly conditioned upon the understanding 



 

5 

that the Issuer will not execute any document or consent to the execution of any document until 
the form of such documents is acceptable to Ryley, Carlock & Applewhite, counsel to the Issuer. 

Section 5. Request for Authentication.  The President or any other officer of the 
Issuer is hereby authorized to execute and deliver to the Bond Trustee any written order of the 
Issuer for the authentication and delivery of the Bonds by the Bond Trustee to the Underwriter. 

Section 6. Bond Purchase Agreement; Sale of Bonds.  The sale and delivery of the 
Bonds in accordance with applicable federal and state securities laws to the Underwriter on the 
terms set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement and the execution of the Bond Purchase 
Agreement containing such provisions relating to the timing, structure and terms of the Bonds as 
requested by the Borrower and the Underwriter in substantially the form presented to this 
meeting by any officer of the Issuer is hereby authorized with such changes to the Bond Purchase 
Agreement as such officer shall approve after consultation with Ryley, Carlock & Applewhite, 
counsel to the Issuer, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution thereof. 

Section 7. Offering Documents.  The distribution by the Underwriter of the 
Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum in connection with the offering of the Bonds for sale 
is hereby ratified, confirmed and approved.  Any officer of the Issuer is hereby authorized and 
directed to execute and deliver any documents relating to the final Limited Offering 
Memorandum to the Underwriter, with such changes as are necessary to conform to the Bond 
Purchase Agreement and such further changes as are not, in the opinion of the President, 
inconsistent with the actions taken and the documents approved at this meeting. 

Section 8. Other Actions.  To the extent permitted by law, any of the officers and 
agents of the Issuer are hereby authorized and directed to take all action necessary on its part or 
reasonably required by the parties to the Issuer Documents to carry out, give effect to and 
consummate the transactions contemplated thereby, including, without limitation, the 
authorization of payment of the Bonds as provided in the Bond Indenture and the execution and 
delivery of the closing and other documents necessary or appropriate to be delivered in 
connection with the sale and delivery of the Bonds.  Each officer of the Issuer is hereby 
empowered and authorized, upon the request of the Borrower, from time to time, to execute, on 
behalf of the Issuer, any amendment to the Issuer Documents approved by Ryley, Carlock & 
Applewhite, counsel to the Issuer.  

Section 9. Limited Obligations.  Nothing contained in this Resolution or in the Issuer 
Documents or any other instrument, shall be construed as obligating the Issuer, except to the 
extent provided in such documents or instruments, or as incurring a charge upon the general 
credit or taxing power of the Issuer, the Town or the State or any other political subdivision 
thereof, nor shall the breach of any agreement contained in this Resolution, the Issuer Documents 
or any other instrument or document executed in connection therewith impose any charge upon 
the general credit or taxing power of the Issuer, the Town or the State or any other political 
subdivision thereof.  The Issuer has no taxing power. 

Section 10. Actions of Officers, Staff, Directors and Agents.  All actions of the 
officers, staff, directors and agents of the Issuer that are in conformity with the purposes and 
intent of this Resolution and in furtherance of the issuance and sale of the Bonds as contemplated 



 

6 

by this Resolution and the documents referred to herein, whether heretofore or hereafter taken, 
shall be and are hereby ratified, confirmed and approved.  The proper officers, staff, directors 
and agents of the Issuer are hereby authorized and directed to do all such acts and to execute, 
acknowledge and deliver all such documents on behalf of the Issuer as may be deemed necessary 
or desirable to carry out the terms and intent of this Resolution and of any of the documents 
referred to herein. 

Section 11. Role of Bond Trustee.  The Bond Trustee, initially Zions First National 
Bank, shall serve as trustee, bond registrar and paying agent under the Bond Indenture and is 
hereby appointed as such. 

Section 12. Tax Covenants.   

(a) The Issuer covenants that it will restrict the use of the proceeds of any 
Bonds the interest on which is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes 
(the “Tax-Exempt Bonds”) in the manner and to the extent, if any, that may be necessary, after 
taking into account reasonable expectations at the time of the delivery of and payment for the 
Tax-Exempt Bonds, so that the Tax-Exempt Bonds will not constitute arbitrage bonds under 
Section 148 of the Code.  To those ends, the President, or any other officer of this Board having 
responsibility for issuing the Bonds, is authorized and directed, alone or in conjunction with any 
of the foregoing or with any other officer, employee, consultant or agent of the Issuer to give (i) 
an appropriate certificate of the Issuer, for inclusion in the transcript of proceedings for the 
Bonds, setting forth the reasonable expectations of the Issuer regarding the amount and use of the 
proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds and the facts, estimates and circumstances on which those 
expectations are based, all as of the Closing Date, and (ii) the statement setting forth the 
information, with respect to the Tax-Exempt Bonds, required by Section 149(e) of the Code. 

(b) The Issuer covenants that it (i) will take or require to be taken all actions 
that may be required of it for the interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds to be and remain excluded 
from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and (ii) will not take or authorize to be taken 
any actions that would adversely affect that exclusion under the provisions of the Code, and that 
it, or persons acting for it, will, among other acts of compliance, (A) restrict the yield on 
investment property acquired with the proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds, (B) make timely 
rebate payments to the federal government, and (C) refrain from certain uses of proceeds, all in 
such manner and to the extent necessary to assure such exclusion of that interest under the Code; 
and the appropriate officers of the Issuer are hereby authorized and directed to take any and all 
actions as may be appropriate to assure such exclusion of that interest.  In its performance of 
these covenants and other covenants of the Issuer, including covenants in the Issuer Documents, 
pertaining to federal income tax laws, the Issuer may rely in good faith upon the advice of 
nationally recognized bond counsel that is in writing and is provided to the Bond Trustee. 

Section 13. Advice of Counsel.  In the execution, delivery and performance of any 
documents or instruments authorized hereby, the President, the Vice President, the Secretary and 
any other officer of this Board are hereby authorized to rely on advice of Ryley, Carlock & 
Applewhite, as counsel to the Issuer, to make modifications therein and to execute and deliver 
such additional documents or instruments as may be reasonably required to effect the issuance 
and sale of the Bonds. 



 

7 

Section 14. Conditions.  In addition to the other conditions set forth herein and in the 
Issuer Documents, the issuance and sale of the Bonds is subject to satisfaction of the following 
conditions: 

(a) if the Bonds are not rated at least investment grade by one of the 
nationally recognized rating agencies, then (A) the Underwriter may only sell the Bonds to (1) 
“qualified institutional buyers” within the meaning of Rule 144A of the Securities Act of 1933, 
as amended (the “Securities Act”), or (2) “accredited investors” within the meaning of Rule 501 
of Regulation D promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to the 
Securities Act and (B) the Issuer must receive evidence satisfactory to it and its counsel that the 
Underwriter only sold the Bonds to “qualified institutional buyers” or “accredited investors”; 

(b) the Borrower shall pay or cause to be paid on the Closing Date the 
reasonable fees and expenses of the Issuer, including without limitation, the fees and expenses of 
its counsel; and 

(c) the Borrower shall agree to pay or cause to be paid the Issuer Fee (as 
defined in the Bond Indenture) in the amounts and at the times set forth in the Issuer Documents. 

Section 15. Severability.  If any section, paragraph or provision of this Resolution 
shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or unenforceability of 
such section, paragraph or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this 
Resolution. 

Section 16. Town Approval.  The approval of the Town Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, of the issuance of the Bonds shall be a condition precedent to such issuance.  
This Board hereby requests such approval and directs its Secretary to deliver promptly a certified 
copy of this Resolution to the Clerk of the Town. 

Section 17. Delegation to Alternate Officers.  In the event of the absence, 
unavailability or inability to act of the President or the Secretary, the then President, the Vice 
President, any assistant or acting Secretary, or any other member of this Board, are each 
authorized and empowered to take all actions, and to execute all documents and instruments and 
to deliver the same, as are herein authorized to be taken or executed and delivered by the 
President or the Secretary, as the case may be. 

Section 18. Repeal of Conflicting Resolutions, Effective Date and Irrepealability.  All 
resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict with the provisions of this Resolution are, to 
the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed, and this Resolution shall be in immediate effect 
from and after its adoption. 

Section 19. Waivers.  Any provisions of any bylaws, orders, procedural pamphlets and 
resolutions of the Issuer inconsistent herewith are hereby waived to the extent only of such 
inconsistency.  This waiver shall not be construed as repealing any bylaw, order, procedural 
pamphlet or resolution or any part thereof. 



 

8 

Section 20. Legal Compliance.  It is found and determined that all formal actions of 
the Issuer and its Board concerning and relating to the adoption of this Resolution were adopted 
in an open meeting and that all deliberations that resulted in those formal actions were in 
meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements of the State and the Issuer. 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.] 



 

9 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 17th day of March, 2014. 

THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, INC. 
 
 
 
By:         
Title:         

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PHX 331026078v3 















 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
10b. 

MEETING DATE:  March 17, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:       Police Department and  
                                 Finance Department 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Daniel Hughes, Police Chief 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1429-14: Request to adopt a 

resolution and ratify grant application submitted 
to the Arizona Governor’s Office of Highway 
Safety for 2015 funds. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1429-14: GOHS Funds                                                           Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1429-14:  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, PERTAINING TO THE FLORENCE 
POLICE DEPARTMENT’S SUBMISSION OF A PROJECT FOR CONSIDERATION IN 
ARIZONA’S FY 2015 HIGHWAY SAFETY PLAN. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Town staff seeks approval to submit an application for funding to the Arizona 
Governor’s Office of Highway Safety. If awarded, the funds would be used to purchase: 
Accident Investigation Devices, (1) 2015 Chevrolet Tahoe – DUI vehicle, and provide for 
Overtime Costs for selective traffic enforcement. The amount requested from the 
funding source is $75,636.51. 
 
The application was submitted by the February 28, 2014 deadline. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
This application will be for full funding of $75,636.51 by the Arizona Governor’s Office of 
Highway Safety to pay for the requested capital outlay, equipment, and personnel costs 
associated with overtime.   Awards are expected to be announced in July. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the Mayor and Town Council adopt Resolution No. 1429-14 and  
ratify the grant application to the Arizona Governor’s Office of Highway Safety in the 
amount of $75.636.51. 
 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1429-14: GOHS Funds                                                           Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1429-14 
Grant Summary Form 
Grant Request Proposed Budget 



RESOLUTION NO. 1429-14 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
PERTAINING TO THE FLORENCE POLICE DEPARTMENT’S SUBMISSION 
OF A PROJECT FOR CONSIDERATION IN ARIZONA’S FY 2015 HIGHWAY 
SAFETY PLAN. 

 
WHEREAS, the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety is seeking proposals from state 

and local agencies for projects relating to all aspects of highway safety; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Florence, through the Police Department, is interested in 

submitting a project to be considered for funding in the form of a reimbursable grant from 
the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration in the amount of $75,636.51. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 
1. THAT approval of the submission of a project for consideration in Arizona’s FY 

2015 Highway Safety Plan in the amount of $75,636.51 is granted. 
 
2. THAT Town Manager Charles Montoya is appointed agent for the Town of 

Florence, to conduct all negotiations and to execute and submit all documents 
and any other necessary or desirable instruments in connection with such grant. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, on this 17th day of March, 2014. 
 

__________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor  

      
ATTEST:                 APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk     James E. Mannato, Town Attorney 
       
 
I, the undersigned, being the duly appointed and qualified Town Clerk of the Town of 
Florence, certify that the foregoing Resolution No.1429-14, is a true, correct and accurate 
copy as passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Town of Florence Mayor and 
Council, held on the 17th day of March 2014, at which a quorum was present and voted in 
favor of said Resolution No. 1429-14. 
 
 
      
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 







 

TOWN OF FLORENCE
COUNCIL ACTION 

FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
10c. 

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                    Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Design-Build Construction Services for  
                     Padilla Park at the Silver King Plaza. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Padilla Park at Silver King Plaza Contract Award                                                  Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 3 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to authorize the Town Manager to negotiate and enter into a contract or 
contracts with Haydon Building Corp., not to exceed a cumulative total of 
$500,000, for design-build construction services to complete the proposed 
Padilla Park at the Silver King Plaza project. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
In 2008, the Town began to aggressively complete restoration efforts on one of 
the finest examples of Victorian architecture in Florence.  The Silver King Hotel 
rehabilitation project allowed this significant building to be occupied and leased 
for commercial purposes. 
 
Soon after the rehabilitation was completed, funding to finish the rest of the 
exterior lot behind the Silver King Hotel diminished.  The rebounding economy 
and recent acquisition of the adjacent lot from the Padilla family created an 
opportunity to complete this restoration project with complementary site 
improvements. 
 
By assessing current amenities and needs in downtown, staff (Parks and 
Recreation, Community Development, Administration, Public Works and others) 
came up with a variety of creative ideas to enhance the subject space and ways 
to attract and keep people in downtown.  Staff was unified in creating a public 
space that is flexible and could accommodate different activities that are not 
currently offered in or around the downtown area.  
 
These general ideas were then conveyed to generous business partners who 
donated their time, talents and funding to the Town for the creation of the 
proposed public space.  The WLB Group, Inc., created the final plat for the 
expanded subject site that was approved by the Town Council on August 19, 



Subject:  Padilla Park at Silver King Plaza Contract Award                                                  Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 
Page 2 of 3 

2013.  Swaback Partners and the Londen Company graciously contributed their 
time and funds to the conceptual design of the Padilla Park at the Silver King 
Plaza.  All parties desired to give back to the Town and appreciated how this 
quality project would benefit the Town as a whole.  
 
The concept design for the park, which was presented at a Town Council Work 
Session on October 21, 2013, incorporated many beneficial and welcoming 
design elements.  Due to the large size of the acquired property and the 
connection to an existing historic building, the design focus was to create an 
open space that was multi-functioning.  Thus the Park has three main zones: 
 

1. The park has a passive patio area for dining and socializing. This area can 
be an extension of the indoor restaurant spaces. This zone also includes 
new restrooms to benefit the park and future restaurants. 

 
2. The park has an active component with the splash pad feature and 

adjacent sloped turf areas. 
 

3. The park has a special event and structured activity component with the 
sloped turf field and stage area. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The financial impact of developing the proposed park, along with essential site 
and building infrastructure will not exceed $500,000.  
 
The project can be broken up into the following core components 
 
General landscape and hardscape improvements*      
Fencing            
Electrical improvements          
Bathrooms         
Project management, final design, plans and overhead                                            
 
*Includes significant number of plants that will be graciously donated to the Town 
by Harold and Katie Christ. 
 
The opportunity to acquire the Padilla property came up after the planning for this 
current fiscal year budget; however, funds identified for other planned municipal 
Capital Improvement Projects are being transferred to expedite this project in the 
current fiscal year.  
 
Per the Council’s direction, the concept plans were further refined for a bid 
package and the Town opened up a RFQ for design-build construction services 
for this project.  Seven submittals were received and reviewed in response to the 
RFQ. The project Selection Committee interviewed the top four scoring 



Subject:  Padilla Park at Silver King Plaza Contract Award                                                  Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 
Page 3 of 3 

proposals.  The Haydon Building Corp., team had the second highest proposal 
score, second highest interview score and second highest cumulative score. 
Scope and budget negotiations with the top scoring team were unsuccessful.  As 
such, this is the preferred team we are finalizing negotiations with and will 
approve a contract or contracts with them should there be a favorable motion on 
this agenda item.  It is noted that the Haydon Building Corp., team was the 
primary contractor for the recent improvements at the Florence Military 
Reservation. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Motion to authorize the Town Manager to negotiate and enter into a contract or 
contracts with Haydon Building Corp not to exceed a cumulative total of 
$500,000, for design-build construction services to complete the proposed 
Padilla Park at the Silver King Plaza project. 

ATTACHMENT: 
 
RFQ Proposal from Haydon Building Corp. 



HAYDON BUILDING CORP | 4640 East Cotton Gin Loop | Phoenix, Arizona 85040
602.296.1496 phone | 602.297.6972 fax | www.haydonbc.com

ORIGINAL



1

1 Cover Letter
January 10, 2014

Mark Eckhoff, AICP
Community Development Director/Project Manager
Town of Florence, 775 North Main Street, Florence, Arizona 85132

Dear Mr. Eckhoff & Members of the Selection Committee:

On behalf of the Haydon Building Corp and Environmental Planning 
Group Design/Build team, I would like to thank you for the opportunity 
to submit our Statement of Qualifi cations. Your Padilla Park project 
is an excellent fi t with the Haydon DB team’s experience. We look 
forward to continuing our relationship with the Town of Florence on 
this important and exciting project.

Haydon & EPG Firm Experience: Over the years, Haydon and 
EPG combined have provided valuable experience in planning and 
constructing these challenging, complex projects. We have become 
experts in their programming and design to meet the needs of diverse 
user groups as well as in the managing of construction. We will apply 
this experience to your project to ensure your park is designed and 
constructed in a manner that is the most cost-effective and achieves 
the highest quality standards.

Another key element of our fi rms’ experience is our history of working 
together on successful projects. Haydon and EPG have successfully 
delivered numerous park projects together, including the newly 
completed Pioneer Community Park DB for the City of Peoria. Through 
this experience working together, Haydon and EPG have developed 
the synergy, trust and respect among our fi rms that will make us an 
outstanding partner for the Town of Florence.

Haydon & EPG Team Member Experience: The Haydon DB 
team is well versed in park construction and has experience working 
together as a team on municipal park projects. Haydon and EPG 
recently completed Peoria’s newly completed Pioneer Community Park 
DB project, Tempe’s Western Canal Multi-Use Path CM at Risk, and 
pre-construction for Goodyear’s Foothills Community Park CM at Risk. 

Additionally, Haydon has experience executing successful projects 
from start to fi nish within the Town of Florence. Our most recently 
completed projects include the Browning-Miller Readiness Center DB 
and the Florence Field Maintenance Shop, both of which are located 
on the Florence Military Reservation.

Our Director of Pre-Construction, Fritz Behrhorst, has provided pre-
construction services on over 80 DB and alternative delivery projects 
and has a strong working relationship with EPG. Our Project Manager, 
Cub Carter, has vast experience with building municipal parks, 
including Peoria’s Pioneer Community Park DB, and Rio Vista Park 
Phase II DB. Our Project Superintendent, Pat Wauneka, has also 
completed work on numerous park projects, including Rio Vista Park 
Phase II DB. Furthermore, our Design Project Manager, Mike Park, 
has 31 years of project experience and has been involved in over 70 
parks and recreation projects. He recently served as the Design PM 
on Peoria’s Pioneer Community Park project completed with Haydon. 
With this team, the Town of Florence greatly benefi ts - an experienced, 
cohesive group that has a proven track record of success with the 
Town and will successfully take your project from start to fi nish.

We appreciate your time and consideration and acknowledge all 
addenda for this RFQ. For further information about this Statement of 
Qualifi cations, please don’t hesitate to contact me.I will serve as the 
team’s authorized representative to negotiate and contractually bind 
the fi rm/team.

Sincerely,

Fritz Behrhorst, LEED AP, Vice President
Haydon Building Corp
4640 E Cotton Gin Loop, Phoenix, AZ 85040
(602) 296-1496 tel, (602) 297-6972 fax
fbehrhorst@haydonbc.com

Through 
oped 
s an

rking

Sincerely,

FrFrFrFrFrF itz Behrhrrrrrhohohohohohorst, LEEEEEEED DDDDD APAAAAA , Vice Presiden
Haydon Building Corp



2

2 Member Roles & Capabilities

  1 Project Team

The table below identifi es the Haydon DB 
team’s members and their roles.

Haydon Building Corp (Haydon) provides General Contracting, Design/Build (D/B), and 
Construction Management at Risk (CMAR) services. We are unique in that we are a general 
building contractor for vertical construction, as well as a civil construction contractor with the 
ability to self perform horizontal work. We have successfully completed numerous similar 
municipal park projects, including Pioneer Community Park DB, Copper Sky Park DB, Rio Vista 
Park Phase II DB, Tumbleweed Park CMAR, and Pecos Park CMAR. Haydon has operated as 
a S-Corp from Phoenix since its inception in 1991. Thanks to an ever-growing client base and 
a high volume of repeat business, we are currently one of the largest general contractors in 
Arizona with $205 million in annual revenue.

Environmental Planning Group, LLC (EPG) is an interdisciplinary landscape architecture and 
environmental planning fi rm of nearly 100 professionals and staff members including seven 
registered landscape architects and over 20 individuals with academic degrees in landscape 
architecture. EPG’s collective experience with urban design and recreation design includes 
the planning, design, and implementation of public facilities ranging from neighborhood parks 
to regional parks, open space and regional trails systems, linear parks and river park systems, 
arterial and collector roadways, and mixed use projects. We maintain the integrity of the 
planning and design process by ensuring that initial planning and conceptual design objectives 
are carried into fi nal solutions and implementation.

H
ay

do
n

(B
ui

ld
er

)

Cub Carter
Construction Project Manager

Fritz Behrhorst
Pre-Construction Director

Pat Wauneka
Project Superintendent

D
es

ig
n

S
ub

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s

Steve Lewis, PE
(Ritoch-Powell & Assoc.)
Civil Engineering

Don Ryden, AIA
(Ryden Architects)
Historic Preservation

Scott Wright, PE
(Wright Engineering)
Electrical Design

Greg Piraino, PE
(Applied Engineering, Inc.)
Mechanical Design

E
P

G
(P

rim
e 

D
es

ig
ne

r) Mike Park, ASLA
Design Project Manager

John Griffi n, RLA
Landscape Architect

  CONSTRUCTION

  DESIGN

P R I M E  D E S I G N / B U I L D  F I R M S



3

2 Member Roles & Capabilities

Ritoch-Powell & Associates 
(RPA) has over 35 years 
of experience providing full 
service civil engineering 
and surveying specializing 
in park and recreational 
facilities, site civil development, 
roadway/drainage, traffi c and 
transportation infrastructure, 
water resources, and water/
wastewater improvement projects 
for public works and private 
entities throughout Arizona.

Ryden Architects (Ryden) has 
over 25 years of experience in 
historic preservation, enabling 
architects and governmental 
agencies to incorporate 
contextual sensitivity into their 
work on or about historic site 
and buildings. Our work in 
architecture and planning spans 
a broad range of scale and 
scope, urban and rural, historic, 
and new. Our designs are 
known for complementing the 
architectural integrity of existing 
streetscapes or rural settings 
and strengthening the authentic 
sense of place in communities.

Wright Engineering (Wright) 
is a professional electrical 
engineering fi rm with 
5 professional registrants and 
10 electrical designers who 
cover a wide range of electrical 
engineering needs for all lighting 
and electrical design. We have 
extensive experience designing 
public improvement projects 
throughout Arizona including 
community parks, pedestrian 
areas, and streetscapes. Our 
success is attributed to integrity, 
attention to design detail, quality 
construction documents, and the 
responsive culture we offer to 
our clients. 

Applied Engineering, Inc. (AEI) 
has provided mechanical 
engineering on over 1,500 of 
Arizona’s fi nest institutional, 
commercial, educational, 
industrial and commercial 
buildings and facilities 
improvement projects as well 
as Historic Preservation (HP) 
projects for historically and 
culturally signifi cant buildings in 
Arizona. Mechanical HVAC and 
plumbing projects have included 
designs for high effi ciency 
training centers, educational 
facilities, maintenance buildings, 
offi ces, administration areas, 
LEED sustainable buildings, and 
custom residences.

APPLIED ENGINEERING INC

D E S I G N / B U I L D  T E A M  S U B C O N S U LTA N T S



4

  2 Prime Team Member Roles

CUB CARTER (Construction Project Manager, Haydon) will lead the 
efforts of our DB team. He will act as team leader, owner’s liaison and 
your primary point of contact. His management of the entire program 
will ensure the integration of the pre-construction and construction 
efforts.

FRITZ BEHRHORST (Pre-Construction Director, Haydon) will lead 
Haydon’s efforts in the areas of budgeting, value engineering, and 
technical review. Cub and Fritz will attend all critical team meetings 
and draw upon Haydon’s resources to effectively support the pre-
construction process.

PAT WAUNEKA (Superintendent, Haydon) will run daily onsite 
operations and manage all trades and self-performed work. He will 
also assist our Safety Director in the development and implementation 
of a site and project-specifi c safety plan. He will work directly with the 
Town of Florence, the design team, and fi eld personnel to ensure work 
is completed on schedule and in accordance with all requirements.

MIKE PARK (Design Project Manager, EPG) will be the design team’s 
main point of contact and will oversee all areas of design. He will be 
supported by JOHN GRIFFIN (Registered Landscape Architect, EPG) 
and will oversee all design subconsultants.

2 Member Roles & Capabilities

The members of this team have been carefully 
selected to provide the Town of Florence 
with the optimal combination of expertise, 
experience, and familiarity.

The Haydon team begins with our Project 
Manager, CUB CARTER. Cub was selected 
for this team because of his experience 
building municipal parks, such as the 
Pioneer Community Park and Rio Vista Park 
Phase II, which has given him an in-depth 
understanding of the processes, procedures, 
and requirements necessary to build 
successful projects.

Our Pre-Construction Director, FRITZ 
BEHRHORST, has refi ned our pre-
construction services into a proactive 
collaboration between the owner, designer, 
and builder. Fritz has successfully completed 
over 80 DB and alternative delivery projects. 

He has developed the cornerstone principle 
of Haydon’s commitment to ensuring design 
quality: work collaboratively during pre-
construction to provide the client with a facility 
that will meet their functional and budgetary 
requirements without compromising the 
team’s vision.

The Project Superintendent for this team 
is PAT WAUNEKA. Pat was selected for 
this project because of his track record of 
delivering quality projects on time and under 
budget. Pat’s experience working on the 
Rio Vista Park Phase II project gives him 
the experience that is critical for a project 
superintendent on a project such as this.

MIKE PARK, Design Project Manager, has 
31 years of project experience, including 
recreation planning and design, urban design 
and construction documentation for public 

works, commercial, and offi ce projects. His 
professional skills include master planning, 
site planning, site design, design guidelines, 
preparation of construction documents and 
specifi cations, and construction administration. 
Mike served as the Design Project Manager 
on the Pioneer Community Park project 
completed with Haydon.

Our Registered Landscape Architect is 
JOHN GRIFFIN whose experience includes 
numerous projects that incorporated 
recreation and scenery resources into 
regional-scale planning studies. His 
design experience continues to emphasize 
fi nding and implementing value-added 
opportunities that deliver unique and 
successful projects that respond to their 
physical and cultural environments while 
providing in-budget results.



5

2 Member Roles & Capabilities

  3 Team Member Experience

The Haydon DB team for this project is not only experienced at park 
construction but they are also experienced working together as a team 
on municipal park projects.

There can be no substitute for a proven team when it comes to project 
success. We are pleased to offer the Town of Florence a truly rare 
opportunity for Padilla Park - a proven team with a proven method to 
maximize the interaction between the owner, designer, and builder. 
HAYDON AND EPG recently completed the new Pioneer Community 
Park DB project for the City of Peoria, as well as Foothills 
Community Park Phase II Pre-Con CMAR for the Town of Goodyear, 
and the Western Canal Multi-Use Path CMAR for the City of Tempe.

HAYDON recently completed two projects located in the Town of 
Florence: the Browning-Miller Readiness Center and the Florence 
Field Maintenance Shop, both located on the Florence Military 
Reservation. Our team built a strong relationship with the Town’s 
Public Works Director, Wayne Costa, and helped develop solutions to 
re-design the water meter requirements and lessen the impact of the 
Town’s fees to the project which saved the project tens of thousands of 
dollars. We will bring this knowledge and relationship to your project.

RITOCH-POWELL & ASSOCIATES (Civil Engineer) has recent 
experience with the Town of Florence and Pinal County providing 
engineering and surveying services on various projects from land 
surveying and basemapping of transfer stations, roadway design 

improvements, and land development engineering, to drainage 
improvements, fl ood hazard mitigation, and industrial development 
improvement projects. These projects include the Florence Diversion 
Dam Road and the Hunt Highway Transfer Station, among others. 
This current experience enables our project staff to be knowledgeable 
of Florence and Pinal County design standards and practices.

RYDEN ARCHITECTS (Historic Preservation) provided historic building 
analysis and stabilization for the Silver King Hotel and Adobe 
House located on this very project site. In addition, the fi rm has 
provided historic preservation services for the Town of Florence  on the 
McFarland Archives Building, First Pinal County Courthouse, the 
Clarke House, as well as various other Florence Main Street Facade 
rehabilitation projects.

WRIGHT ENGINEERING (Electrial Engineering) provided electrical 
and lighting design for the Town of Florence’s Main Street 
Redevelopment Project. Design elements Included decorative street 
and pedestrian lighting, visitor kiosk power, landscape enhancement 
lighting, and monument lighting.

APPLIED ENGINEERING (Mechanical Engineering)  served as the 
mechanical engineer of record for the Pinal County Courthouse 
Restoration project which received the Governor’s Grand Award for 
Historic Preservation, Arizona Forward Environmental Excellence Merit 
Award, and the Engineering Record Government Project of the Year.

Browning-Miller 
Readiness Center DB

Florence Field 
Maintenance Shop CMAR

Silver King Hotel First Pinal County 
Courthouse

Clarke House Main Street Florence



6

After the bids are received, our 
team will review and analyze the 

quotations for completeness. The bids for 
each scope of work are tabulated on our 
Subcontractor Bid Tabulation Form that 
clearly compares scope and pricing for all 
of the sub bidders side by side to facilitate 
the decision making process.

Depending upon sub/vendor scope 
and complexity, we will conduct 

interviews with selected bidders to discuss 
the scope of work, the cost proposal 
completeness and analyze the bid fi gures.

After the interview, our team will 
make a recommendation of the 

subcontractors which we believe will 
provide the best overall value to the 
project considering each subcontractors 
qualifi cations and price, and make our fi nal 
recommendation for selection.

After fi nal team and Owner approval, 
we will prepare and execute 

subcontracts or purchase orders with the 
best valued subcontractor and suppliers.

2 Member Roles & Capabilities

  4 Subcontractor Selection Plan

We believe that the best way to achieve the 
balance between cost and quality is to partner 
with the best subcontractors for the project. 
We also understand that a large part of this 
project’s success will depend on the selection 
and management of our subcontractors and 
vendors. Accordingly, our subcontractors will 
be selected through a qualifi cations and pricing 
competition. Typically this process is based on 
completed drawings. However, for this project we 
may recommend that some major or specialized 
subcontractors be selected early in the design 
phase due to the project’s complexity and 
schedule. The input of these key subcontractors 
can be an invaluable aid in producing an effi cient 
and well-coordinated design. Also, the early 
selection of some key trades can expedite the 
project by facilitating the preparation of shop 
drawings and the early procurement of long lead 
items. These early-phase subcontractors can be 
selected based on their qualifi cations alone or 
in conjunction with an open book, guaranteed 
maximum cost of the work arrangement.

The process begins with identifying local 
contractors and suppliers who have 

an interest in the project and a capability to 
execute the work. Some of the qualifi cations 
the team will review include: safety record, 
fi nancial data, bond rate, current workload, 
manpower, team commitments, pending 
litigation, backlog, revenue, and cash fl ow. 

Our team will submit a listing of those 
subcontractors which we believe to be 

the best suited for the project. The focus of 
the list will be to receive 3 to 5 qualifi ed bids 
in each category of work. The process allows 
the Owner to proactively participate in the 
selection of sub bidders for the project. 

After approval of the list of subcontractors 
and vendors, we will issue bid documents 

including plans, specifi cations, project 
schedule, detailed bid instructions and scope 
of work to the subs/vendors for review and 
pricing. We will hold a pre-bid meeting for 
critical trades to discuss project specifi cs and 
highlight items that require special attention 
when preparing their bids. 

01 Assessment

Review and prequalify 
Subcontractors in 
Haydon Managed 
Database

02 Approval

Submit list of 
prequalifi ed 
Subcontractors to 
owner for approval

03 Documentation

Issue documents 
to prequalifi ed 
subcontractors
and vendors

04 Response

Respond to 
bidding questions 
and RFIs

05 Review

Haydon receives 
and analyzes 
bids for quality 
and accuracy

06 Bidders Meeting

Haydon conducts a 
pre-award meeting 
for selected bidders 
(optional)

07 Notifi cation

Haydon notifi es owners 
of recommended 
subcontractors
and vendors

08 Contracts

Subcontract or 
purchase orders 
are issued to 
subcontractors

  Eight Step Subcontractor Selection Process
The fl ow chart below illustrates our subcontractor selection process from solicitation to award of contract. 

1

2

4

3

5

6

7



7

3 Licensing

  1 Jurisdictions & Trade Categories

 Haydon Building Corp is legally qualifi ed to do business in the following trade categories:

 •  Non-residential building construction

 •  Heavy and civil engineering construction

Arizona Class B-01 #108085
General Commercial Contractor

Arizona Class A #108937
General Engineering Contractor

Our registration license numbers are:

Environmental Planning Group is
registered with the Arizona State Board

of Technical Registration
(#10983, expiring 9/30/2014)



8

4 Management Plan

  1 Team Organization

Cub Carter, Project Manager, will lead the efforts of our team 
from project inception as team leader, owner’s liaison, and 
primary point of contact. His management of the entire DB 
program will ensure the seamless integration of design,
pre-construction, and construction efforts.

Cub Carter

Construction Project Manager

Mike Park

Design Project Manager
Steve Lewis, PE

Civil Engineer (Ritoch-Powell)
Fritz Behrhorst, LEED AP

Pre-Construction Director
Pat Wauneka

Project Superintendent

Subcontractor  Trades

John Griffin, RLA

Registered Landscape
Architect (EPG)

Scott Wright, PE

Electrical Designer
(Wright)

Don Ryden, AIA

Historic Preservation
(Ryden Architects)

Greg Piraino, PE

Mechanical Designer
(Applied Engineering)

DESIGN PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONSTRUCTION



9

5 Key Issues

  1 Key Issues

The Town of Florence assumed ownership 
of the Silver King Hotel in 2006 and began 
to renovate the historical two-story structure, 
through a Heritage Fund Grant, in an effort 
to attract small businesses to downtown. 

The facility has 
been renamed 
the Silver King 
Marketplace. 
Ryden Architects 
performed 
the historical 
assessment for 
the property, 

stabilization plans for the 1-story adobe 
structure, and renovation plans for the 
two-story brick building. A grand reopening 
occurred in January 2009, with the Florence 
Fudge Company as the fi rst tenant. The 
Florence Fudge Company, a non-profi t 
extension of a local 
church congregation, 
has continued as 
the tenant in the fi rst 
fl oor’s southern suite. 
In 2013, the Town 
completed additional 
improvements to the 
remaining fi rst fl oor 
suite as a restaurant 
or retail space.

In June 2013, the Town Council authorized 
the purchase of the block bounded by Granite 
and Quartz Streets, and 6th and Ruggles 
Streets. Granite Street has been abandoned, 
uniting the Silver King Marketplace with the 
Ophelia Padilla parcel for the facility that will 
be named Padilla Park at Silver King Plaza. 
A conceptual design for the facility has been 
prepared to establish the initial vision for the 
development of the property into a public 
gathering space, which has been approved by 
the Town Council.

Site Sensitivity

There are over 140 historic buildings in 
downtown Florence, many of which are listed 
on the National Register of Historic Places. 
The Florence Townsite Historic District was 
listed in 1982, which is roughly bounded by 
3rd and Florence Streets, Butte and Central 
Avenues, and the Chase/Ruggles Irrigation 
Ditch. The fi rst Pinal County Courthouse, 
now known as the McFarland State Historic 
Park, abuts the property on the north side 
of Ruggles Street. Other historic structures 
surround 
the property 
on its other 
sides; along 
Main, 6th, 
and Quartz 
Streets.

Important to this project will be the sensitive 
development of the proposed facility in its 
historic context to the Marketplace and 
surrounding settings. The Haydon design/
build team includes noted historical architect 
Don Ryden, who was instrumental in the 
assessment and preservation of the existing 
structures. Mr. Ryden will be instrumental in 
furthering the details of the approved concept 
with a bent towards historical relevance and 
interpretation for the project, all the while 
integrating the current program for the project 

as a public 
gathering 
space. The 
Haydon team 
has reviewed 
the approved 
concept 
and we see 
opportunity 

to fi nalize the plaza design with adjustments 
to site features, such as walls and steps, that 
can better refl ect the historical site features, 
such as building foundations and perimeter 
walls. Some of these still remain on the Silver 
King and Padilla parcels individually.



10

5 Key Issues

Historic Preservation

One of the unique challenges of this project 
will be ensuring the repurposing of the 
historic adobe house into a public restroom, 
concession and storage facility is done in 
such a way that maintains the building’s 
historic integrity in a cost effective manner.

Our team’s 
historic 
architect, 
Don W. 
Ryden, will 
manage the 
design of the 
renovation for 

the Haydon team. Don’s vast experience with 
historic rehabilitation will ensure the design 
complies will all historic standards. Some 
of the steps the Haydon team will utilize to 
ensure the compliance of the Adobe House 
renovation include:

• Consult with the Florence Historic 
Preservation Offi ce and the State Historic 
Preservation Offi ce (SHPO) about project 
compliance with The Secretary of the 
Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation.

• Consult with the Florence Historic 
Preservation Commission and SHPO 
about appropriateness of House 
rehabilitation and park design within the 
overall historic theme of the Town.

• Recommend resolutions to confl icting 
historic preservation standards and 
International Building Code.

During the design phase, Fritz Behrhorst, 
Pre-Construction Director, will work with Don 
to recommend construction materials and 
methods that meet the intent of the historic 
rehabilitation standards in the most cost-
effective manner. Fritz was able to accomplish 
this on the Camp Navajo Building 1 Historic 
Renovation project (see right) where Haydon 
was able to fully renovate a historic structure 
on a limited budget and achieve LEED Silver 
certifi cation.

Grading & Stormwater

The combined parcels gently slope from Main 
and 6th Streets to the northwest, toward 
Quartz and Ruggles Streets. There is an 
approximate topographic fall of six feet from 
the southwest corner of the Marketplace 
to the intersection of Quartz and Ruggles 
Streets. Two to three feet of fall occur 
immediately adjacent to the Marketplace. The 
Florence Fudge Company suite’s service door 
is essentially at grade. The one-story adobe 

structure is 
approximately 
three feet below 
the southwest 
corner of the 
Marketplace. 
Additionally, 

the Marketplace’s rooftop partially drains to 
the west and onto the proposed plaza. The 
Haydon team will provide a plaza grading and 
drainage plan that directs stormwater away 
from structures and prevents stormwater 
from fl owing towards the one-story adobe 
structure. The Swaback concept indicates 
conceptual spot elevations that are not 
accurate in this regards.

To meet City ordinances, stormwater needs 
to be retained onsite for the 100-year, 1-hour 
storm event and drainage fl ow patterns 
must be maintained to protect surrounding 
properties and roadways. Currently all 

SPOTLIGHT: Camp Navajo Building 1 
Historic Renovation Design/Build

12,000 SF of 
interior and exterior 
renovations of 
the existing 1942 
Administration 
Building at the Camp 
Navajo Training Site. 

Building One is registered as a historical 
building. The project includes new HVAC 
energy effi cient system, roof renovation, 
new windows, fi re escape, new ceiling and 
fl oor tile, renovation of existing restrooms, 
new elevator, new fi re alarm, new sprinkler 
system, electrical system, landscaping, and 
parking. The facility is LEED Silver certifi ed.



11

existing drainage fl ows from the site cross 
from east to west and outfalls to the northwest 
corner. The proposed installation of a raised 
turf area across the middle of the site results 
in a barrier to drainage conveyance across the 
property and away from the existing buildings. 
Design must fi rst protect the existing adobe 
building (restroom) while providing positive 
conveyance of drainage to a location where 
retention ponds can be located. Several 
solutions exist to minimize drainage concerns 
for the site. Utilization of small depressions in 
landscape areas / hardscape voids between 
the buildings and the raised turf area will 
minimize the need to convey the drainage 
across the property. These areas would 
essentially retain themselves and allow 
water to be held in small isolated pockets. An 
additional benefi t of this is added watering 
of landscape vegetation in these areas. In 
certain instances, these pockets may be over-
excavated and replaced with cobble materials 
to provide additional storage (French Drain). 
Any stormwater not captured in these pocket 
areas would drain across and along the 
landscape areas on the north side of the 
park. These landscape areas can also be 
designed to hold smaller amounts of drainage. 
They would be designed to cascade (fi ll and 
overfl ow) from east to west. The main turf 
area and any resulting fl ows from the north 
landscape areas to drain to the northwest 
corner of the site to a shallow retention basin 
to contain the remaining runoff.

Lighting

The Town in the 
past few years 
installed lighting 
on Main Street 
that is refl ective of 
early 20th century 
historical lighting. 
Wright Engineering 
was involved with 
this work and is on 
the Haydon team. 
The approved 
concept proposes 
the use of low-

voltage up- and down-lighting throughout the 
plaza and landscape. We would like to review 
the low-voltage lighting selection and propose 
options for the following considerations:

• Consider using the Main Street pole-
mounted standard voltage lighting fi xture. 
This will better integrate the plaza and 
park and Main Street visually to visitors 
and residents.

• Ground mounted lighting will be subject to 
vandalism and frequent repair.

• Down-lighting in trees is impractical until 
they are at least 20-30 feet tall. Mounting 
branches must be at least 3+ inches 
in diameter to support the fi xture and 
mounting attachments. Unless very large 
box trees are used, installation of down-

lighting will have to occur several years 
later. In the meantime, the plaza and park 
will only be lit by up-lighting, which can 
be a liability concern for having ambient 
lighted walking surfaces. Additionally, 
electrical wiring is exposed on the trunks 
and is subject to vandalism.

• There are approximately 180 low-voltage 
lights proposed, which will require 
numerous low-voltage transformers 
throughout the plaza and park, 
compounding maintenance needs. 
Functional and security lighting of the 
plaza and park can be accomplished 
with perhaps 20 or even fewer standard 
voltage pole-mounted fi xtures. Although 
more expensive individually than low-
voltage fi xtures, overall will be less. 
Relamping procedures, vandalism, and 
maintenance will be far less as well.

Native Plants

During our visits to the project site, we noted 
there are native mesquites on the Padilla 
Parcel that are protected by the Arizona 
Native Plants Law. The Haydon team will 
perform a native plant inventory and assess 
these trees for reuse back into the project. 
Trees that are evaluated as salvageable 
will be considered for protection in place or 
will be salvaged and placed into an on-site 
nursery during construction, and reinstalled in 
sequence with other landscape work.

5 Key Issues



12

Integration to Downtown Improvements

The 
approved 
concept 
proposes 
the use of 
concrete or 
unit pavers 
throughout 
the plaza. 

In addition to the concrete pavers, consider 
repeating the use of the textured and colored 
cast-in-place concrete paving that is being 
installed on Main Street. This will integrate 
the plaza and park into the downtown 
redevelopment esthetic. The project will 
be better perceived as being part of the 
downtown improvements.

Stretching the Budget to
Obtain the Full Program

One of the major challenges during the pre-
construction stages of this project will be 
balancing the use of the available funding 
among the important priorities for the park 
including the restroom building, landscaping, 
and splash pad. Some of the aspects that 
must be considered include: 

• Aesthetic features

• Types of landscaping

• Sustainability features

• Mechanical and electrical system 
approach

• Perimeter fencing

• Signage

• Artwork & monumentation

Each of these features can have a signifi cant 
impact on the park’s cost which must be 
weighed when considering the entire budget. 
It is our job as your Design/Builder to work in 
concert with the Town of Florence, property 
owners, and the design team to fi nd the 
right balance for this project. The process 
will start from the program. Fritz Behrhorst 
(Pre-Construction Director) will prepare a 
detailed Parametric Estimate that is based 
on the program for the park with input from 
the design team on the likely approach to the 
various systems. We will draw upon recent 
experience with municipal parks. This early 
phase estimate will serve as a test fi t of the 
program and the budget and will aid the team 
in evaluating the critical balancing act that the 
project team must perform to maximize the 
program, functionality, and aesthetics of the 
park. We will employ the estimating and cost 
control techniques described in the following 
section to assure that as the design fi nalizes, 
all decisions are made based on accurate cost 
information and with the best realization of the 
program in mind.

Construction Staging,
Access & Safety of Patrons

The location of Padilla Park directly adjacent 
to the Silver King Marketplace and adobe 
house will present several challenges during 
construction including:

• Public safety and access to retail areas 
Access of manpower and materials

• Minimizing disruption of the Silver King 
Marketplace tenants

• Trash removal

• Parking, for both construction and patrons 

• Staging for construction

Not the least of 
these challenges 
is ensuring the 
safety of the 
tenants and 
community 
members that 
patronize Silver 

King Marketplace. The work of this project will 
occur in full view. This can be a fascinating 
and exciting experience for the public, but 
it can also prove dangerous if someone 
wanders on to the site. It will be our role 
during planning and construction to execute 
this project in such a way that the community 
members utilizing Silver King Marketplace can 
observe its progress from a safe distance. It is 
also our duty to be particularly vigilant to the 

5 Key Issues



13

potential of a curious public and kids entering 
the worksite. Our work plan will be sensitive to 
these issues and address them in a way that 
allows the community to follow the work and 
but also ensure their safety.

In order to assure a safe and orderly work-
fl ow with the minimum of disruptions, our team 
will employ the following:

• Formal traffi c and site access plan 

• Project planning with Haydon’s corporate 
Safety Director

• Strictly regulated site staging

• Scheduled deliveries and trash pickup

• Defi ned parking plan for workers

Using these techniques will result in the 
construction of the project with no disruption 
to the operations of the Silver King 
Marketplace tenants.

Utility Coordination

The planned construction of Padilla 
Park will require design and construction 
coordination of new infrastructure with many 
utility companies as well as with existing 
facilities. To provide the most effi cient utility 
coordination we will:

• Thoroughly examine as-built and utility 
location plans as a baseline for the 
locating process.

• Walk the site and coordinate closely with 
facilities managers to fi rm up the location 
of underground services.

• Perform investigations utilizing our in-
house “soft dig” pothole technology to 
locate underground utilities.

• Coordinate the location of new 
underground utilities with the existing to 
minimize confl icts and prevent
surprises in the fi eld.

As a part of the process we will involve Town 
engineering personnel in our pre-construction 
meetings from the start and conduct monthly 
utility coordination meetings throughout 
construction to discuss present and future 
work phases - this helps to keep everyone on 
task and focused on the project goals. 

Haydon’s unique structure as both a 
building and heavy civil contractor allows 
us to utilize our in-house soft dig potholing 
technology (which includes a GPS system 
that interfaces directly with the Design 
Engineer’s CAD software) to safely identify 
any utility confl icts prior to construction without 
risking disturbance. Careful investigation 
coupled with close coordination will ensure 
that existing and new utility services are 
accommodated.

5 Key Issues

Project planning with Haydon s corporate 
Safety Director

• Strictly regulated site staging

• Scheduled deliveries and trash pickup

• Defi ned parking plan for workers

Using these techniques will result in the 
construction of the project with no disruption 
to ttthehe ooopepeperaratitiononss ofof tthehe SSililvever rrr KiKingngg 
MMaMaMaMaaMaaMaMaM rrkrkrkrkkrrkrkkkeeteteteeteete plplplplplpp acacacaccccaccce e tetenanantnttttts.ssssssssssss

• Walk the site and coordinate closely with
facilities managers to fi rm up the location 
of underground services.

• Perform investigations utilizing our in-
house “soft dig” pothole technology to 
locate underground utilities.

• Coordinate the location of new 
unundedergrgrorounundd ututtilili itittieieess wiwiw thth tthehe eexixiststininggg totoo 
miniimizeze cconnnnnnonononflflfl flflflfl iciciciciictststss aaaaaaaaandndndndnddndnd pppppppppprerererrereererererevvevvvvvevv ntntnt
sususususuususurprprprprprpprprpppppriririrriiririiririr seseseseseeeseeesesessssssssss ss ininininininininn tttttttttheheheheheeehehe fifififififififieeeldldldddddd...

technology (which includes a GPS system
that interfaces directly with the Design 
Engineer’s CAD software) to safely identify
any utility confl icts prior to construction without
risking disturbance. Careful investigation 
coupled with close coordination will ensure 
that existing and new utility services are 
accommodated.



14

6 Timeline



15

7 Experience / References

Description: 80-acre park includes Heritage Court (pictured above), 
community garden, large and small group ramadas, picnic area, 
shade structures, extensive landscaping, splash pad, themed play 
area, athletic facilities, urban fi shing lake, dog park, parking, roadway 
improvements, and infrastructure.

Project Teams: Haydon, EPG, Ritoch-Powell

Project Owner: City of Peoria

Construction Cost: $19.0M Completed on Budget

Construction Dates: 06/2012 - 09/2013 Completed On Schedule

Reference: Ed Striffl er, City of Peoria Design & Construction Manager 
(623) 773-7721

Description: 110-acre park includes themed play area, amphitheater, 
large and small group ramadas, picnic area, shade structures, 
extensive landscape, 8 multi-use fi elds (4 lighted), 4 lighted softball/
baseball fi elds, 5-acre urban fi shing lake, play courts, skate park, dog 
park, parking lots, and infrastructure.

Project Teams: Haydon, Wright

Project Owner: City of Maricopa

Construction Cost: $21.4M Currently on Budget

Construction Dates: 11/2012 - 03/2014 Currently on Schedule

Reference: Adam Brill, Abacus Project Manager (623) 340-5241

  Copper Sky Park DB     Maricopa, AZ

  1 Select Project Experience

  Pioneer Community Park DB     Peoria, AZ



16

  Rio Vista Park Phase II DB     Peoria, AZ

7 Experience / References

Description: Award-winning 22-acre district park that includes lighted 
soccer fi elds, lighted baseball fi elds, playground structures, memorial 
garden, maintenance building, concession/restroom building, lighted 
parking lots, automatic irrigation system, perimeter security fencing, 
and extensive landscaping.

Project Teams: Haydon, Ritoch-Powell

Project Owner: City of Peoria

Construction Cost: $8.0M Completed on Budget

Construction Dates: 10/2005 - 11/2006 Completed On Schedule

Reference:  Ed Striffl er, City of Peoria Design & Construction 
Manager (623) 773-7721 

Description: This project included multi-use lighted fi elds for tee-ball, 
football, or soccer, electrical systems, additional parking, and irrigation. 
The 26-acre Playtopia is a unique playground facility. The Farm Barn 
area can be used for corporate picnics and other gatherings. Small 
ramadas provide shade. Sidewalks meander throughout the park with 
a farm tractor tire track motif leading to the playground and conference 
areas.

Project Teams: Haydon

Project Owner: City of Chandler

Construction Cost: $6.0M Completed on Budget

Construction Dates: 07/2006 - 03/2007 Completed On Schedule

Reference: Joe Salvatore, Architekton Principal (480) 894-4637

  Tumbleweed Park CMAR     Chandler, AZ



17

7 Experience / References

Description: 1/4-acre multi-functional urban plaza will include 
hardscape features complementing the MAC design elements, 
event space, light rail and university connectivity, drainage retention, 
and extensive landscaping. EPG was hired as the designer 
responsible to evaluate the existing site conditions and prepare 
a variety of design concepts.

Project Team: EPG

Project Owner: City of Mesa

Construction Cost: $834,500 estimated

Construction Dates: Start Spring 2014

Reference: Bob Draper, PE, City of Mesa Supervising Engineer
(480) 644-3822

Additional Haydon & EPG Experience Together

    Foothills Community Park Pre-Construction 
Ph II CMAR, Goodyear, AZ

12-acre municipal park
expansion and aquatics
center. $5.6M,
Project on hold

    Western Canal 
Multi-Use Path 
CMAR, Tempe, AZ

Multi-use pedestrian trail 
featuring 24 distinctive 
nodes. $9.5M,
Completed 01/2010

  Mesa Arts Center at Benedictine University   Mesa, AZ



18

7 Experience / References

  2 Summary of Prime Firm Experience

Select Park & Town Center Experience:
•  Pioneer Community Park DB, Peoria, AZ
•  Copper Sky Park DB, Maricopa, AZ
•  Rio Vista Park Phase II DB, Peoria, AZ
•  Tumbleweed Park CMAR, Chandler, AZ
•  Pecos Park CMAR, Phoenix, AZ
•  Chuparosa Park Phase II DB, Chandler, AZ
•  Morenci Town Center CMAR, Morenci, AZ
•  ASU Artisan Court CMAR, Tempe, AZ
•  Foothills Community Park Pre-Construction, Goodyear, AZ
•  Western Canal Multi-Use Path CMAR, Tempe, AZ

•  Browning-Miller Readiness Center
•  Florence Field Maintenance Shop

Select Park & Town Center Experience:
•  Pioneer Community Park DB, Peoria, AZ
•  ASU West Community Park, Phoenix, AZ
•  Nozomi Park, Chandler, AZ
•  Paseo Vista Recreation Area, Chandler, AZ
•  Ryan Park, Chandler, AZ
•  Foothills Community Park, Goodyear, AZ
•  Hayes Park, Peoria, AZ
•  Daley Park, Tempe, AZ
•  Western Canal Multi-Use Path, Tempe, AZ
•  Maricopa Regional Trail Segments, Maricopa County
•  San Tan Mountains Regional Park Master Plan, Maricopa Cty
•  Gilbert Powerline Trail, Gilbert, AZ
•  Five Parks Master Plan, Gilbert, AZ
•  Chandler Heights Park Master Plan, Gilbert, AZ
•  East Park Master Plan, Gilbert, AZ
•  San Marquis Park Master Plan, Gilbert, AZ
•  Sossaman Cloud Park Master Plan, Gilbert, AZ
•  West Park Master Plan, Gilbert, AZ

   Haydon Building Corp    Environmental Planning Group

   Town of Florence Experience

Team member resumes have been
provided in the Appendix.

  3 Claims & Suits

Within the last 5 years, Haydon has never failed to complete any work awarded to it. There are no judgments, claims, arbitration proceedings 
or suite pending or outstanding against our organization or offi cers. We have not fi led any lawsuits or requested arbitration with regard 
to construction contracts within the last 5 years. Within the last 5 years no offi cer or principal has been an offi cer or principal of another 
organization when it failed to complete a contract.



19

8 Approach / Uniqueness

 1 Why Select the Haydon DB Team

What makes Haydon unique is our 
unparalleled commitment to the Partnering 
Process, ensuring that all team members 
are working toward a common goal. DB is 
our preferred construction delivery method 
because it allows us to work collaboratively 
during pre-construction with project owners, 
design teams, and consultants. We are the 
Valley leader in the DB construction method.

Haydon has successfully completed over 
125 DB and Alternative Delivery projects—a 
testament of our clients’ satisfaction with our 
pre-construction and construction services. 
Our extensive experience uniquely qualifi es 
us to identify and address critical issues and 
incorporate lessons learned from previous 
projects. Throughout our DB experience, we 
have never failed to reach a GMP and have 
never exceeded a GMP. We understand the 
importance of the pre-construction phase 
and our responsibility to manage this process 
in a way that provides a cohesive team 
atmosphere between Haydon, the owner, and 
the designer.

 2 Overall Approach & Methodology

Our role as your Design/Builder will be to 
provide proactive and dependable support to 
the team to ensure decisions are made based 
on accurate and timely information. Foremost 
throughout the entire process is the open and 
honest exchange of information. We inform 
each team member of project status and to 
allow everyone to stay involved in all aspects 
of the process. Through careful planning 
and scheduling and proactive management 
techniques, Haydon guides every aspect 
of the project from pre-construction site 
investigation to fi nal punch list. Because 
we are fully committed to our project 
management system we can assure your 
project will be well planned and successful. 
Our team structure will remain the same 
from pre-construction through construction 
so that the transition between phases will 
be seamless.

The process of planning and constructing 
Padilla Park will be the culmination of the 
comprehensive and integrated design, pre-
construction, and construction services 

provided by the Haydon DB team. Our 
approach is designed to discover issues 
before they become problems and to 
draw upon the experience of our team in 
developing options and deriving solutions 
and options. Our extensive experience has 
allowed us to refi ne the Haydon Method 
into a proactive collaboration between the 
owner, designer and builder. Our service is 
based on this cornerstone principle: Work 
collaboratively with the owner and designer 
during pre-construction to provide the client 
with a facility that will meet their functional 
and budgetary requirements without 
compromising the team’s vision. Haydon’s 
steadfast adherence to this principle is the 
reason we have been fortunate to work with 
so many clients and outstanding design fi rms 
to deliver projects that combine innovative 
design with functional value. Through our 
extensive DB experience, Haydon has 
developed a signature process for managing 
DB projects. The Haydon approach to 
constructing your project is summarized by 
the following steps:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8Team
Building

Identify
Issues

Budget &
Cost

Control

Schedule
Management

Const.
Review

& Coord.

Establish
GMP Construction Project

Closeout



20

8 Approach / Uniqueness

The Haydon Design/Build Process: 
Step 1 - Team Building

At the outset of the project, it is important 
for all of the people that are involved in the 
project to get to know one another and learn 
each other’s’ priorities. Each person and 
organization involved in the project will bring 
a different perspective and set of goals to 
the process. The goal of team building is 
for each member to come to recognize the 
other individuals’ perspective and goals, to 
understand their thought process and respect 
their opinion. Paramount in the team building 
phase is to appreciate the contribution that 
each team member makes to the project and 
to respect their input. From that basis of mutual 
respect and understanding, the team can 
embark on the process of working together to 
solve the many issues that are inherent in the 
design and construction process. 

Proven Success and Experience in the 
Design/Build Process & Partnering:

Haydon’s commitment to great design, 
innovative construction and technology, 
commitment to a collaborative project 
approach, and consistent excellence in 
craftsmanship are all demonstrative of our 
company’s culture. These goals cannot be 
achieved without teamwork and dedication 
to the project owner, design professionals, 
consultants, and subcontractors. The best 
testaments are in the examination of the 

consistently excellent facilities that we have 
built, in our high rate of repeat business with 
our clients, and in the great relationships 
that we share with our design partners.
In fact, Haydon’s dedication to creating a
win-win-win partnering experience on projects 
has resulted in the Rio Vista Park Phase II DB 
project being awarded two national awards for 
Project Management. 

The Haydon Design/Build Process: 
Step 2 - Issue Identifi cation

Our approach is designed to discover issues 
before they become problems. 

Please see Section 5 “Key Issues” (pages 9 - 
13) of our proposal which outlines the Haydon 
DB team’s demonstrated knowledge of the site 
and local conditions.

The Haydon Design/Build Process: 
Step 3 - Budgeting & Cost Control

Project Cost Controls & Project Cost 
Reporting Systems:

The control of the project budget is integral to 
developing an outstanding project. We view 
budget control as a critical part of the entire 
design and construction process. Our pre-
construction team will work collaboratively 
with the Town of Florence staff and design 
team in the important give-and-take process 
of budget control during the design phase. 
We understand that throughout design 
development, decisions are dependent on the 
quality of information available to the team. 
The best value of a particular approach is 
brought about through a balance of using 

Baseline Budget
Worksheet

Developed with Owner
& Design Team

$ Baseline Budget

Budget Revision
Worksheet

Scope / Units Estimate New
EstimateScope / Units Prev.

Estimate

$ Updated Budget

Best Value
Analysis

AcceptedOption Budget
Impact

$ Updated Budget

GMP
GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE

Includes:
• In-house estimates
• Consultant & trade estimates

Based on updated 
design information
Includes previous 
estimate

Benefit:
• Provides real-time budget

snapshot throughout design

Updated weekly
Roadmap of project 
development

Benefit:
• Educated decision-making

based on value

Well-defined scope
Accurate cost

Benefit:
• Minimizes owner risk

$



21

space, using allotted time, achieving the 
lowest construction cost, realizing a low life 
cycle cost and creating the desired aesthetic 
effect. Our contribution to the process is to 
suggest approaches to systems and solutions 
to challenges, to provide timely and accurate 
information, and to evaluate all the possibilities 
in terms of cost and time benefi ts.

Haydon will develop and implement a 
completely open book estimating and cost 
control system for your project. Each member 
of the team will have complete access to all 
of this information during the project. During 
pre-construction, Haydon’s project manager 
and estimators will work closely with the 
Town of Florence and EPG to establish a 
qualifi ed Baseline Budget. The in-house 
estimates we develop will contain detailed 
information broken down by scope to include 
units of labor, materials, equipment and other 
associated costs. Similarly, all consultant 
and trade estimates are accompanied by a 
full detail of the estimate. Each subsequent 
estimate, based upon more current design 
information, will be revised and tracked 
against the Baseline Budget and the last 
budget revision. Revised estimates are 
summarized in the same format as the 
Baseline Budget and can be easily compared 
side by side with each previous estimate. 
This straightforward process allows the 
project team to visualize and understand 

the signifi cance of a system or material 
design change and its direct cost impact 
to the project budget. Haydon’s system is 
easily understood and completely open to 
the entire team. There are no surprises and 
no secrets in Haydon’s pre-construction cost 
control system.

During the fast moving design process, 
it often not enough to simply update the 
estimate periodically to maintain good control. 
For that reason, Haydon will implement its 
dynamic Best Value Analysis (BVA) tracking 
process. With the baseline estimate as the 
starting point, each decision or option that 
can affect the budget is entered into the BVA 
tracking chart. The potential impact on the 
budget is included along with a description. 
Each decision that is implemented is entered 
into the “accepted” column of the spread 
sheet. All of the accepted cost impacts 
are totaled and that total is applied to the 
latest comprehensive estimate budget. This 
document is updated weekly as the design 
progresses. Using this process, all major 
decisions and their associated cost are 
recorded and tracked, and their impact on 
the budget is refl ected as the decisions are 
made. It provides a road map for the project 
development as well as an accurate picture of 
exactly where the budget sets at any stage of 
the design.

Once construction commences, Haydon 
will use Timberline software to track each 
item on the established budget. As outlined, 
the breakdown of costs aligns with detailed 
estimates, which parallel the procurement 
process used to track and audit the budget. 
For progress billings, a complete recap of job 
costs and subcontractor billings backed up by 
invoices will be provided each month. Prior to 
payment, each supplier and subcontractor will 
be required to submit unconditional progress 
waivers, which match the previous month’s 
billing. In this manner, you are assured 
of current cost and that all trade partners 
and vendors are being paid. Finally, upon 
completion, all commitment and payment 
records are available for review.

The Haydon Design/Build Process: 
Step 4 - Scheduling

The DB process enables the project team to 
be creative in project planning, developing the 
schedule, establishing construction phasing, 
and identifying areas where construction can 
begin early. The Haydon Team will utilize 
Primavera P6 to guide and monitor the 
project. Through the collaborative efforts of 
all team members, we will produce a master 
schedule encompassing programming, 
design, construction, and completion of the 
project. Inherent in this schedule will be the 
identifi cation of long lead times for materials 
or equipment.

8 Approach / Uniqueness



22

Through the research of this project’s 
work items, we will develop a procurement 
schedule that is integrated into the overall 
project schedule and is also tracked to 
assure timely delivery of key equipment 
and materials. During the design phase, our 
Project Manager will work together with the 
rest of the Haydon Team and subcontractors 
to develop a cost-loaded schedule in the form 
of a Critical Path Method (CPM) schedule, 
which will be updated weekly. This will 
include complete analysis of project phasing, 
utility coordination, and sequence planning 
for trades to provide maximum quality 
without rework. 

As the project moves into the construction 
phase, our Project Manager will provide 
3-week Look-Ahead Schedules weekly 
for the team, work crews, and any 
subcontractors. Haydon also holds pre-
activity construction meetings with the team 
and Haydon’s supervisors or subcontractors 
prior to the start of a new type of work. We 
discuss the plans, specifi cations, details, 
survey needs, testing, safety issues, and 
schedule at these pre-activity meetings. 
These meetings ensure everyone is clear 
on their responsibilities and expectations 
and mitigates costly re-work and delays to 
the project.

The Haydon Design/Build Process: 
Step 5 - Constructabililty Review & 
Plan Coordination

At Haydon, we feel that true collaboration 
requires total participation by all team 
members during every phase of the project. 
During the design phase, Haydon actively 
participates by providing the following:

•  Options Analysis, Value Engineering 
Input, Life Cycle Analysis & Suggesting 
Alternate Materials: Haydon views 
these processes as an integral part of the 
entire design and construction process. 
We understand that throughout design 
development, decisions are dependent on the 
quality of information available to the team. 
Our role in value engineering and analysis 
is to add several dimensions of information 
quality to the decision making process.

•  Design Review & Constructability 
Analysis: One of our jobs is to review the 
development of the project as it proceeds 
from concept to construction documents. The 
goal of this review process is two-fold; to aid 
in the process of producing a complete and 
fully coordinated set of contract documents 
and to provide guidance as to constructability 
of the project.

•  Document Quality Control: Documents are 
reviewed at each phase of the design and 
prior to bidding, checked for coordination of 

items between disciplines and constructability 
of the systems the designer has detailed. 
During construction, the Haydon team will 
implement and facilitate our Quality Control 
Management Plan for the project. 

The Haydon Design/Build Process: 
Step 6 - The Guaranteed Maximum 
Price (GMP)

The GMP is the sum of estimates, sub bids, 
fees, contingencies and other costs and is the 
maximum amount the owner will pay for the 
work as defi ned. There are three milestones 
for the establishment of a GMP: First, the 
project scope and design must be well enough 
developed and articulated that all parties 
are assured that the requirements of the job 
are fully understood; second, there must be 
confi dence that an accurate cost has been 
assigned to all of the divisions work as defi ned; 
fi nally, the GMP must be at or under the 
budget for construction. 

The Haydon Design/Build Process: 
Step 7 - Construction

The extensive effort that goes into the pre-
construction steps of the project is expended 
to prepare the team for the smoothest possible 
transition into the construction phase. The 
work that we do will assure that the members 
are working as a team, the issues are 
identifi ed and worked out, and that the plans, 
budgets and schedule are set and ready to 

8 Approach / Uniqueness



23

go to construction. We will handle each of the 
construction issues identifi ed previously and 
those additional challenges developed during 
the pre-construction phase, as outlined. In the 
construction phase, Haydon will implement its 
time proven procedures for constructing the 
project. 

Included in our construction phase 
services are:

•  Team management and coordination

•  Communications management

•  Plan coordination

•  Safety program management

•   Subcontracting and subcontractor 
management

•  Quality assurance and control

•  Regular project meetings

•  Scheduling

•   Cost controls and change order 
management

•  Submittal process management

•  Field management and coordination

•  Invoicing

Haydon’s seasoned and proven construction 
team, supported by a professional staff, guided 
by experience management and based on 
effective management systems will guarantee 
a successful construction phase of this project.

Quality Assurance:

An important aspect of our construction service 
is Quality Control. At each step of your project, 
our team will establish a well-defi ned set of 
objectives to meet. Clear goals are recognized 
by virtue of the extensive coordination, 
budgeting, scheduling, implementation, and 
quality assurance processes that Haydon 
employs. As the project progresses, the quality 
of our service will be measured against those 
objectives. During the construction process, 
our Project Superintendent will be responsible 
for all on-site quality. He will assure the work 
in place is continuously inspected and verifi ed 
against the standard of quality established by 
the project team.

Safety:

Haydon strives for the highest of safety 
standards within our organization. It is the 
result of careful attention to all company 
operations by those who are directly and 
indirectly involved. Employees at all levels 
must work diligently to execute the company’s 
policies of maintaining safety and occupational 
health. Tom Sullivan, our Corporate Safety 
Director, whose sole purpose is to ensure 
Haydon operates at the highest level of safety 
at all times. He will be involved during the 
design phase to assist in the safety layout 
of walkways for pedestrian traffi c and safe 
access through construction work zones.

Our Safety Program has been developed to 
assure compliance with all Federal, State and 
local regulations with particular emphasis on 
the Occupational Health Act of 1970 (OSHA), 
and the OSHA requirements that apply to our 
construction operations. Haydon maintains 
an excellent E-MOD factor of 0.64 which is an 
extremely low rate in the construction industry.

The Haydon Design/Build Process: 
Step 8 - Project Close-Out

The fi nal marker of an exceptional construction 
manager is the success at close-out and 
the follow-up processes that are carried out. 
Haydon will prepare a punch list of all items 
required for close-out of the project. Each item 
is collected and recorded prior to fi nal payment 
of any subcontractor or supplier. Upon notice 
of substantial completion, Haydon will jointly 
inspect the facilities with Town of Florence 
personnel to verify construction quality has 
been met. Haydon takes pride in its ability 
to work effi ciently through the fi nal punch list 
items to successfully deliver a project.

8 Approach / Uniqueness

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•



24

9 Scope of Work

  1 Conceptual Design Finalization

Review of the Conceptual Design Package

The design team and contractor will review 
the concept and supporting components that 
has been prepared to date. Prepare a list 
of options to improve upon the design for 
maintenance, cost, and performance issues 
that are in the concept.

Site Meeting

Organize and facilitate a site meeting with the 
contractor, design team, and staff. Review the 
options from above and site constraints that 
the design team has prepared in advance. 
Discuss the options on-site and discuss 
resolving the constraints.

Understanding of the scope of work

Establish a mutual understanding among all of 
the team members and confi rm the program 
for the plaza and park. Fine tune the program 
to clearly defi ne the details with the Town. 
This will inform all parties of the fi nal program 
and will enable the team to identify critical 
elements that must be coordinated to ensure 
successful completion of the project’s design

Meetings with complete project team, 
including APS and others as applicable

Coordinate meeting times, place, occurrence, 
and list of attendees. Prepare agendas and 
distribute in advance. Attend an initial project 

management meeting with staff. Discuss 
agenda items and document discussions 
and decisions. Meet with utility agencies and 
others as applicable to assist in their separate 
design of utility services to the site.

Overview of historic preservation factors

Design rehabilitation plans to adapt the 
historic adobe house as public restroom, 
concession and storage facility. Consult about 
project compliance with The Secretary of 
the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation to 
assure that the current plaza and park design 
complements with, and defer to historic 
buildings and setting. Consult with Florence 
Historic Preservation Commission and SHPO 
about appropriateness of adobe house rehab 
and park design. Recommend resolutions to 
confl icting historic preservation standards and 
International Building Code.

Finalization of plant palette and plants to 
be donated by local nursery

Meet with the donor nursery. Review future 
stock availability for timing of the plant 
installation. Prepare photo board of general 
plant palette for discussions with staff. With 
input from staff, fi nalize the plant palette and 
discuss with donor nursery for material to be 
donated.

Review of options for
on-site and off-site parking

In conjunction with the review of the 
conceptual design package, discuss with 
staff the program for parking, including any 
requirements per the Town Zoning Code. 
Meet with Town planning and development 
staff for allowable options. Adjust design for 
any on-site parking requirements that are 
different than the conceptual design.

Review of ADA compliance issues

Analyze existing constraints to accessibility, 
such as ADA-compliant designs for restroom 
and site facilities of plaza and park. Discuss 
with staff options for meeting the requirements 
of ADAAG.

Review and selection of possible 
addendums, options, and alternates

Prepare design suggestions, material 
selections, and product options to improve 
the maintenance, cost, and performance 
requirements of the public facility. Present to 
staff options to optimize the conceptual design 
to meet the Town’s expectations.

Project budgeting and prioritization

Haydon will prepare an initial GMP for the 
project based on the existing conceptual 
design. Options and alternates will be 
assessed for their project cost savings. 
Present the initial GMP to the staff for review 
and approval.



25

Project scheduling

Haydon will prepare an initial project 
schedule, which will identify major tasks of the 
project and their interdependence. Consider 
alternate design tasks that can shorten the 
overall design phase of the project in order 
to expedite the start of construction. These 
can include alternate design phases, such 
as 30%, 80%, and 100%. Present the initial 
schedule to the staff for review and approval.

Final pre-construction design approval

Based on input received throughout the 
Concept Design Finalization task, revise 
the conceptual design to integrate those 
improvements for the project. Coordinate with 
Haydon for assessment that the design is 
consistent with the approved project budget.

  2 Construction Documents

Construction document submittals

Based on the pre-construction design 
approval, the design team will prepare 
construction documents for the project. 
Typical review stages include 30%, 60%, 
90%, and 100%. However, based on the 
approved project schedule, the submittal 
phases maybe modifi ed in order to expedite 
the construction start as discussed above.

Client reviews, comments,
and review meetings

The staff will be provided with printed and 
electronic submittals as appropriate. All 
submittal phases will include construction 
plans at their appropriate phase of completion. 
Outline specifi cations will be presented at 
the 60% phase. Full specifi cations will be 
presented at the 90% and 100% phases. 
Additionally, the staff and other reviewers will 
be given a comment resolution spreadsheet to 
input their comments at each submittal phase. 
After staff review, Haydon and the design 
team will review comments and provide 
responses in the spreadsheet. A review 
meeting will be coordinated at the end of each 
review period to discuss and continue or close 
comments prior to proceeding with the next 
design phase.

Final construction document submittals

The 100% construction document submittal 
will be submitted to staff for fi nal approval of 
design. This submittal will be a sealed set and 
will also be submitted to the Town Community 
Development Department for the fi rst permit 
review. Following a fi nal staff review, comment 
resolution, review meeting, and Community 
Development review comments the plans will 
be revised for fi nal submittals.

Cost estimates

Haydon will develop and implement a 
completely open book estimating and cost 
control system for your project. Each member 

of the team will have complete access to all of 
this information during the project. 

Construction schedule reaffi rmed

Haydon will update the project schedule 
based on the anticipated permit approval and 
approval of the GMP.

Final construction document approval by 
Town of Florence

With Community Development comments 
addressed and plans revised as discussed 
above, the project plans and specifi cations will 
be submitted for fi nal permit review. Following 
approval by the Community Development 
Department, Haydon will collect the approved 
plans and pay applicable permit fees.

  3 Permitting

Revisions requested by client
As is typical with most projects, client 
revisions to designs occur frequently based 
on numerous factors, such as delayed 
community input, adjustments to budget, etc. 
The design team will integrate revisions into 
the design plan to the extent possible and 
commensurate with the phase of the design. 
As the design progresses, and in order to 
maintain schedule and costs, revisions must 
be more insignifi cant to the overall design 
intent and its phase of coordination and 
completion.

9 Scope of Work



26

Coordination and submissions to SHPO, 
Pinal County Health Department and 
others as applicable

Having prepared the initial assessment, 
stabilization, and rehabilitation plans for the 
site’s historic structures, Ryden Architects will 
coordinate and prepare essential submittals 
to SHPO for review and concurrence of 
the project. Additionally, Ryden Architects 
will make the necessary submittals to the 
Pinal County Health Department for the 
concessions facility.

Submission to Town of Florence
for permit review

As discussed above, the fi rst plan review will 
be submitted to the Community Development 
Department in concert with the 100% 
submittal to staff. Final staff comments 
and Community Development Department 
fi rst review comments will be addressed 
simultaneously to fi nalize the design. The 
second plan submittal will result in approval of 
plans and permits ready for construction.

  4 Pre-Construction

Prior to the construction phase, we will 
coordinate a Construction Partnering Kick-Off 
Meeting to introduce all the players and start 
laying the foundation for a successful win-win-
win relationship. The partnering meetings will 
include: 

• Town Department Representatives

• Town Project Manager

• User Group Representatives

• Engineering Team

• Swaback & Wood/Patel

• Haydon DB Team

• Key Subcontractors

• Utility Representatives

• Silver King Tenants As Needed

• Others As Necessary or Requested

These meetings create a platform for success 
for the involved agencies and individuals. 
The initial partnering meeting will produce 
a document outlining prioritized goals and 
responsibilities, and will act as the jumping-off 
place for the team.

During the pre-construction phase, Haydon 
actively participates by providing the following:

• Options Analysis, Value Engineering Input, 
Life Cycle Analysis & Suggesting Alternate 
Materials:

• Design Review & Constructability Analysis

• Document Quality Control

  5 Construction

The Haydon Team will utilize Primavera P6 
to guide and monitor the project. Through 
the research of this project’s work items, we 

will develop a procurement schedule that is 
integrated into the overall project schedule 
and is also tracked to assure timely delivery 
of key equipment and materials. During the 
design phase, our Project Manager will work 
together with the rest of the Haydon team 
and subcontractors to develop a cost-loaded 
schedule in the form of a Critical Path Method 
(CPM) schedule, which will be updated 
weekly. This will include complete analysis 
of project phasing, utility coordination, and 
sequence planning for trades to provide 
maximum quality without rework. As the 
project moves into the construction phase, our 
Project Manager will provide 3-week Look-
Ahead Schedules weekly for the team, work 
crews, and any subcontractors. 

Haydon utilizes Submittal Exchange 
software for all in offi ce and jobsite 
management. This sophisticated system 
is a fully integrated construction project 
management package. It is fully accessible 
from any computer terminal with internet 
access via our Citrix Server. This approach 
allows Haydon’s Team Members access 
to all project data whether in the offi ce, at 
the site, or on the road. Through the use of 
Timberline, Haydon is able to log and track all 
aspects of the construction project including 
submittals, meeting minutes, ASI & RFI logs, 
progress payments, owner-generated change 
orders, close-outs. Also included is a module 
for the project superintendent to keep orderly 

9 Scope of Work



27

daily logs and fi eld reports. This system 
provides Haydon’s managers with a valuable 
tool to guide and track all aspects of the 
project. Use of this system will help to assure 
orderly dissemination of information with 
verifi able records of the information content. 
To communicate with potential subcontractors 
during the pre-construction phase, Haydon 
utilizes iSqFt, a powerful internet tool for 
distributing bid invitations, project plans, 
specs, and addenda to all potential vendors, 
enabling us to obtain the most competitive 
bids - this translates to cost savings for the 
Town.

  6 Post-Construction

Haydon will prepare a punch list of all items 
required for close-out of the project. Each 
item is collected and recorded prior to fi nal 
payment of any subcontractor or supplier. 
Upon notice of substantial completion, 
Haydon will jointly inspect the facilities with 
Town personnel to verify construction quality 
has been met. Complete close-out will involve 
the collection of all as-builts, warranties, 
product information, commissioning reports, 
operating manuals, and training of staff 
members.

Haydon’s commitment extends past project 
closeout and ensures that our clients know 
they will receive the best quality warranty 
service, quickly and comprehensively. Using 
our Web-Integrated Client Warranty Portal, we 

have an established the 1/3/5 Rule: Respond 
to calls within 1 day, evaluate the concern 
within 3 days and correct it within 5 days. 
You will have an appointed Haydon Warranty 
Representative to contact who responds to 
and answers your questions during the entire 
process.

9 Scope of Work

10 Insurance & Bonds

 1 Liability & Workman’s Compensation Insurance

Upon award, Haydon will provide a certifi cate of Liability & Workman’s Compensation Insurance 
with the stipulated limits of liability and add the Town of Florence as an additional insured.

 2 Bond

Upon award, Haydon will furnish bonds in the full penal sum of the contract price covering faithful 
performance of the contract and payment obligations arising thereunder.



Appendix

Resume – Cub Carter (Project Manager)

Education & Training:

1980 B.S., Construction; College of 
Engineering/Applied Sciences, 
Del E. Webb School of 
Construction, Arizona State 
University, Tempe, AZ

Work History:
(21 years with Haydon, 34 years total experience)

1993 - Present Haydon Building Corp, 
Phoenix, AZ
Senior Project Manager

1991 - 1993 Decca Construction Co., Inc., 
Phoenix, AZ
Project Manager

1987 - 1991 AZCON Construction, Phoenix, 
AZ - Project Manager

1980 - 1987 Del E. Webb Corporation, 
Phoenix, AZ - Project Engineer

Current Commitments:
Phoenix County Day School Aquatics Center 
CMAR - Paradise Valley, AZ - New aquatics 
center and tennis facility at an existing campus. 
$7.3 million

Select Park & Town Center Experience:
Pioneer Community Park D/B - Peoria, AZ 
80-acre regional park. $19.0 million
Rio Vista Park Phase II D/B - Peoria, AZ - 
22-acre district park project. $8.0 million
Pecos Park & Aquatic Center - Phoenix, AZ 
- 78-acre park and aquatic center. $18.0 million
Foothills Community Park Phase II & Aquatics 
Facility Pre-Construction CMAR - Goodyear, AZ 
- 10-acre recreation project. $5.6 million
Morenci Town Center CMAR - Morenci, AZ 
8 acres of site improvements. $2.1 million

Additional Design/Build Experience:
Peoria Community & Development Services 
Building D/B - Peoria, AZ - 75,000 SF 
Development Services Building houses general 
office space. $19 million
Sunrise Mountain Library D/B - Peoria, AZ 
- 22,000 SF regional library. $8 million
Tucson Veterans Home D/B - Tucson, AZ 
- 137,000 SF facility. $23.0 million
Belden Warehouse Conversion D/B - Phoenix, 
AZ - 900,000 SF industrial space conversion. 
$35 million
Peoria City Hall Mechanical Systems 
Replacement D/B - Peoria, AZ - 20,000 SF 
central plant re-construction. $2.7 million 

Additional Experience:
Flagstaff Aquaplex CMAR - Flagstaff, AZ 
- 50,000 SF new community center and indoor 
aquatics facility. $13.7 million
Salvation Army South Mountain Ray & Joan 
Kroc Corps Community Center CMAR 
- Phoenix, AZ - 139,000 SF community center and 
indoor aquatics facility. $31.7 million
Morenci Community Center & Aquatics Facility 
CMAR - Morenci, AZ, 55,200 SF community 
center and indoor aquatics facility. $15 million
Northern Arizona University (NAU) Aquatic 
Center & Tennis Facility CMAR - Flagstaff, AZ 
- 115,000 SF indoor aquatic center and tennis 
facility located within the NAU north campus 
- $35.0 million
Mesa Police Substation & Police / Courts 
Parking Garage - Mesa, AZ - 29,000 SF, 2-story 
building is a full-service substation. $8.2 million
Summit Healthcare Regional Medical Center 
Phases I-V CMAR - Show Low, AZ - Phased 
interior renovation of a 56,000 SF hospital. 
$10 million
Summit Healthcare Regional Medical Center 
Atrium Conversion CMAR - Show Low, AZ 
- 24,000 SF healthcare renovation. $3.5 million
Yavapai Regional Medical Center Women’s 
Health Pavilion & Family Birthing Center 
- Prescott, AZ - 50,900 SF of new construction 
with approximately 3,000 SF of that shelled for 
future development. $10.4 million
Wickenburg Community Hospital Wellness 
Center - Wickenburg, AZ - 8,000 SF renovation 
of 5 acute care patient rooms, construction of a 
6,000 SF wellness center. $3 million



Appendix

Resume – Fritz Behrhorst, LEED AP (Pre-Construction Director)

Education & Training:

1983 B.S. Construction Engineering
Kansas State University, 
Manhattan, KS

Work History:
(21 years with Haydon, 31 years total experience)

1993 - Present Haydon Building Corp, Phoenix, 
AZ, Vice President of 
Pre-Construction

1985 - 1993 Decca Construction Co., Inc., 
Phoenix, AZ, Vice President of 
Business Development

1984 - 1985 Butterfield Development, Inc., 
Scottsdale, AZ, Estimator / 
Project Manager

1983 - 1984 The City of Manhattan Planning 
Dept., Manhattan, KS
Assistant Planner

Current Commitments:
Mesa Spring Training Multi-Use Facility 
CMAR - Mesa, AZ - Athletic field and lighting 
improvements. $3.5 million
Aspera at Joy - Glendale, AZ - 70 acres 
of infrastructure for a new commercial 
development. $7.0 million

Select Park & Town Center Experience:
Pioneer Community Park D/B - Peoria, AZ 
80-acre regional park. $19.0 million
Rio Vista Park Phase II D/B - Peoria, AZ - 
22-acre district park project. $8.0 million
Copper Sky Park Recreation Complex D/B 
- Maricopa, AZ - 110-acre regional park. 
$21.4 million
Tumbleweed Park Phase V “Playtopia” CMAR 
- Chandler, AZ - 26-acre city park. $6.0 million
Tumbleweed Park Phase IV, Pioneer Parkway & 
North Parking Lot D/B - Chandler, AZ - 12 acres 
of site improvements at an existing park. 
$2.3 million
Pecos Park & Aquatic Center - Phoenix, AZ 
- 78-acre park and aquatic center. $18.0 million
Foothills Community Park Phase II & Aquatics 
Facility Pre-Construction CMAR - Goodyear, AZ 
- 10-acre recreation project. $5.6 million
Chuparosa Park Phase II D/B - Chandler, AZ 
- 12 acres of development on existing park. 
$1.1 million
Morenci Town Center CMAR - Morenci, AZ 
8 acres of site improvements. $2.1 million
Arizona State University Artisan Court CMAR 
- Tempe, AZ - Pedestrian mall at the Brickyard on 
Mill Avenue. $1 million
Spring Mountain Ski Ranch Phases I & II 
- Buckeye AZ - 167-acre recreation project. 
$5 million

Town of Florence Experience:
Browning-Miller Readiness Center D/B 
- Florence, AZ - 82,400 SF public safety facility, 
LEED Gold. $15.3 million
Florence Field Maintenance Shop CMAR 
- Florence, AZ - 20,224 SF maintenance facility, 
LEED Gold. $10.8 million

Additional Design/Build Experience:
Camp Navajo Building #1 Renovation D/B 
- Bellemont, AZ 12,000 SF historic renovation, 
LEED Silver. $2.9 million
Peoria Community & Development Services 
Building D/B - Peoria, AZ - 75,000 SF 
Development Services Building houses general 
office space. $19 million
Tucson Veterans Home D/B - Tucson, AZ 
- 137,000 SF facility. $23.0 million
Papago Readiness Center D/B - Phoenix, AZ 
- 66,500 SF public safety facility, LEED Gold. 
$16.4 million
Sunrise Mountain Library D/B - Peoria, AZ 
- 22,000 SF regional library. $8 million
Casa Grande Community Center DB - Casa 
Grande, AZ - 50,000 SF community recreation and 
aquatic center. $15.0 million
Belden Warehouse Conversion D/B - Phoenix, 
AZ - 900,000 SF industrial space conversion. 
$35 million
Peoria City Hall Mechanical Systems 
Replacement D/B - Peoria, AZ - 20,000 SF 
central plant re-construction. $2.7 million 
SRP PAB Central Plant Upgrade Phase I D/B - 
Tempe, AZ - Cooling tower replacement. $864,000



Appendix

Resume – Pat Wauneka (Project Superintendent)

Select Park & Town Center Experience:
Rio Vista Park Phase II D/B - Peoria, AZ - 
22-acre district park project. $8.0 million
Hermoso Park - Phoenix, AZ - 5-acre district park. 
$300,000

Additional Design/Build Experience:
Belden Warehouse Conversion D/B - Phoenix, 
AZ - 900,000 SF conversion of a manufacturing 
plant into mixed-use space. $35 million

Additional Experience:
Arizona State University West Sun Devil 
Fitness Complex CMAR - Glendale, AZ - 
60,000 SF LEED Silver recreation facility. 
$18.6 million
Arizona State University Chandler Innovation 
Center CMAR - Chandler, AZ - 33,000 SF 
academic renovation, LEED Silver. $3.4 million
South Mountain Community Library & 
Learning Resource Center CMAR - Phoenix, 
AZ - 51,000 SF library and 20,000 SF renovation. 
$23.2 million
Chili Davis Premier Baseball Facility at Rio 
Vista Park - Peoria, AZ - 1,680 SF baseball batter 
training facility. $537,000
Pinon Community Center, Boarding School 
& Dormitories - Pinon, AZ - 200,000 SF 
Navajo community center, boarding school and 
dormitories. $15.2 million

Education & Training:
Phoenix Institute of Technology, Automotive
Navajo Community College, Business 
Management
Arizona Carpenters Joint Apprenticeship & 
Training, Journeyman Certificate
Work History:
(8 years with Haydon, 22 years total experience)

2006 - Present
Haydon Building Corp, 
Phoenix, AZ
Project Superintendent

2004 - 2006
Foresite Design & 
Construction, Tempe, AZ
Project Superintendent

2001 - 2004
Western Native Construction 
Inc, Glendale, AZ
President

2000 - 2001
Primary Systems Service 
Group
Project Manager

1992 - 2001

SD/B Inc, Phoenix, AZ
Site Lead, Project 
Superintendent, General 
Foreman, Foreman, Project 
Manager

Current Commitments:
ASU Lab 116 Renovation CMAR - Tempe, 
AZ - Renovation of an electronics research lab. 
$1.0 million

Pinon High School - Pinon, AZ - 92,000 SF new 
public high school. $13.5 million
City of Tempe Courts - Tempe, AZ - New second 
floor courtroom. $245,000
American Express - Phoenix, AZ - Tenant 
improvement of three four-story buildings. 
$1.5 million
Baseline Flower Shop - Phoenix, AZ - 1,700 SF 
metal building with 20 parking spaces. $400,000



  
 
 
 
 

  

MICHAEL G. PARK, ASLA 
Senior Landscape Architect 

Expertise Site and Facility Planning and Design 
Recreation Planning and Design 

Academic 
Background 

BLA, Landscape Architecture, Kansas State University 

Representative 
Experience 

Mr. Park is a senior landscape architect for EPG. He has 31 years of project experience, including recreation planning and design, 
urban design and construction documentation for public works, commercial, and office projects. His professional skills include 
master planning, site planning, site design, design guidelines, preparation of construction documents and specifications, and 
construction administration. Mr. Park is also proficient in the use and management of computer-aided design. As a project manager 
he has had prime consultant responsibilities for a wide range of projects throughout Arizona and the Southwest for multi-discipline 
projects, including the oversight of projects with significant architectural facility design and construction. Mr. Park’s experience 
includes project management of many multi-disciplined projects, which have included architecture, all aspects of engineering (civil, 
mechanical, plumbing, electrical, structural, geotechnical, environmental), landscape architecture, and planning. He has led these 
projects from project kick-off through construction administration, including the oversight and coordination of all disciplines for final 
construction documents and building permit review. 

Representative 
Projects 

 Daley Park Renovation, Tempe, Arizona - Landscape Architect-of-Record and Quality Assurance/Quality Control manager 
and for the redevelopment of this aging and historic neighborhood park in central Tempe. Dating to the 1950s the flood 
irrigated park was in need of a renovation to provide a level-of-service back to the surrounding neighborhoods. Including in the 
renovation was a master plan revision, softball and soccer field reconstruction, group and individual picnic areas, multi-age 
playgrounds, splash pad, restroom facility, multi-use path, hummingbird garden, and landscape areas that are in keeping with 
the established community. The project was through the CMAR delivery method. 

 Pioneer Community Park, Peoria, Arizona – A landscape architect for the design and construction document development 
for an 85 acre regional sports and community park facility. Mr. Park oversaw the preparation of the project specifications for 
the community park. Facilities included 6 tournament style baseball fields, 4 soccer fields, a 5 acre urban fishing and irrigation 
pond, skate park, dog park, specialty gardens, themed play and splash pad areas. 

 Earl Edgar Recreation Facility Renovation, Buckeye, Arizona – Project Manager for the master planning and renovations 
to the Town of Buckeye’s sports facility. The master plan included identifying and locating program components in the 18-acre 
park that dates back to the 1970s. To kick-off the renovations, the Town undertook revitalizing this park by reconstructing two 
Little League fields—one by assistance of the Arizona Diamondbacks as the Craig Counsell Field of Dreams. EPG prepared 
the construction documents for the renovation, which included two softball fields with a soccer overlay, one new soccer field 
and lighting, playground, walking path, batting cages. 

 Foothills Community Park, Master Plan and Phase 1, Goodyear, Arizona - Project Manager for a 40-acre community park 
in the Estrella Mountain Ranch area. Work included a 3-day public charrette for the master planning process and subsequent 
preparation of construction documents for Phase 1. The 13-acre Phase 1 included three Little League Fields, soccer field, 
parking, and open space areas. 



  
 
 
 
 
 

M. Park - Page 2 of 2  

 Foothills Community Park, Master Plan and Phase 2, Goodyear, Arizona - Project Manager for the 12-acre expansion. 
Work included a modification to the master plan, public meetings, and construction documents. The expansion included an 
aquatic center with an eight-lane competition pool, diving well, play pool, slide towers, lazy river, flow rider, control/shower 
building, and a lifeguard building. The expansion also included a baseball field with shade covered grandstands and a 
maintenance building. The project was through the CMAR delivery method. 

 Downtown Pedestrian Improvements Study, Glendale, Arizona – Landscape architect for the evaluation and downtown 
streetscape renovation and expansion of the Downtown Glendale Design Guidelines to a 50-block neighborhood area 
adjacent to downtown Glendale. The study evaluated the pedestrian system in the downtown area, including connections to 
the Glendale Urban Shuttle. The project culminated with a design concept report on the pedestrian improvements, including 
pedestrian alleyways, and the development of 15% design plans. As a sub-project of the Glendale On-Board Transportation 
Program Management, the concepts were a component of the DCR for final design consultant selection. 

 Superstition Shadows Park, Apache Junction, Arizona – Project Landscape Architect for the master planning and Phase 1 
construction documents for this community park, which is located on Apache Junction School District property. Mr. Park 
worked closely with the City of Apache Junction and the school district on the master plan to coordinate dual uses of many 
facilities, such as tennis courts, softball field and picnic ramadas that are also bus shelters. He oversaw the design of the 
grading, hardscape, landscape, and irrigation as well as coordinated with Maricopa County Flood Control District on an 
aesthetic redesign of a flood control channel that bisected the site. 

 Pecos Park, Phoenix, Arizona - Project Manager for the 90-acre park development project that included outdoor sports 
fields, aquatics center with play and competition pool, separate diving well, tennis courts, sand volleyball courts, basketball 
courts, skate park, and future community center. The design team fully integrated the park design to link all park elements into 
a cohesive form using well planned vehicle ingress, access ways, drives, parking facilities, lighted pathways, and trails. A 30-
acre-foot retention basin was implemented on the east side of 48th Street with joint use for storm water management and 
lighted soccer fields, softball fields, tennis and basketball courts. The design team provided a final lighting design and field 
orientation on the floor of the basin. 

 Anthem Community Park, Anthem, Arizona - Project Manager for a 70-acre community park, a component of the master 
planned community located north of Phoenix. This project was master planned as a multiple phase project to match yearly 
development budgets. Phases 1-12 of Anthem Park included Little League facilities, softball and soccer fields, a catch-and-
release fishing lake, a ¾-mile miniature railroad, sport courts, a roller-hockey rink, ramadas for large groups, and picnic 
facilities. 

Professional 
Registrations 
and Affiliations 

Registered Landscape Architect (Arizona No. 27770 and Utah No. 4804157) 
American Society of Landscape Architects 
Arizona Forward Association, Valley Forward Region Board of Directors 
National Charrette Institute, Certified Charrette Planner 
ADOT Erosion Control Coordinator 
City of Phoenix Self-Certified Professional, Landscape and Parking Lot Plans 

 



  
 
 
 

  

JOHN J. GRIFFIN, RLA 
Landscape Architect 

Expertise Park and Recreation Planning and Design 
Landscape Architecture Planning and Design 
Visual Resource Assessment and Mitigation Planning 

Academic 
Background 

BLA, 2004, Utah State University 
AAS, 2004, CADD Drafting 

Representative 
Experience 

Mr. Griffin serves as a Senior Designer and Project Coordinator with the Landscape Architecture group at EPG. His work and 
experience includes design, planning, and construction administration services for multiple projects including parks and trails, flood 
control facilities, commercial developments, and multi-use utility, public agency and residential developments.  

Mr. Griffin has served as the team landscape architect on numerous projects that incorporated recreation and scenery resources 
into regional-scale planning studies. His design experience continues to emphasize finding and implementing value-added 
opportunities that deliver unique and successful projects that respond to their physical and cultural environments while providing in-
budget results. This work includes agency and stakeholder coordination to incorporate neighborhood, community and regional park 
facilities into flood control facilities, designing recreation uses for reclaimed sites such as landfills, and vegetative restoration design 
for disturbed landscape areas. 

In addition to his recreation planning and design work, Mr. Griffin volunteers as a member of the McDowell Sonoran Conservancy’s 
Scientific Advisory Committee, providing planning support to the MSC on the development of the Ecological Resource Plan 
currently being developed. 

Representative 
Projects 

 Parks, Recreation, Open-Space, and Trails (PROST) Master Plan 2013, City of Peoria, Arizona -  

 South Chaparral Sports Complex, City of Scottsdale, Arizona - As Project Coordinator, Mr. Griffin prepared and coordinated 
project work including conceptual presentation graphics, project cost evaluations, the Design Review Board submittal, and 
construction documentation preparation; coordinated sub-consultant submittals; coordinated construction administration efforts 
including submittal reviews, site inspections, and architect’s supplemental instructions. 

 Paseo Vista Recreation Area, City of Chandler, Arizona - As Project Coordinator and Senior Designer, Mr. Griffin developed 
and coordinated the conceptual design, master planning, overall site planning and unique recreational facility design for the 
award-winning 65 ac. recreation area located atop the closed City of Chandler Landfill.  Mr. Griffin also oversaw construction 
document preparation and construction administration efforts.  Recreational uses for this unique facility include an archery 
range, 18-hole disc golf course, multi-cell dog park, interpretive play area, and trail system.  Work performed included 
conceptual master plan development, facilitating meetings with community members and interest groups with specific 
knowledge and interest in the faculties planned for the site; preparing presentation graphics for meetings and city parks board 
review; preparing and coordinating construction document submittals; coordinating construction efforts between the City of 
Chandler and the construction manager at-risk. Paseo Vista was recognized by Valley Forward with a Crescordia Award at 
their annual environmental excellence awards in the category of Open Space - Parks. 



  
 
 
 
 

J. Griffin - Page 2 of 2 

 Tempe Western Canal Trail, City of Tempe, Arizona - Assisted in the development of design themes, landscaping, trail 
layouts and aesthetic treatments for this 5.5 mile linear corridor project. Unique design elements were carefully integrated 
within the strict infrastructural requirements of SRP for both the adjacent canal and the overhead power corridor. The Tempe 
Western Canal Trail was recognized by Valley Forward with a Crescordia Award. 

 Lantana Ranch Park/Queen Creek Retention Basin, City of Chandler, Arizona - As Project Coordinator and Senior 
Designer, developed and coordinates the master planning and site design for this 70 acre park facility.  Completed work 
includes the development of the conceptual site plan and coordination with sub-consultant and city engineers on the 
incorporation of a regional storm water retention basin into the site design.  Client concerns regarding the common aesthetic of 
retention basin parks were addressed by working closely with the client and engineering team to incorporate creative basin and 
grading design solutions with the aesthetics and site planning for the park.  Careful coordination with the several reviewing 
agencies has helped to ensure that all project goals and requirements are being met.   

 Maricopa County Regional Trail Segments 10, 17, and 19, Maricopa County, Arizona - Mr. Griffin served as the Project 
Coordinator and Project Designer for EPG in providing the Maricopa County Parks and Recreation Department with design 
and construction administration services for the first three planned segments of the Maricopa County Regional Trail. The Spur 
Cross Trail (Segment 19), longest of the newly constructed trail segments, was recognized with an Award of Merit by Valley 
Forward in the category of Open-Space and Connectivity – Trails, for their annual Environmental Excellence Awards. 

 Rainbow Valley Area Drainage Master Plan – Mr. Griffin served as the project landscape architect on the Rainbow Valley 
Area Drainage Master Plan (ADMP), a regional flood protection study that sought to integrate stormwater risk mitigation with 
the protection and enhancement of regionally-significant recreation, biological, and scenic resources.  During this effort, Mr. 
Griffin met with the City of Goodyear’s staff on multiple occasions in the effort to identify critical concerns related to the co-
location of recreation facilities with flood control facilities.  This coordinate led to the inclusion of important recreation-related 
planning features in the final ADMP recommendations, including City of Goodyear preferences for the types of recreation 
structures that could be co-located in retention basins as well as design guidelines for trails located adjacent to or within 
natural washes. 

   

Professional 
Registrations 
and Affiliations 

Registered Landscape Architect (Arizona No. 50055) 
American Society of Landscape Architecture – Arizona Chapter  
Arizona Riparian Counsel 
McDowell Sonoran Conservancy – Scientific Advisory Committee Member 
 

 



DON W. RYDEN, AIA
Architect, Planner, and Historic Preservation Specialist

Firm:
Ryden Architects, Inc, Phoenix, AZ.
President and Founder, 1984

Professional Association:
Central Arizona Chapter, 
American Institute of Architects, since 1977

Registration:
Architecture, Arizona #11028 1977
NCARB, 1996
Architecture, Nevada #3833 1997

Education:
B. Arch., Arizona State University, 1973

Professional Recognition:
AZ Governor’s
Heritage Preservation 
Honor Award
for Individual Achievement, 1994 

AIA Arizona Firm of the Year 2008

AIA Arizona Architects Medal 2012

Qualifications:
    Qualifies as both a Historical architect and 
Architectural historian per The Secretary 
of the Interior’s 36 CFR Part 61, Apdx. A

  Materials conservation consultant
   Historic preservation Section 106 
compliance consultant

   Author of National Register nominations and 
architectural context studies

  Preservation planner
  Adaptive use / rehabilitation architect 
  AZ Main Street Program consulting architect
  Forensic  evaluator of buildings
  Lecturer in historic preservation 
  Historic preservation advocate 
   Integrates Green Architecture principles into 
rehabilitation designs

Highly regarded in the Southwest as an architect and planner specializing in historic preservation, Don Ryden 
is sought after to prepare the full range of preservation activities. His work includes building stabilization, 
restoration, preservation, adaptive-use rehabilitation, materials conservation, historic resource surveys, National 
Register nominations, HABS documentation, building condition analyses, and contextual infill design. Mr. 
Ryden’s preservation planning work often integrates with historic and prehistoric archaeology and in dealing 
with governmental consultation with SHPO per Section 106 of the National Preservation Act. Since 1977, he 
has conducted more than 50 successful restoration and rehabilitation projects and has received more than 20 
preservation awards.  Don Ryden’s credentials meet the Secretary of the Interior’s Professional Qualifications 
Standards under 36 CFR Part 61 Appendix A as both a historical architect and an architectural historian.  
Mr. Ryden is active in the community as a passionate advocate for the architectural profession and historic 
preservation.  Don Ryden has served as the Arizona State Historic Preservation Coordinator for the AIA, was a 
member of the Arizona Historic Advisory Commission, and currently serves as vice-chairman of the State Historic 
Sites Review Committee (member since 1993).  

Experience with Florence Historic Preservation 
Don Ryden has successfully served the historic preservation consultation needs of the Florence community on many 
important rehabilitation and economic development projects. His first personal experience in town with architect 
Jerry Doyle was at the McFarland State Historic Park in 1982 with the McFarland Archives Building.  Since then, he 
has worked frequently with the local preservation proponents, Town agencies, HP Commission, Main Street and with 
SHPO. Already long familiar with the town history, streetscape setting and politics, in 1995 Don completed the Silver 
King Hotel and Adobe House preservation plan and stabilization project. His work in 2009 stabilized the adobe of 
the First Pinal County Courthouse (1878).

Current Project Commitments 
- Schieffelin Hall Adobe Façade Restoration – Tombstone National Landmark (03/14)
- Prison North Wall Reconstruction– Yuma Territorial State Historic Park (09/14)
- Birchett House Stabilization as Food Truck Park and Restaurant – ASU (07/14)
- Hannah’s Hill Winery Master Plan and Tasting Room/Restroom – Sonoita (09/14)
- Downtown Tucson Historic District National Register Nomination – Tucson (02/14)

Relevant Experience
- Silver King Hotel & Adobe House – Building Analysis & Stabilization, Florence
- First Pinal County Courthouse Adobe Stabilization – McFarland State Historic Park
- Ernest McFarland Memorial Restoration – Bolin Memorial Plaza, Phoenix 
- Visitor Center, Restrooms & Snack Bar – McCormick Railroad Park, Scottsdale 
- Elias-Rodriguez Adobe House Restoration & Heritage Park Development – Tempe
- Windsor Beach Concession Complex & Contact Station – Lake Havasu State Park
- Tumbleweed Park Historic Farmyard & Building Restoration – Chandler 
- New Public Restroom, Rehab of Bungalow &  House– Slide Rock State Historic Park
- Adobe Stabilization of James Douglas Mansion – Jerome State Historic Park
- Adobe Stabilization of the Adjutant’s Office – Fort Verde State Historic Park



 

Education 
BS, Civil Engineering, Northern 
Arizona University 
Registration(s) 
Professional Civil Engineer:  
AZ #34589; NM (Pending) 
Employment History 
Ritoch-Powell & Associates, 
Principal (2005-Present) 
 

Parsons, Project Engineer  
(2002-2003) 
 

Woodson Engineering & 
Surveying, Inc., Associate 
Principal (1998-2002) 
 

Guiterrez-Palmenberg, Inc., 
Project Engineer/Manager 
(1994-1998) 

STEVE LEWIS, PE 
Civil Project Manager 
Professional Summary 
Steve has more than 19 years of engineering experience. Steve specializes in park design and site civil engineering. Steve’s project 
experience is specific to enhancement project design, multi-use path trails, parks, sidewalks, safe routes to school programs, 
landscaping/irrigation, historic architecture, utility coordination, construction document preparation, post-design and public involvement 
services for local municipal agency projects. He is acknowledged for his client responsiveness, goal oriented approach, and ability to guide 
design teams. His capabilities include regulatory and funding agencies coordination and construction administration.  
  

Steve is 60% available for this project. His current project commitments include: Peoria Camino-a-Lago Park (06/2014 end date); Pulte Sun 
City Festival (12/2015 end date); Portland Park (12/2014 end date). 
 

Relevant Project Experience 
Community Park #2/Pioneer Community Park Design Build (City of Peoria). Project Manager. The project involved surveying and civil 
engineering services for the City’s second community park Design-Build project. Services included complete mass grading evaluation for 
the entire site, finish grading construction documents, water main infrastructure loop, sewer main infrastructure, drainage design, 
maintenance facility improvements, roadway design, mass excavation, and SRP coordination.  
 

Rio Vista Park and Recreation Center Phase II Design Build (City of Peoria). Project Manager. The project included site civil design, 
grading and drainage, traffic, and utility design for a 40-acre community Design-Build park and community center which provides a variety 
of recreational activities, including basketball and racquetball courts, gymnasium and a rock climbing wall.  
 

Sahuaro Ranch Park Improvements (City of Glendale). Project Manager. The project involved park master plan services, site analysis, grading, drainage, survey, and utility 
coordination to upgrade an 83-acre regional park. Final engineering included improvements to softball fields and surrounding park areas. Construction administration was 
provided. Park modifications included pedestrian connectivity, walkway upgrades, landscaping, irrigation, trails, historical architecture upgrades, way-finding, and lighting 
fixtures. 
 

Camino-a-Lago Neighborhood Park (City of Peoria). Project Manager. Current services include planning, public involvement, design, utility coordination, drainage design, 
landscape and irrigation design, and construction assistance for this new 6.8-acre neighborhood park. Amenities include multi-use turf areas, covered picnic areas, shaded 
playground areas, hardcourts, lighting, parking areas, signage, wayfinding, connectivity, and ADA-compliant access ramps. 
 

Crosscut Canal Multi-Use Path Phase II (City of Tempe). Project Engineer. Project included surveying and civil engineering for a multi-use path project which involved 
pedestrian connectivity trail systems, rest comfort nodes, environmental educational nodes, canal riparian walkways, bike route connections, and links to recreational 
amenities to comply with ADA requirements.  
 

Hallman Park (City of Tempe). Project Manager. Civil engineering and surveying services for park improvements included design of grading, drainage, paving improvements, 
and plans for stabilization of the lake edge and approximately 40-linear feet of retaining wall. Limited boundary survey and topographic survey were provided to include 
existing improvements, buildings, sidewalks, slabs, parking lots, trails, street improvements, surface utilities, drainage facilities, irrigation ditches, ponds, and trees.  
 

Maricopa Fire Station No. 572 (City of Maricopa). Project Principal. Civil engineering design of a new 6,000-foot fire station facility location in the City of Maricopa. Services 
included plan review, grading, drainage and utility plans, and post construction. 
 
 

Eloy Industrial Park (Jerry and Debbie Ivy). Project Principal. Coordination with property manager, industrial tenants, City of Eloy, Pinal County, and FEMA to identify specific 
flood hazard mitigation solutions that would remove existing buildings out of floodplains. Two miles of Zone “A” floodplain was refined and mitigation recommendations 
included base flood elevations determination. 



 
R.  SCOTT WRIGHT, P.E. 
President / Electrical Engineer 
 

 
 

R. Scott Wright is the President of Wright Engineering Corporation. Mr. Wright has 20 years experience all with the firm 
in municipal park and lighted athletic field enhancements and the associated electrical engineering. He has participated 
on numerous award winning lighting design projects throughout the State of Arizona. He is closely affiliated with the 
Illuminating Engineering Society of North America (IESNA) and serves as the Arizona Section President. He also serves 
on the national IES Streets and Area Lighting Committee and as a state instructor of the Fundamentals of Lighting-
Exterior Lighting Course.  
 
RECENT REPRESENTATIVE PROJECTS: 
 
Anthem Merrill Ranch Community Park, Florence, AZ – Provided lighting and electrical design for the community 
park including pathway lighting water feature lighting, water feature pump power, sports lighting, parking lot lighting and 
playground lighting.  
 
Eastlake Park, Phoenix, AZ – Provided electrical engineering and lighting design for pathway and open space lighting, landscape 
and monument lighting, ramada lighting with photovoltaic grid tied system and amphitheatre lighting. 
 
Civic Space Park, Phoenix, AZ – Provided electrical engineering and lighting design for open space pedestrian lighting decorative 
splash pad lighting and splash pad actuator power, shade structure lighting with photovoltaic grid tied system and decorative art 
piece lighting. 
 
Water Tower Plaza, Gilbert, AZ – Provided electrical engineering and lighting design for this small downtown park with a splash 
pad, lighted water features, landscape lighting and pedestrian oriented ambient lighting. 
 
Copper Sky Park, Maricopa AZ - provided electrical and lighting design services for this project to include all entry roads, parking 
lots, pathway and security lighting, 8 soccer fields, 3 softball, 1 baseball, 2 basketball, 2 tennis, 2 volleyball court lighting, 
skatepark, playgrounds, 2 horseshoe pits, irrigation pump station, and ramadas. This was a design build project. 
 
El Oso Park, Phoenix, AZ – Provided electrical engineering and lighting design for pathway and open space lighting, landscape 
and monument lighting, ramada lighting, basketball and volleyball court lighting, parking lot lighting, tot lot lighting and lighting 
design for the “Tree” art piece. 
 
Dust Devil Park, Phoenix, AZ – Provided electrical engineering and lighting design for pathway and open space lighting, ramada 
lighting with photovoltaic grid tied system, skate park lighting and basketball court lighting. 
 
Snedigar Sportsplex, Chandler, AZ - Lighting Design for two Multi-Purpose baseball/soccer fields, three soccer fields, Skate Park, 
and Parking Lot; and Electrical Design for Restroom Building, Concessions Buildings, and Maintenance Building. 
 
Earl Edgar Recreation Facility, Buckeye, AZ – Lighting and electrical design renovation for Recreational Facility including two 
soccer fields on a design build contract. 

Education: 
Bachelor of Science 
Electrical Engineering, 1999 
Arizona State University 
Tempe, Arizona 
 
Master of Business  
Administration, 2002 
University of Phoenix 
Phoenix, Arizona  
 
Registration: 
Professional Engineer - Electrical 
Arizona  #37992  
California #E18874 
Nevada #020670 
Texas #112456 
Idaho #15513 
Lighting Certified (LC) 
 
Memberships:  
Illuminating Engineering Society 
(IES) 
IESNA Phoenix Section Past 
President 
Arizona Consulting Engineers 
Council (ACEC) 
IES Streets and Area Lighting 
Committee Member 

Current Project Commitments: 
West Mesa Sports Complex 15% Time 
 
All other projects are near completion. 



 
 
 

Gregory Piraino, P.E. 
Principal Mechanical Engineer 
Applied Engineering Inc 
 
Phone:  480-968-3070 x 101 
E-mail: gregp@appliedengineering.ws 
www.appliedengineering.ws 
 
REGISTRATION  
Arizona Mechanical Registration 29717 
Expires 12/31/16 
 
EDUCATION 
 
Bachelor of Science Mechanical Engineering; University of Arizona, 12/88 
 
Construction Supervisor Certificate; General Contractors of America, 3/96 
 
LEED Accredited Professional; US Green Building Council, 9/03 
 
US DOT Safety Regulations Certificate; Transportation Safety Institute, 
10/96 
 
Certificate of Achievement, Arizona Corporation Commission, Gas 
Pipeline Safety Section, 4/96  
 
PARK BUILDING PROJECT EXPERIENCE  
 
City of Phoenix  
Downtown “Civic Space Park” AE England Building 
Standard Park Restroom Design - numerous 
South Mountain Restrooms Renovation 
 
City of Scottsdale  
Civic Center Mall Restroom Bldg 
Little League Concession & Restroom Bldg 
 
Pinon School District  
Sport Concession & Restroom Bldg 
 
Sanders School District  
Sport Concession & Restroom Bldg 

Applied Engineering 
 

As the founding Principal Engineer of Applied Engineering, Mr. Piraino has extensive 
knowledge in mechanical HVAC, plumbing, and LEED engineering.  Since 1995, Applied’s 
services have included engineering design, engineering consulting reports, energy modeling, 
USGBC LEED projects, project management, construction and commissioning management.  
Gregory Piraino has considerable experience coordinating diverse professionals including: 
owners, developers, architects, electrical, structural, and civil consultants, specialized suppliers, 
construction firms, and local authorities. 
 

BUILDING MECHANICAL (HVAC) & PLUMBING  
 

Applied Engineering has provided mechanical engineering on over 1500 of Arizona’s finest 
institutional, commercial, educational, industrial and commercial buildings and facilities 
improvement projects as well as Historic Preservation (HP) projects for historically and 
culturally significant buildings in Arizona.  Mechanical HVAC and plumbing projects have 
included designs for high efficiency training centers, educational facilities, maintenance 
buildings, offices, administration areas, LEED sustainable buildings, and custom residences. 
 

PINAL COUNTY HISTORIC PROJECT EXPERIENCE 
 

Pinal County Courthouse Restoration (c1891) 
Mechanical Engineer of Record  
Governor’s Grand Award for Historic Preservation 2013 
Arizona Forward Environmental Excellence Merit Award  
Engineering Record Government Project of the Year  
 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION PROJECT EXPERIENCE 
Sensitive integration and blending of modern efficient MPE systems into historically 
significant buildings: 
 

Wrigley Mansion Renovation (c 1932) 
Kemper-Goodwin Award (AIA) 2004 
 

AE England Building (c 1926) 
Arizona Historic Preservation Honor Award 2010 
 

Brown Strong Reeves House (c 1883) 
Arizona Historic Preservation Honor Award 2003 
 

Brockway House (c 1909) 
Arizona Historic Preservation Honor Award 2009 
 

Ellingson Warehouse/Hicks’ Machine Shop (c 1909) 
National Register of Historic Places 


	March 17, 2014 Agenda
	Page 2
	Page 3 

	8. PUBLIC HEARINGS & PRESENTATION
	8a. Resolution No. 1425-14 Magic Ranch 80 Minor GPA
	8b. Resolution No.l 1426-14 The Reserve at Lookout Mountain MGPA
	8c. Resolution No. 1427-14 Ultra Health, LLC PZC-06-14-CUP

	9. CONSENT
	9a. Southwest Ground-water Consultants Inc. Prof Svc Agmt
	9b. John L. Anderson Resignation
	9c. Chamber of Commerce Special Event License
	9d. January 6, 2014  TC Minutes
	9d. January  21, 2014 TC Minutes 
	9d. January 28, 2014 TC Minutes
	9d. February 3, 2014 TC Minutes
	9d. February 18, 2014 TC Minutes

	9e i. November 20, 2013 Minutes HDAC
	9e ii. November 7, 2013 Minutes PZ
	9e ii. November 21, 2013 Minutes PZ
	9e ii. December 5, 2013 Minutes PZ


	10. NEW BUSINESS
	10a. Resolution No. 1428-14 IDA Bond Issuance
	10b. Resolution No. 1429-14 GOHS Funds
	10c. Haydon Building Corp. Contract for Padilla Park




